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AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre
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Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Co., Limited

China Merchants Bank Co., Limited

STOCK CODE
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RESULTS

Revenues

Gross profit

Operating (loss)/profit
(Loss)/profit attributable to:

(i) Equity holders of the Company

(ii) Non-controlling interests
(Loss)/earnings per share - Basic

(RMB cents)

Financial Highlights and Summary
SV 5 0 B B

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total debt
Total liabilities
Equity attributable to:
(i) Equity holders of the Company

(i)~ Non-controlling interests

2012
—E-CF
RMB'000
ARBTR

A 377,242

7 111,875

g2 (B8)/ &7 (112,912)

ATEIEEE (BB)/

A

()  AREERFEA  (137,940)

(i) FERER 7,568

Bk (B8) /&R -EX

(AEED) (0.1799)

2012

—E-CF
RMB'000
ARBTR

BEE 1,308,971

BEE 44,539

Baf 246,966

ATBEEEER

()  AREEZRFBEA 1,018,831

(i) FEERER 43,174

E

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2011 2010 2009
“2——% CZT-FF ZZTNE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFR ARETR
529,034 529,940 462,967
266,305 255,796 219,877
82,041 186,623 168,649
52,978 161,095 140,819
6,043 (15) (39)
0.0727 0.2858 0.2564
&R
As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+-H
2011 2010 2009
—2——% CZT-FF CZFTNE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFR ARETR
1,414,639 1,285,003 499,588
49,685 54,764 84,107
258,589 213,417 197,808
1,119,045 1,071,114 301,293
37,005 472 487

2008
“TINE
RMB'000
ARBF7

361,706
130,204
93,945

79,775
(545)

0.1453

2008
“EFENF

RMB'000
AEBETT

364,599
103,477
203,599

160,474
526

+EERERAT —T——FFR



Financial Highlights and Summary
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FINANCIAL RATIOS

Gross profits margins:
(i) Overall
(i) Newspaper advertising
(i)~ Marketing, distribution
management, consulting and
printing services
(iv)  Online services
() Television and radio advertising
Operating margins
Net margins
Return on equity "
Return on assets @
Trade receivables turnover (days)
Trade payables turnover (days)

Gearing ratio

Note

2012
—B--F
ERx:
i BE 29.7%
(i) HAES 19.9%
(i) EHE HHER
A REDRIRR S
51.5%
(v) BBRE 67.2%
v BRRERES (95.3%)
e Ex (30.0%)
EREE (34.6%)
RAE R ED (12.3%)
BEERX0 (10.0%)
EoRKFERER(B) 226
ESRMNFERER(B) 7
EEABHE 3.4%

(1):  Return on equity is calculated based on (loss)/profit for the year

divided by total equity.

(2):  Return on assets is calculated based on (loss)/profit for the year

divided by total assets.
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For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-BLEE

2011 2010 2009
—E——f CEZ-FF _"EETNE
50.3% 48.3% 47.5%
41.9% 41.9% 40.1%
63.4% 56.2% 61.9%
92.2% 91.2% 92.2%
(174.1%) 14.8% -
15.5% 353% 36.4%
11.2% 30.4% 30.4%
5.1% 15.0% 46.6%
4.2% 12.5% 28.2%
177 141 106

6 5 23
3.5% 4.3% 16.8%

Bt 5E

2008
“EENF

36.0%
30.4%

62.8%
96.6%

26.0%
21.9%
49.2%
21.7%

84

42
28.4%

(1): BAEBHXZRERN (HER), TafRAESE

BEE-

(2): EBEEEBXRFRN(BE) 8FRALEE
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In 2012, although the Chinese economy started to pick up again
with the help of various fiscal stimuli, it remained hindered
by the sluggish global economy. Being particularly sensitive to
economic fluctuations and cycle, the advertising industry was
under relatively great pressure. With the arrested growth of the
overall advertising market, traditional newspaper and magazine
advertising sectors saw the first year of contraction in the past
decade as compared with last year while advertising in new media
obtained larger market share in China. Key advertisers such as
the commercial, services, real estate and automobile sectors
continued to cut down on their advertising expenses, which had
a direct bearing on the operations of ShiFang Holding Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”).
Coupled with the termination of the advertising agreement with
Shenyang Evening News in July 2011 due to contractual disputes
between the parties and the expiration of the Group’s advertising
agreement with Dalian Daily as well as the persistent uncertainties
about the recovery of certain receivables, such setbacks brought
down the Group’s revenue from core businesses and net loss after
tax for 2012 to approximately RMB377.2 million and RMB130.4

million, respectively.

Chairman’s Statement

Wl

Chen zhi R&E

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
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Chairman’s Statement

F Wl

STRENGTHENING CUSTOMER BASE

In view of the tough external environment, the Group proactively
adjusted its customer base during the year with the help of its
status as a multi-media advertising company. The sales teams in
over seven second and third-tier cities in six provinces across China
have flexibly modulated their strategies according to the changing
needs of their respective markets with the aim of expanding their
customer bases. Given the drop in advertising spending from the
real estate and automobile industries, the Group has been actively
expanding into the advertising market of fast-moving consumer
products, which are important to everyday life. The Group has
also on one hand offered a wider range of solutions to its existing
clients in order to maximize their values, and on the other hand
enlarged its customer base through securing new customer in
the new media sector where demand is greater. It is expected
that the unceasing growth of the Internet and mobile phone as
new communication media will give fresh impetus to the Group's

online services and new media business.

EXPANSION OF NEW MEDIA BUSINESS IN
AGGRESSIVE YET PRUDENT MANNER
Confronted by the competition from new media, the traditional
advertising segments, in particular the newspaper sector,
saw slower growth in spending in 2012 as compared to the
average growth from 2008 to 2011. According to the Report
on Newspaper and Magazine Advertising Spending in China,
published on the website of Meihua Information, which is a
renowned marketing information provider in China, newspaper
advertising spending posted a year-on-year decrease of 19.2% in
2012. According to the data on the Chinese Internet advertising
market in 2012 released by iResearch, the aggregate market
value of advertising on the Internet, which is a new media in
China, amounted to RMB75.31 billion, representing a growth of
46.8% as compared with last year. Advertisements are gradually
evolving from one-way publicity in the traditional media into
interactive and instant communication in the new media. In light

of the current rapid development of new media advertising, the
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Chairman’s Statement

B E s

Group has been expanding its comprehensive media platform in

an aggressive yet prudent manner. In addition to reinforcing the
existing newspaper, television and radio platforms, the Company
has also actively developing its new media channels led by mobile
devices and the Internet. Capitalizing on the existing sales teams
across the nation, the Group offered more choices of media
to the existing and potential clients. Being fully aware of the
importance of in-house new media expertise, the Group acquired
Skybroad International Limited aiming for its Cloud Call business
to provide a solid technological platform for the Group to boost
the future development of its mobile and Internet advertising
business. Meanwhile, the existing in-house new media platforms
were also enhanced. For instance, Beijing BaiChuanDuKe Science
and Technology Co., Ltd. (“BaiChuanDuKe"), a subsidiary of
the Group, has entered into an advertising service agreement
with Beijing Wangxin Gaoke Information Technology Co.,
Ltd., pursuant to which BaiChuanDuKe will broadcast its
promotional advertisement for a total of 12 million times through
Chinaunicom Ezhuan RingTone across China so as to attract end

users.

Facing the weak macro-economic environment, the Group’s
operations were also impacted to varying extents. For example,
the advertising distribution agreement with Shenyang Evening
News was terminated due to some contractual disputes, while
the exclusive real estate advertising agreement with Dalian
Daily has expired. Furthermore, cash deposits of the Group
have been temporarily frozen by Yueyang Intermediate People’s

Court. According to the latest update, the relevant enforcement

B RIRAEREEEFRHESNERRESE
B-ASERBIESMEERMNEEN -
Pl AEEMABR DR RBRESEBR
B3R - Y BB Skybroad International Limited
EEHAUEETEBNER REAKERKRER
REBRERMTA AR AEEHLESRAR
BEFEEBOTEN flInASERETHILR
BEEENMEERAG ((AEER]) BHIER
BlemRHE BRIMAR QR HES R
& EBRPETR MR RS R
BHNHEEEERTNBEEES A #1,2008
N S Y S

EEHZBEERETIRANRRT  AEHE
hEET " EXBTERR BRE (BHB
) ATUMESDERERTOET A0
Ml 82 (NERR) FTUNBREHER
ShEERF MEAERETHRARERE
HBEEHREARENRSER RIE&HH
BRENZEZRCHERTHES AEEKEFH
AR — SN YHEERSARKTEE

THERABRDE T —_FFR
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Chairman’s Statement

F Wl

judgment has been rescinded, and the Group believes that while
awaiting further instruction from the court, it is not probable that
this litigation would result in any material outflow of economic
benefits from the Group. The Group will continue to promote
its internal management as well as its communication and
negotiations with cooperation partners in order to improve its

operating environment.

RESUMING STABLE GROWTH AS TOP
PRIORITY

Looking forward, in spite of the uncertain external economic
environment, the Group remains cautiously optimistic about the
development of the Chinese economy as well as the sustainable
growth in advertising demand. Resuming stable growth will be the
Group's top priority for 2013, and the Group will proceed with its
plans to fortify its position in the multi-media advertising market,
strengthen its cooperation with the existing media and clients
across the country, and steadily give weight to its new media
business. In particular, additional investment will be poured into
the development and promotion of “cloud reporting and editing”
technologies in order to integrate the online media and traditional
newspaper businesses. As all of its advertising channels are
ripening, the Group is confident of seizing the moment to resume
stable growth and create long-term value for its shareholders and

business partners in the future.

Last but not least, on behalf of the board of directors, | would like
to thank the management and all staff for their efforts and selfless
contributions. | would also like to express my sincere gratitude to
the valued shareholders, clients and business partners for their

trust and unceasing support.

Chen Zhi

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY REVIEW

Looking back at 2012, the Group faced enormous challenges
from both the general business environment and within the
industry. In respect of the general business environment, the
global economy continued to struggle through the impacts of
the European debt crisis, the US fiscal cliff as well as the arrested
growth of the Chinese economy, and did not stabilize until the
end of the year. On the industry front, conventional media such
as newspapers and magazines consistently faced attacks from
new media. The three pillar industries which take up 60.0% of
newspaper advertising spending — the commercial and services
industry, real estate/construction industry and transportation
industry — have all cut down their spending to different extents.
The drop in macroeconomic indicators and the resulting impacts
suffered by various industries also threatened the advertising
market. According to the Report on Newspaper and Magazine
Advertising Spending in China, published on the website of
Meihua Information, which is a renowned marketing information
provider in China, the newspaper and magazine advertising
market in China as a whole contracted by 12.6% in 2012,
marking the first year of contraction of this market in the past
decade. Newspaper advertising spending posted a year-on-year
decrease of 19.2%, while the magazine advertising sector worked
tough to maintain a 7.9% in spending growth. Also, advertising
resources were shrinking in spite of a clear trend of diversifying
advertising spending among newspapers and magazines across
China. Advertising space in newspapers and magazines dropped
by 17.2% and 5.7%, respectively.

Despite the challenges mentioned above, statistics showed
that the global economy has been picking up. In light of the
fresh round of monetary quantitative easing policies being
implemented, it is expected that the global economy will be
able to bounce back. With the current favorable policy support
offered by the State to the advertising industry which is expected
to benefit the media and advertising sectors in China in the long
run, the Company and its subsidiaries (“ShiFang Holding” or the
“Group”) will seek development opportunity in this changing
market environment. In view of the booming development of new
media, the Group will also adhere to its development strategies
for expanding its new media operation by actively exploring
the business of cross-platform mobile internet services through
acquisitions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pt i i 5L

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an integrated printed media service provider with
one of the major cross-media advertising platforms in China. It has
been dedicated to offering one-stop solutions to advertisers and
creating value for its customers through four major businesses,
including (i) newspaper advertising; (ii) online services; (iii)
marketing, distribution management, consulting and printing
services; and (iv) television and radio advertising.
For the year ended 31 December 2012 (the “Year”), the
Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB377.2 million,
representing a decrease of 28.7% as compared with 2011, due
to the decrease in revenue generated from newspaper advertising
and online services. Gross profit dropped by 58.0% as compared
with last year to approximately RMB111.9 million,
50.3%). Although the

gross profit margin of the marketing, distribution management,

representing

a gross profit margin of 29.7% (2011:

consulting and printing services rose slightly, such increase was
offset by the decrease in gross profit margin of the newspaper
advertising and online services, causing the overall gross profit

margin to drop.

During the Year, the Group's net loss after taxation was
approximately RMB130.4 million (2011: net profit after taxation of
RMB59.0 million). The loss was mainly attributable to the decline
in advertising orders from real estate developers and other related
sectors caused by the continual implementation of austerity
measures on the real estate industry by the Chinese government,
the termination of the advertising distribution agreement with
Shenyang Evening News in July 2011 due to a contract dispute,
the expiration of the exclusive real estate advertising agreement
with Dalian Daily, and uncertainties about the recoverability
of certain receivables that resulted in provisions for bad debts.
The Group's operation as a whole was also adversely affected
by difficult economic environments both at home and abroad.
Nonetheless, the Group made the effort during the Year to sustain
the operation of its newspaper media, seize the opportunity
to develop its new media operation, and actively seek new

cooperation partners.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Customer base

With the help of its long-established and close cooperation
partners, the Group maintained a stable and broad customer base
of advertisers from various business sectors such as consumer
products, real estate, 3C (computer, communication and consumer
products), telecommunications, home appliance retail, automotive,
home construction materials, healthcare and medical, education,
and classified advertisements. Meanwhile, the Group carried on
its effort to explore new customers in order to further expand its
customer base. In addition to newspaper advertising, which covers
a wider readership, the Group also actively sought to assist its
clients in enhancing their marketing in a comprehensive manner
with emerging media channels such as the Internet and mobile

network.

Newspaper advertising

Suffering from the weak global economy and decelerated
economic growth in China, the Chinese newspaper and magazine
advertising market contracted in 2012. The newspaper advertising
sector was particularly impacted, resulting in declines in both
advertising orders and resources. At the same time, the Group's
revenue from advertisements for the real estate, commercial and
services sectors recorded a decline as the Chinese government
continued to implement austerity measures on the real estate
industry. Coupled with the termination of the advertising
distribution agreement with Shenyang Evening News in 2011
due to a contract dispute, the expiration of the exclusive real
estate advertising agreement with Dalian Daily and the limited
revenue from newly established newspapers still in the investment
stage, such factors have reduced the Group’s revenue and
gross profit from newspaper advertising by 33.8% and 69.3%
as compared with last year to RMB256.4 million and RMB51.0
million, respectively. In particular, newspaper advertising turnover
generated from comprehensive collaborative media partners
amounted to RMB217.4 million, accounting for 84.8% of the total
revenue of the newspaper advertising business, while newspaper
advertising revenue from partial collaborative contracts amounted
to RMB39.0 million, or 15.2% of the total revenue of the

newspaper advertising business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pt i i 5L

During the Year, the newspaper advertising business remained
as one of the core businesses of the Group and accounted for
approximately 68.0% of the Group’s revenue. However, the
continual implementation of austerity measures on the real estate
industry by the Chinese government has resulted in the dwindling
financial resources in the real estate and other related industries.
Accordingly, these advertisers reduced their marketing budgets
and diverted part of them from newspapers to other media such
as magazines, radio and the internet, which in turn exerted
great pressure on the Group’s newspaper advertising business. In
addition, affected by the sudden adversarial Sino-Japanese relation
caused by the Diaoyu Islands dispute, Sino-Japanese trade was
severely hit, and advertising orders from Japanese automotive
manufacturers dropped to a low in the second half of 2012, which
also had a negative impact on the Group’s newspaper advertising

business.
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As of 31 December 2012, the Group had 9 media partners in
over 7 second- and third-tier cities across six provinces in China,
covering a very large population. Its cooperation partners included
Southeast Express, Lifestyle Express, Modern Life Daily, Southeast
Business, Central Guizhou Morning Post, Xiamen Daily and
Xiamen Evening News. During the Year, the Group has started
to cooperate with two additional media partners, including one
newspaper, City Lifestyle Weekly, and a magazine, TV Friends. The
new partnerships further complemented the extended foothold of
ShiFang Holding in China. These newspapers or magazines have
granted the Group comprehensive or partial cooperation rights
to sell their advertising space so that the Group can integrate
advertising with marketing in order to provide customers with

greater convenience and all-round promotion services.

Capitalizing on the general trend of structural reform of the non-
political publication sector in China, the Group has cooperated
with Liaoning Baixin Media Company Limited since December
2011 to engage in the operation of City Lifestyle Weekly (formerly
known as Liaoning Broadcasting & TV Weekly) and TV Friends
through ShiFang XinDa Culture Media Company Limited, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. Such move has further
consolidated the Group’s market position as an integrated printed

media service provider.

On the other hand, Shenyang Media Corporation unilaterally
terminated its cooperation contract with the Group on 26 July
2011. This led to the Group’s loss of revenue from Shenyang
Evening News for the Year and had an impact on the Group's
business. Legal proceedings between the Group and Shenyang
Media Corporation are currently in progress. On 31 December
2012, the Group received a civil judgment issued by the Higher
People’s Court of Liaoning Province, in which the Higher People’s
Court of Liaoning Province concluded that the judgment of
first instance was unclear in terms of fact, its evidence was not
sufficient and its procedures were illegal.
1 (3) and (4) of Article 153 of the Civil Procedure Law of the
(1) the Civil

According to clauses

People’s Republic of China, it was ruled that:
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Judgment of Shenyang Intermediate People’s Court ((2011) Shen
Zhong Min San Chu Zi No. 74) shall be dismissed; and that (2) the
case shall be remanded to Shenyang Intermediate People’s Court
for retrial. The Group is currently waiting for further instructions
from the courts and will notify the shareholders of any progress
in the litigations in a timely manner. As advised by the PRC legal
counsel, the management believes that it is not probable that this
litigation would result in a material outflow of economic benefits

from the Group.

Online services

During the Year, the Group’s online services and digital media
businesses faced a challenging operating environment. The
uncertainty factors in the domestic and global economic
environments made customers reduce their budgets for non-portal
websites while industry competition intensified. The Group also
made adjustments and revisions to its website business model,
transforming it from a sharing platform for text files to a provider
of copyright publications and licensed works. For instance, it
reformed its profit-sharing system with licensors through reading
subscriptions. However, the Group reduced advertising space on
free reading pages so as to enhance the reading experience of
its subscribers. On the other hand, the number of free reading
members has dropped, causing the Group to lose part of its
market share. As a result of these unfavorable factors, revenue
from this business amounted to RMB11.1 million, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 79.2%, and accounting for 2.9%
of the Group’s total revenue. Gross profit was RMB7.4 million,

representing a decrease of 84.2% year-on-year.
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For its online services, the Group has established an Internet
media platform with Duk, DNKB, Life News, www.qbnews.cn
and Fangke Web and developed unified exclusive partnerships
with its newspaper partners in order to publish newspapers,
magazines, novels and advertisements electronically. Being one
of the largest digital media publishing platforms in China, Duk is
the first private enterprise in Fujian Province engaging in internet
new media which has obtained the Internet Publication Permit
from General Administration of Press and Publication of the
PRC. It has online publishing right agreements with over 300
publishers, 860 magazine publishing houses and 5,000 magazines
as well as digital publishing cooperation with 17 municipal daily,
evening and commercial newspapers. Its library of online novels
contains over 130,000 volumes and its accumulated catalogue of
electronic periodicals, electronic magazines and digital newspapers
has reached over 260 million volumes or pieces. Leveraging
this platform, the Group optimized its digital publications and
analyzes Duk’s database in order to provide quality services and

information to users.

During the Year, the Group went on to launch new versions of
Duk and promoted three business models. The first model offers
professional copyright agency services to writers (C2B). Building
on its extensive readership base which forms a platform for
copyright, it has a clear mission to fuse network and traditional
literature by aggressively expanding its library dominated by
original novels. It also acts as the best and most unrestricted
writing platform for original works (B2C). Moreover, the Group
vigorously expanded the business of copyrights trading (B2B) by
cooperating with third party digital platforms and reading bases
and setting up marketing channels for institutional users. With
effective marketing strategies, the Group endeavors to boost its
writers’ fame and maximize revenues from their works, thereby
achieving a win-win situation. In terms of the copyright agency
business (C2B), Duk actively integrates marketing and the society
to promote its contracted writers and their works through TV
variety shows, newspapers, weibo, discussion forum and portal
websites, and has commenced cooperation with the China

Telecom reading portal.
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The Group also operates Fangke Web (www.fangke.cc) through
Fujian Fangke Network Technology Corporation Limited, its
non-wholly owned subsidiary. Fangke Web is an advocate and
forerunner of a new and effective business marketing model
for the real estate industry. It has always focused on resource
integration, brand-building and research and development of
electronic business platforms for the real estate sector. It offers
comprehensive industry information, integrated marketing services
and business applications to players in the real estate sector as
well as homebuyers. After years of operation, Fangke Web has
established a professional team with strong capability in product
research and development, extensive experience, abundant
resources and marketing expertise devoted to the development
of new business software and unique service platforms with
proprietary technologies for the real estate industry. Major
products include portals to real estate information, online property
sales systems, online stores and branch management software for
property agency companies, and project management software for

property sales.

According to the data on the Chinese Internet advertising market
in 2012 released by iResearch, the aggregate value of the Chinese
Internet advertising market for the Year amounted to RMB75.3
billion, representing growth of 46.8% as compared with last year.
The market has entered a stage of stable growth, reflecting the
market acceptance of new media. Internet advertisements were
mainly placed on portals, search engines, electronic business
platforms and video streaming websites. During the Year, with
sustained growth comparable to the market as a whole, search
engines won a slightly larger market share while electronic
business platforms and independent video streaming websites
went on to capture additional market shares with their relatively
higher rates of growth. The increasing popularity of mobile
devices and tablet computers also proves the huge potential for

the growth of new mobile media advertising.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Given the factors mentioned above, the Group established Yunnan
HanDing Technology Co., Ltd. (“Yunnan HanDing”) in 2011 in
order to engage in new online media business. It also operates
various local online platforms such as Life News (www.shxb.net)
and Wan Wei Life (iwanwei.com) in Kunming in conjunction with
Lifestyle Express, a major media group in Kunming, Yunnan.
During the Year, Yunnan HanDing launched mobile applications
for iOS and Android platforms such as Wan Wei Yunnan, a mobile
travel information application, and Zhui Ai Magazine, a mobile

reading application.

In order to grasp the opportunities arising from the booming
development of advertising on new media such as mobile devices
and the Internet, the Group completed the acquisition of 34.0%
of issued shares in Skybroad International Limited (“Skybroad”), a
company which developed the voice over Internet protocol (VolP)
based communication software known as Cloud Call (“Cloud Call/
Cloud Call App”) that operates on mobile and personal computer
platforms, in August 2012. The main function of the system is
to allow users, wherever they are, to make calls to China and
Hong Kong landlines or mobile telephone numbers via 3G, Wi-
Fi or Internet networks without paying roaming or long distance
telephone charges. In order to create market awareness and
momentum of market penetration, Cloud Call was available for
download free of charge at the Apple app store and the Android
market during its trial period. Advertising income is expected to
be generated from putting advertisements in ring-tones and on
screen displays when users use the application to make telephone
calls. Skybroad organized a soft launch of Cloud Call App in
April 2012 and provided a free trial period to advertisers. During
the trial period, the application received positive feedback from
users. At the time being, Skybroad has fully launched the Cloud
Call business. As at 31 December 2012, Cloud Call had over 1
million active users and contributed some revenue to the Group.
The increase in its members was satisfactory. This business is
developing smoothly and has laid a sound foundation for the
Group to capture the promising potential of this market in the

future.
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Marketing, distribution management, consulting and
printing services

Riding on the gigantic growth in the Group’s marketing revenues
and the growth in its distribution management, consulting and
printing services income, revenue from the Group’s marketing,
distribution management, consulting and printing services for
the Year surged by 22.1% to RMB107.6 million, accounting for

28.5% of the Group's total revenue.

Under the exclusive cooperation contracts with some of its
newspaper partners, the Group continued to sell their advertising
space and provide integrated services to its customers. The Group
also offers certain ancillary services, including printing, distribution
management, consulting and marketing advice. Same as always,
the Group is committed to strengthening strategic and close
cooperative relationships with its newspaper partners. By helping
publications maintain their excellent printing quality, the revenue
generated from this segment has increased steadily. For the
distribution and management business, the Group carried on its
comprehensive services to Southeast Express and Lifestyle Express.
In respect of printing services, the Group's three factories located
in Fuzhou, Kunming and Guizhou operated smoothly as always
and printed Southeast Express, Lifestyle Express and Central
Guizhou Morning Post, respectively. In addition to the printing
of Southeast Express, the Fuzhou factory will also continue to
print China Securities Journal and Shanghai Securities News. With
stringent management of publications’ printing quality, the Group
is able to ensure high quality in the printing of its advertisements,
making them more attractive to readers, as well as to strengthen
the strategic and close cooperative relationships with its media

partners.

Leveraging its own resources and the established technologies
developed by Fangke Web, the Group also provided professional
and comprehensive property marketing planning, solutions and
support, thereby consolidating its cooperation with its clients.
During the Year, the Group realized revenue of RMB56.2 million
from planning fees and commission income of planning and

marketing services provided to real estate projects.
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ShiFang Healthcare Technology Corporation Limited, a subsidiary
of the Group, is committed to the provision of all-round medical
and healthcare information and the development of the most
unique medical and healthcare information platform across the
country by setting up an integrated information service platform
comprising websites, call center platforms and appointment
and registration systems. On the other hand, through strategic
cooperation with experts from public hospitals and serving the
end market with various products such as healthcare information
advisory, consultancy services and newspaper health editions, the
Group has developed interaction between consumers, including
experts, readers and members. During the Year, the Group
strengthened the promotion of this business by continuing to
collaborate with 10 public hospitals in Fuzhou to disseminate

comprehensive medical and healthcare information.

Furthermore, Beijing BaiChuanDuKe Science and Technology

0., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, has entered
into an exclusive license agreement with Beijing Wangxin Gaoke
Information Technology Co., Ltd. on 28 June 2012 in respect
of the cooperation on Chinaunicom Ezhuan RingTone in China
for a term of 10 years. This cooperation project aims mainly at
promoting the brand image and market recognition of Duk and
further expanding and enlarging the coverage of its advertising

services.

Television and radio advertising

In 2012, revenue from the Group's television and radio advertising
amounted to RMB2.1 million, representing a significant year-on-
year increase of 382.2%, accounting for 0.6% of the Group's

total revenue.
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The Group's television advertising business mainly operates as an
extended auxiliary service to customers of the newspaper media
business. With its amicable cooperation with Nanning Television
Station in Guangxi Province, the Group proceeded to broadcast
advertisements in respect of home-improvement and building
materials industries in advertising time slots on four channels
of Nanning Television Station. The Group also actively explores
cooperation opportunities with other television stations in order
to expand its television advertising business. The Group will strive
to form full or partial collaborative partnerships with television
stations which are similar to its relationships with newspaper
media so as to further expand the sources of income of the
Group's television advertising business and to eventually achieve
the goal of establishing itself as a major television media operator

and a media resource provider.

In terms of radio advertising, during the Year, the Group
signed a five-year agreement regarding a collaborative project
with YangGuang DuShi (Beijing) Culture and Media Co. Ltd
(“YangGuang DuShi”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
National Radio, in relation to the development of licensed radio
stations. Through the project, the Group will enjoy access to the
rich historical database and copyright resources of China National
Radio, which it will apply to multimedia development. In addition,
the Group will be able to sell its custom-made radio programs to
various radio stations at the provincial, municipal and county levels
through this project, which can also be applied to the Group's
network business. However, YangGuang DuShi failed to provide
the Group with access to the corresponding program library in
a timely manner, forcing the relevant business development fail
to be carried out in a smooth manner. In this respect, the Group
has engaged a PRC legal counsel to apply to the China Economic
and Trade Arbitration Commission for arbitration regarding the

contract.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Total revenue decreased significantly by 28.7% from RMB529.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to RMB377.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2012, primarily because
the increase in revenue from marketing, distribution management,
consulting and printing services from RMB88.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2011 to RMB107.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2012 was offset by the decrease in the revenue from
newspaper advertising from RMB387.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2011 to RMB256.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2012 and the decrease in revenue from online services
from RMB53.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to
RMB11.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The decrease in revenue from newspaper advertising from
RMB387.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to
RMB256.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 was
mainly because (a) the PRC government continued its adjustment
measures on the real estate industry which results in the reduction
of advertising orders from real estate developers and other
related industries, consequently the annual business receipts of
the Company decreased as compared to 2011; (b) the advertising
distribution agreement entered into with Shenyang Evening
News was terminated in July 2011 due to contractual disputes
between the parties; and (c) the expiry of the exclusive real estate

advertising agreement entered into with Dalian Daily.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit decreased by 58.0% from RMB266.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2011 to RMB111.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2012. Gross profit margin decreased
from 50.3% for 2011 to 29.7% for 2012, which was primarily
attributable to the unsatisfactory performance of newspaper

advertising and online services.

Other income

Other income decreased by 5.0% from RMB10.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2011 to RMB9.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2012, primarily due to the combined effect
of the increase in the sales of newsprint paper and the decrease in

the income from government subsidies.

Other gain

Other gain amounted to RMB11.6 million was recorded for the
partial disposal of interest in Yunnan Handing Investment during
the year ended 31 December 2012.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased by 1.1% from RMB38.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to RMB38.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012, mainly because of the
increase in marketing expenses, which was in line with the growth

in marketing management income during the period.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by 33.0% from
RMB156.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to
RMB207.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2012, mainly
because of the increase in staff costs of RMB12.8 million, the
increase in amortisation of intangible assets of RMB4.9 million,
and increase in the provision for impairment of trade receivables,

prepayments, and deposits of RMB11.7 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(Loss)/profit before income tax

As a result of the foregoing factors, loss before income tax
for the year ended 31 December 2012 was RMB114.1 million,
representing a decrease of 238.3% as compared to profit before
income tax of RMB82.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2011.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses decreased by 30.6% from RMB23.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2011 to RMB16.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012 as a result of the decrease in

taxable income for the year.

Loss for the year
The Group recorded a loss for the year of RMB130.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012, mainly attributable to the

significant decline in revenue during the year.

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests increased from
RMB6.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to RMB7.6

million for the year ended 31 December 2012.

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company decreased from RMB53.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2011 to a loss of RMB137.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

PR i L 2 Ay

BRATEHA (BE) &R
HRERAEZ REZE-_FT—=-—F+=-A8
ST -RLEFEBEBERARAEHATEEA
RE114188T BEE-_Z——F+=A
=T —BIEFERKRAMEB AN M ARKES2.5
BEITHA238.3% °

FriEHmx
EHAXHEE _—_T——F T _A=+—
HIEFENARB23 588 T FNK30.6% &
ETE-—HF+ - A=Z+-BHILEFENAR
¥i163E 8L REA/FNERTWARD P
B o

FABR
REBEE-_T——-F+-A=+—HLEFE &
SEESFANBEARK1304B88T T2/
A F AU AKE T BRPTEL

Ik 12 AR R 22 B (L 0 A
FEREREEENREE=E——F+=A
T+ —BAUEFENARBCOEBLEEHE -
T——_F+_A=Z+—BLEFENARKT6
BEIT

ARREBFEAEML (BR) EF
R ERE R NARER R B ARG SR B
BHE_Z——F+-RA=+—HILEFEHA

R¥S3 08 L THEH#HEZE_Z——F+=A
—t+—HIEFENEEARKI3798& T-

+HERERAT —E——FER

25



Management Discussion and Analysis

Pt i i L

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group’s management monitors current and expected liquidity
requirements regularly to ensure the Group has sufficient working
capital to satisfy its future obligations as and when they fall due.
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded
a loss of RMB130.4 million and a net cash outflow of RMB160.9
million. The management closely monitors the Group's liquidity
position and is implementing measures to improve the Group's
cash flows. The management believes there is no significant
liquidity risk as the Group has sufficient cash and cash equivalents

and borrowings facilities to fund its operations.

RBEETREXER
AEEEEETHERERKERRDESR
E BRASEABRHEEESEMNRKE
HEF - REBEE-_ET——F+-A=+—HI1t
FE-AEEFEEEARKI130488TRE
SRHFEARBI6095E L - EEEZYE
RAKENRBESKE WIEETZHEER
HEAEENESRE-BEEEMRRE ARK
SEAGRRRE AR CEEER WHAR
AMEEREERES WASENEAHE
RARBEE AR -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—B=+—BLtEE

2012 2011
=F-=F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T T
Net cash (used in)/generated from KEES (BA) EED
operating activities WeFH (61,355) 4,458
Net cash used in investing activities REESHEANIR S FE (78.572) (382,927)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEED (BA) EED
financing activities WeFH (21,015) 46,845
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents e kReFEBEERDFHE (160,942) (331,624)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FYHNReRRESFMEIEAE
the year 214,377 546,001
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FROBEeRREEEER 53,435 214,377

Cash flow used in operating activities
For the year ended 31 December 2012, net cash used in operating
activities amounted to RMB61.4 million, primarily attributable to

the loss for the year amounted to RMB130.4 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash flow used in investing activities

For the year ended 31 December 2012, net cash used in investing
activities amounted to RMB78.6 million, resulted primarily from
payment for investment in an associates of RMB125.3 million,
deposit paid to new cooperative media partners of RMB19.3
million, deposit paid for exclusive marketing and promotion
projects of RMB17.5 million, net cash outflow from the disposal
of a subsidiary of RMB5.2 million, payments for the additions
of plant and equipment such as printing equipment and office
fixtures of RMB6.6 million, offset by recovery of cash deposits
as collateral of RMB17.5 million and cash receipt for the partial

disposal of interest in an associate of RMB77.9 million.

Cash flow used in financing activities

For the year ended 31 December 2012, net cash used in financing
activities amounted to RMB21.0 million, primarily attributable to
repayments of loans advanced from a related party of RMB17.2
million and net repayments of bank borrowings and other loans
of RMB5.0 million, offset by the capital contribution from non-

controlling interest shareholders of RMB1.1 million.

Capital expenditures

The Group's business generally does not require significant
ongoing capital expenditures. Capital expenditures incurred mainly
for the purchase of printing machinery and office equipment.
Capital expenditures were RMB18.8 million and RMB6.6 million
for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012,

respectively.
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Trade receivables - net EZEWRRE - FHE
The following table sets out the aging analysis of the Group's TREIINAMTBHAEEE FEUKIEN R
trade receivables at the dates indicated: BT

As at 31 December

R+t=A=+—H
2012 2011
—E-—_F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
Aging analysis of trade receivables ESEWRRENRERD T AR TR ARBTT
1 - 30 days 1£230H 25,519 27,940
31 - 60 days 31260H 14,604 16,322
61 — 90 days 61290H 9,090 13,305
91 — 365 days 91&365H 61,540 142,202
Over 1 year —F L E 203,151 134,983
Total #at 313,904 334,752
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables  J& - 2 5 & W ZR A Bl (B B 5 (107,426) (75,083)
Total trade receivables — net BT G EIWNGRIE—F5 206,478 259,669

Trade receivables decreased by 20.5% from RMB259.7 million as BORKHRIERE -_T——F+-_A=1T—HH
at 31 December 2011 to RMB206.5 million as at 31 December ARB259.78 8T TH205%E T ——4F
2012. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the reduced TZA=T—HNARKB20658E T T E
income from newspaper advertising and online services R E S RS REEBRAR LD - &
businesses. Trade receivables turnover days extended from 177 EWFEREREHBEE T ——F T+
days for the year ended 31 December 2011 to 226 days for the T HLEFEMI7/BEENZEHE T —=
year ended 31 December 2012, primarily due to the continued FH+ZA=T—HILFEM260 TEHR
implementation of austerity measures on the real estate industry REBNGEESREIEEEBRAERER 5
by the PRC government that resulted in the reduction in spending EHERBERIRL SWERDESHE—F
on real estate advertising, which in turn led to tighter market BE EBHRFIERTERKRMEC

liquidity and longer payment time from customers.
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Assets held for sale

Management Discussion and Analysis
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The properties for which the Group is given the contractual right

to sell under these arrangements are held under the line item

"assets held for sale”.

KELHEERE

AEERBZERFESENHHERNMET

REHELEEE] RERFHE -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2012 2011
=F—=F —F—%F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT R AR¥ETF T
Properties held for sale FIELEWE 44,969 29,336

The Group recognises revenue from advertising services upon

obtaining the contractual rights to sell the relevant properties.

Such revenue recognised from the relevant real estate customers

were RMB5.1 million and RMB17.0 million for the years ended

31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012, respectively, which

accounted for 1.0% and 4.5% of total revenue, respectively. For

the same periods, the amount of proceeds received from the

sales of such properties was RMB5.6 million and RMB1.4 million,

respectively.

Trade payables

AEBRESLERBEYENS L E R R
REERBORA -BE-_ZT——F+= A
=+ —ARkRZE—-F+A=+—HLHF
B AEEERAZERBEEEHETL K
ASEIRABARESNABELMARKI17.08
27T D AME AW AT.0%K%4.5% - R B H
EWEHBHRESNAEARKS G
ARE148E T

%
48
X F

BEZENRE

As at 31 December

A+=-—BR=+—H
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
Trade payables E S EMARE ARBTT ARBTT
1 - 30 days 12£30H 991 2,227
31 - 90 days 31%90H 2,675 425
Over 90 days 90H M k£ 1,978 1,495
Total #Er 5,644 4,147

THERABRDE T —FFR
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Trade payables increased by 36.6% from RMB4.1 million as at 31
December 2011 to RMB5.6 million as at 31 December 2012. Trade
payables turnover days increased from 6 days for the year ended
31 December 2011 to 7 days for the year ended 31 December
2012, which was mainly due to the increase in purchases of

newsprint during the year.

Indebtedness
Indebtedness consists of obligations to lenders, including
commercial banks and certain related parties and companies. The

following table shows the total borrowings at the dates indicated:

BHORNRER _TE——F+_-_RA=+—H
MARMBIIBEBETIEN36.6%E T ——F
TZA=+t—HMARKS6EE T -EHEN
HERAESESHEE TS ——F A=+ —
BIEFEMNRENEHE-_T——F+=A4
=+ ALFEMNTE EZRAFAFEED
BEE®EM-

B

=R

BREREFA (BRBERITRE THE
Ai&"ﬂ)ﬁ”ﬂﬁﬁ°?i‘%%ﬁﬂ$§%%z?tﬁﬁ
BN EREE:

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—-8
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
Borrowings LR ARBT T ARBTT
Short-term bank loans, secured MEIRITE S B 44,000 47,000
Other loan HEMmER 539 2,528
Loans from related parties BEATER - 157
Total et 44,539 49,685
Total borrowings amounted to RMB49.7 million and RMB44.5 HE_ZT——H+-_A=+T—RBR=ZZT—=F
million as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012, +ZA=+—8 AEBENERBED HEZEA

respectively.

Loans included borrowings secured by equipment and buildings
with carrying values of RMB47.0 million and RMB44.0 million
for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012,

respectively.
Gearing ratio decreased from 3.5% as at 31 December 2011 to

3.4% as at 31 December 2012 primarily due to the repayment of

borrowing during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Commitments
The future aggregate minimum advertising payments under non-

cancellable exclusive advertising agreements are as follows:

A PHL e o i L2 Ay

AIE
THHEBRESHEN A RRERESHRE
BT

As at 31 December

BR+=BA=+-—H
2012 2011
—E-—_F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETFT
Not later than 1 year —FUT 191,418 252,750
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FLAERAFUAT 707,000 623,250
Later than 5 years HELE 1,890,000 1,992,750
2,788,418 2,868,75Q

Contingent liability

The Group follows the guidance of IAS37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” to determine when should
contingent liabilities be recognised, which requires significant

judgement.

A contingent liability will be disclosed when a possible obligation
has arisen, but its existence has to be confirmed by future events
outside the Group's control, or when it is not possible to calculate
the amount. Realisation of any contingent liabilities not currently
recognised or disclosed could have a material impact on the

Group's financial position.

The Group reviews significant outstanding litigations in order to
assess the need for provisions. Among the factors considered are
the nature of the litigation, legal processes and potential level
of damages, the opinions and views of the legal counsel, and
the management’s intentions to respond to the litigations. To
the extent the estimates and judgments do not reflect the actual
outcome, this could materially affect the results for the period and

the financial position.
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(@) Lawsuits between the Group and Shenyang

Media Corporation
On 26 July 2011,

terminated the Comprehensive Cooperation Contract with

Shenyang Media Corporation unilaterally

the Group.

The Group received a summons issued by the Shenyang
Intermediate People’s Court in Liaoning Province (the
“Shenyang Intermediate People’s Court”) on 25 October
2011,
Group for, among others, a total sum of RMB17,328,767

where Shenyang Media Corporation claimed the

being the outstanding advertising fees payable by the
Group to Shenyang Media Corporation (the “Case 1").

On 22 December 2011, the Group filed summons of
claim to the Higher People’s Court of Liaoning Province
(the "Higher People’s Court”) against Shenyang Daily
Agency and Shenyang Media Corporation, where the
Group claimed Shenyang Daily Agency and Shenyang
Media Corporation for, among others, a total sum of
RMB105,579,352, being the outstanding advertising fees
payable by Shenyang Daily Agency and Shenyang Media
Corporation (the “Case 2") to the Group.

On 8 March 2012, the Group received a civil judgment
issued by the Higher People’s Court in relation to Case 2,
pursuant to which the Higher People’s Court decided to
refer the case back to the Shenyang Intermediate People’s
Court. As advised by the PRC legal counsel, the Group has
lodged an appeal to the Supreme People’s Court of the
PRC (the “Supreme People’s Court”) on 13 March 2012 to
request the Supreme People’s Court to overrule the Higher

People’s Court’s decision.
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(b)

Management Discussion and Analysis

On 30 August 2012, the Group received a judgment of
first instance awarded by the Shenyang Intermediate
People’s Court in relation to Case 1, in which the
Group was ordered to pay Shenyang Media Corporation
RMB17,250,398 as advertising fees together with court
fees within 10 days after the judgment becomes effective.
On 6 September 2012, the Group has lodged an appeal to
the Higher People’s Court to seek to revoke the judgment

of first instance in due course.

On 27 December 2012, the Higher People’s Court of
Liaoning Province ordered that the judgment of first
instance on 30 August 2012 should be dismissed and a
retrial of Case 1 at the Shenyang Intermediate People’s
Court was ordered. The management believes that it is
not probable that this litigation would result in a material

outflow of economic benefits from the Group.

Nevertheless, the management takes into consideration
the economic reasons relating to Shenyang Daily Agency’s
and Shenyang Media Corporation’s financial and liquidity
difficulties and has prudently made provision for loss or
provision for impairment of the RMB43,780,000 deposit
and prepayment paid to Shenyang Media Corporation as at
31 December 2012.

Enforcement order issued by Yueyang City
Intermediate People’s Court (“Yueyang
Intermediate People’s Court”) against the Group.
Ltd. has filed a

civil claim against Southeast Express and Lifestyle Express

On 4 June 2012, Yueyanglin Paper Co.,

in respect of an outstanding payment of RMB31,859,018

relating to certain sales made in prior years.
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On 10 July 2012, Yueyang Intermediate People’s Court has
made a civil judgement that Southeast Express and Lifestyle
Express shall pay Yueyanglin Paper Co., Ltd. the aforesaid

amount.

On 26 October 2012, Yueyang Intermediate People’s
Court issued an enforcement order which stated that there
were intentional transfer of assets, such as connected
transactions or confusion of properties, between Southeast
Express, Lifestyle Express, and the Group in order to against
the civil judgment and hence, Yueyang Intermediate
People’s Court ordered to freeze the cash and assets of
the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries, including
Fuzhou AoHai Advertisement Co., Ltd. and Kunming
AoHai Advertising Co.,Ltd. up to a maximum amount of
RMB31,859,018 under the enforcement letter.

As advised by the PRC legal counsel, on 8 November 2012,
the Group has submitted an objection application to the
Higher People’s Court of Hunan Province with a copy sent
to Higher People’s Court of Hunan Province to object and

rescind the enforcement order.

As at 31 December 2012, RMB12,890,171 of cash deposits
in four bank accounts in the PRC of the Group have been
temporarily frozen by Yueyang Intermediate People’s Court

under the enforcement order.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 30 January 2013, the Group has received the
enforcement judgment issued by the Higher People’'s Court
of Hunan Province to revoke the enforcement order issued
by Yueyang Intermediate People’s Court on 26 October
2012. Yueyanglin Paper Co., Ltd. has subsequently lodged
an appeal to the Higher People’s Court of Hunan Province
to request for overruling the judgment. According to
the advice from the Group’'s PRC legal counsel, to the
best knowledge, information and belief of the directors,
management believes that it is not probable that this
enforcement letter would result in a the material outflow
of economic benefits from the Group. Accordingly, no
provision for loss of the RMB12,890,171 cash deposit nor
any amount in the context of the outstanding payment the
enforcement letter issued by Yueyang Intermediate People’s

Court has been made as at 31 December 2012.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately 1,170
full-time employees. Total staff costs including directors’
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2012 was
approximately RMB93.4 million (2011: approximately RMB70.7
million). The Group offer competitive remuneration packages to
employees that include salaries, bonuses and share options to

qualified employees.

The compensation of the directors are evaluated by
the remuneration committee and the committee makes
recommendations to the Board. In addition, the remuneration
committee conducts reviews of the performance, and determines

the compensation structure, of the Group's senior management.

The Company operates an employee share option scheme
and the purpose of which is to provide incentive or reward to
eligible persons who provide services to the Company for their
contribution and continuing efforts to promote the interests of the
Company, and for such other purposes as the Board may approve

from time to time.
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PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2013, the Group believes that the promising
long-term growth potential of the advertising industry will
be sustained under the 12th Five-Year Plan of China, which
clearly stipulates that China will continue to promote the
healthy development of the advertising industry. “Advertising
creation, advertising planning, advertising design and advertising
production” was listed as one of the supported industries in the
Guidance Catalogue for Industrial Structure Adjustment (2011
Version). Impetus will also come from the revived growth of
China’s economy as well as the rise in the people’s consumption

power.

Given the continued implementation of austerity measures by the
Chinese government on the real estate market, which indirectly
affected clients’ advertising spending, the Group will proactively
expand its customer base to other key consumer goods sectors.
Furthermore, the Group also plans to seize opportunities in the
new media market and to accelerate the growth of its Internet
and new media operations while reinforcing its newspaper
advertising business, thereby laying a solid foundation on which
the Group will further develop its businesses. On the other hand,
the Group will proceed to enhance its cost controls and strive to
improve its operating efficiency. Capitalizing on its brand power,
multiregional coverage and potent multimedia platforms, the
Group will continue to consolidate its existing clients, explore new
ones, integrate innovative technologies and establish competitive
integrated multimedia service platforms in order to create more

value for its shareholders.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Zhi, aged 47 is the chairman, chief executive officer
and an executive Director. He is a qualified accountant as
conferred by the Ministry of Finance. Mr. Chen was a cadre of
the Fuzhou Minhou Tax Bureau from 1982 to 1989 (during which
he was granted leave from 1985 to 1988 to pursue his studies
at Fujian Radio and Television University), deputy section chief
of the Fuzhou Economic and Technology Development Area Tax
Bureau from 1989 to 1993, and subsequently the section chief
from 1993 to 2002. He joined our Group in 2003 and pioneered
our distinctive business model of cooperating with newspaper
partners to provide integrated print media services to advertisers,
undertook the main decision-making role in the management of
our overall operations and oversaw the strategic development
of our Group. He was appointed a Director of our Company on
December 9, 2009. Mr. Chen has accumulated more than eight
years of relevant experience from developing the business of
our Group and possesses a deep understanding of the PRC print
media and advertising industries. Mr. Chen graduated from Fujian
Radio and Television University in 1988 with a diploma in financial
economics. Mr. Chen is one of our controlling shareholders. He
is also a director of TopBig International Development Limited
("TopBig International”) and China TopReach Inc. (“China
TopReach”), a SPAC with its shares traded on the OTC Bulletin
Board in the United States. Mr. Chen is the spouse of Ms. Zheng
Shou Ling and the brother of Ms. Chen Min, a non-executive

Director of the Company.
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Mr. Hong Pei Feng, aged 47 is an executive Director. Mr. Hong
was an administrative officer with Jimei Teachers College from
1985 to 1990, the general manager of Xiamen Yuanhong Group
Co., Ltd, a real estate development company, from 1991 to 2000,
and the general manager of Xiamen Yuantong Chuanbo Co.,
Ltd, a company engaged in the advertising business, from 2001
to 2003. He joined our Group in 2004, and was appointed the
chairman of Olympia Media Holdings Limited (“Olympia Media”)
from 2005 to 2007 before subsequently retiring from that role
and assuming the position of its vice chairman in 2007 due to a
reorganization of Olympia Media’s corporate structure. Mr. Hong
is also a core management member who developed the business
of Beijing HongXinTu Culture Communication Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
HongXinTu"”). Mr. Hong was appointed a Director of our Company
on January 18, 2010 and currently also serves as the vice chairman
of the China International Chamber of Commerce in Fujian
Province. He graduated from Jimei Normal College (presently
known as Jimei University) in 1985 with a diploma in Chinese.
Due to Mr. Hong's substantial experience in publication and
distribution gained from his work with Olympia Media and Beijing
HongXinTu, he has significant expertise in print media business
management. Mr. Hong is one of our controlling shareholders. He
is also a director of Blazing Sun Holdings Ltd. (“Blazing Sun”) and
China TopReach, a SPAC with its shares traded on the OTC Bulletin
Board in the United States.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu, aged 39 is an executive Director and the chief
financial officer. He is a certified public accountant as conferred
by the Ministry of Finance and a qualified lawyer as conferred by
the Ministry of Justice of the PRC. Mr. Zhang was with Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu from 1994 to 2000, an investment director of
TechFoster Technology Ventures Ltd. from 2000 to 2002, a senior
manager with PricewaterhouseCoopers from 2002 to 2005, and
an executive director of Chum Investment Corporation from 2006
to 2009.

subsequently the chief financial officer of China TopReach. Mr.

In 2009, Mr. Zhang was appointed as a director and

Zhang is responsible for China TopReach's investor relations and
regulatory compliance, including regular dealings with competent
authorities such as the Securities and Exchange Commission. He
joined our Group in 2010, and was appointed a Director of our
Company on January 18, 2010 and our chief financial officer
on February 15, 2010. He graduated from Hua Dong Industrial
University in 1994 with a bachelor's degree in economics. Mr.
Zhang possesses substantial financial experience from his previous
work with venture capital firms and top global audit firms. Mr.
Zhang is also a director of China TopReach, a SPAC with its shares
traded on the OTC Bulletin Board in the United States.
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Mr. Yu Shi Quan, aged 36, is an executive Director and the vice
president of finance. He is a qualified accountant as conferred by
the Ministry of Finance. Mr. Yu was an accountant at Fujian Lan
Tian Tax Accounting Co., Ltd. from 1996 to 1997, the finance
director of Fujian Huanyu Investment Development Co., Ltd
from 1997 to 1998 and the finance director of Fujian ShiFang
Investment Co. Ltd. (“Fujian Shifang”) from 1998 to 2000. He
joined our Group in 2000 and was head of finance of Fujian
ShiFang until 2008 when he became the head of finance of
Olympia Media, and, subsequently, vice president of finance of
China TopReach in 2009, and was appointed a Director of our
Company on December 20, 2011. He graduated from Fujian Radio
and Television University in 1996 with a diploma in finance and
accounting. Mr. Yu has gained significant management experience
from his work with Fujian ShiFang and continues to assist our
chief financial officer with the overall financial operations of
our Group. Presently, Mr. Yu is a director of Fuzhou HanDing
Network Science & Technology Co., Ltd., Fujian ShiFang Culture
Communication Co., Ltd., Shenyang ZhuQin ShiFang Media
Development Co., Ltd., and Beijing HanDing Advertisement Co.,

Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of our Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Ping, aged 43, is a non-executive Director. He is a senior
accountant as conferred by the Fujian Provincial Department of
Personnel. He also serves as a guest professor of the school of
management at Xiamen University. In addition, Mr. Wang is a
director of China Science & Kingwin (HK) Investment Management
Limited (“China Science”), and Cypress Capital International
Investment Management Limited, as well as Shenzhen Rainbow
Fine Chemical Industry Co., Ltd, Shenzhen Beauty Star Co., Ltd.
and Xiamen 35.com Technology Co., Ltd, all three of which are
listed companies in the PRC. Mr. Wang was appointed a Director
of our Company on January 18, 2010. He obtained his doctorate

degree in management from Xiamen University in 2004.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Ms. Chen Min, aged 42, is a non-executive Director. She
graduated from the Faculty of Arts, Fujian Normal University with
a bachelor’s degree in arts in June 1993 and a master’'s degree
in arts specialising in contemporary Chinese drama in June 2002.
She also obtained a doctorate degree in arts specialising in
theatrical aesthetics from the Central Academy of Drama in June
2006. Ms. Chen had taken up various academic teaching posts
at the College of Chinese Language and Literature Fujian Normal
University between September 1993 and May 2007 and has been
an associate professor of drama literature at the Central Academy
of Drama since May 2007. Ms. Chen has also served as a secretary
and a member of council of the China Branch of The International
Association of Theatre Critics and a member of the expert panel
of academic degrees and graduate education of the Ministry of
Education of the PRC since May 2007. Ms. Chen currently is a
non-executive director of China TopReach (listed and traded on
the OTC Bulletin Board in the United States). She was appointed
as our Director on December 20, 2011 and is also the sister of
Mr. Chen Zhi,

Company.

an executive Director and the chairman of the

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren, aged 65, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our Director on November 8, 2010,
and is a qualified senior economist as conferred by the Fujian
Provincial Department of Personnel. Mr. Zhou was appointed as
the chairman of the Qingliu Country Party Committee in 1990.
He was engaged in the newspaper industry in the PRC and held
several positions including the deputy bureau chief and editorial
board member of Fujian Daily from 1996 to 2002, and the general
manager, senior economist and Party Committee deputy secretary
of the Fujian Daily Newspaper Group from 2002 to 2008. In
addition, Mr. Zhou was the vice chairman and, later, chairman
of the Fujian Province Newspaper Industry Association during
the same periods, before retiring in 2008. He graduated from
Fujian Provincial Party School of the CPC in 1986 with a diploma
in politics. Mr. Zhou has extensive print media experience and
expertise with particular knowledge of the Fujian newspaper

industry.
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Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry, aged 43, is an independent
non-executive Director. He was appointed as our Director
on November 8, 2010. Mr. Wong was an accountant with
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 1993 to 2002, an internal audit
manager with Hong Kong and China Gas Investment Limited
from 2002 to 2003, senior internal audit manager of Amway
(China) Limited from 2003 to 2004, and a senior manager with
PricewaterhouseCoopers from 2005 to 2007, internal audit
director of Xinhua Finance Media Limited (presently known
as Xinhua Sports & Entertainment Limited), a NASDAQ-listed
company, from September 2007 to July 2009, and the general
internal audit manager of Maoye International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 848), a listed company in Hong Kong from October
2009 to May 2010. Mr. Wong was also an independent director
of China Industrial Waste Management Inc., a company quoted
on the OTC Bulletin Board, from 2009 to 2010. He graduated
from City Polytechnic of Hong Kong in 1993 with a bachelor’s
degree in accountancy and also obtained a master's degree in
electronic commerce from the Open University of Hong Kong
in 2003 through part-time study. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as well as a certified
internal auditor. Mr. Wong has accumulated more than 17 years
of financing, internal controls and auditing accounting experience
from his previous positions with top global audit firms and listed

companies.
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Mr. Zhuo Ze Yuan, aged 50, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our Director on November 8, 2010.
He is a qualified PRC lawyer and qualified professor as conferred
by the Sichuan Provincial Department of Justice and Sichuan
Provincial Leading Group of Professional Titles Reform in 1989 and
1995, respectively. Mr. Zhuo had taught at Southwest University
of Political Science and Law in the 1990s and was subsequently
appointed the vice-chancellor of Southwest University of Political
Science and Law. He had been a professor in political science
and law at the Central Party School of the CPC since 2003 and
is currently a part-time lawyer with Beijing P.H. Law Firm. Mr.
Zhuo has served in various legal institutes in the PRC and received
various awards, including “China’s Top 10 Outstanding Young and
Middle Aged Legal Scholars” awarded by the China Law Society
in 1999. He is currently a committee member of the China Law
Society. Mr. Zhuo obtained a bachelor’s degree and a master’s
degree, both in law, from Southwest University of Political Science
and Law in 1984 and 1990, respectively, and a doctorate in law

from Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 2000.

Mr. Cai Jian Quan, aged 50, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our Director on 20 December 2011.
He graduated from the Anhui University of Finance Economics
with a bachelor’s degree in financial accounting in July 1984. Mr.
Cai was a finance manager of the finance department of Shanghai
Baihuo Headquarters Watches and Glasses Branch between July
1984 and June 1992. He was the general manager of the sales
department of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co. Ltd. between
June 1992 and June 2002. He has also been the chairman of the
board of directors of Shanghai Guantong Investment Co. Ltd.

since September 2002.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Gang, aged 56, is the assistant to the chief executive officer
of the Group and president of the print media division responsible
for the management of the print media business in the PRC. Mr.
Li served as a reporter and editor of Fujian Daily from 1987 to
1997. He was a member of the editorial board of Strait News
and was responsible for operation from 1997 to 2004. In 2004,
he joined the Group and served as the general manager for the
Digital Media Center of Fujian ShiFang Culture Communication
Co., Ltd., the general manager of Dalian ShiFang Media Co., Ltd.
and the vice president of the Group’s office. Mr. Li has worked in
the media industry for over 20 years and has extensive experience

in media operation and management.

Mr. Xu Kai Ning, aged 40, is the president of the new media
division of ShiFang Holding. Mr. Xu served as a director and
the general manager of Shifang YaQi Culture Communication
(Xiamen) Co. Ltd from 2004 to 2008 and also took the role of
chairman of Shenyang ZhuQin ShiFang Media Development Co.,
Ltd. from 2007 to 2008. He served as the general manager of the
Investment and Development Center and the general manager of
the Media Commerce Center of the Olympia Media Group and the
vice president of the Integrated Marketing Center of the ShiFang
Holding Group since 2008 until he assumed the current role in
June 2012.

Mr. Zheng Bo Ling, aged 45, is the president of the Group’s asset
management and operation division. Mr. Zheng joined the Group
in 2002 and served as the deputy general manager and general
manager of Quan Zhou Shifang Advertising Company Ltd. from
2002 to 2006. He later served as the general manager of the
Tangshan branch of Fujian Shifang from 2006 to 2010 and the
general manager of &M+ EHEEEFRAQF from 2010 to

2011.
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Mr. Pan Jian Ping, aged 40, is a vice president of finance and
internal control of our Company. He is a qualified accountant as
conferred by the Fujian Provincial Department of Finance and a
certified asset valuer as conferred by the China Appraisal Society.
Mr. Pan was a project manager with Fujian Audit Firm (now
known as Fujian Hongshen Certified Public Accountants Ltd.) from
1995 to 1997 and 2000 to 2004, and a project manager with
Fujian Huashen Asset Valuation Real Estate Appraisal Co., Ltd.
from 1998 to 1999. He joined our Group in 2004 and was the
financial controller as well as assistant to the president of Beijing
HongXinTu until 2007, before assuming the position as our vice
president of internal control in 2008. He graduated from Fuzhou
University in 1995 with a diploma in accounting and also obtained
a diploma in law from Huazhong Normal University in 2009
through part-time study. Mr. Pan has more than eight years of
accounting experience and is mainly responsible for our Group’s

internal financial management and audit supervision.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Ching Vi, aged 38 is our company secretary. She
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Ms. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy and has accumulated more than 16 years of financial
and auditing experience. She is currently the company secretary of
Zheda Lande Scitech Limited (stock code: 8106), a company listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market Board of the Stock Exchange
and the company secretary of Kingdom Holdings Limited (stock
code: 528), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Ms. Chan joined our Group in August 2010.
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Directors’ Report

AR

The directors (“the Directors”) of Shifang Holding Limited
(“the Company”) present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the business of publishing and
advertising (the “Publishing and Advertising Businesses”) in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the

year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income on page 90.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 and proposed that

profit for the year be retained.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for

the past five financial years is set out on pages 5 to 6.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year of 2012, the Group had acquired property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB6.6 million for the purpose
of upgrading printing machines and office equipment of the

Group.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year of 2012 are set out in

note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”), or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during

the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The amount of the Company's reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 December 2012 was approximately
RMB1,062.0 million.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations has been made by the Group

during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year of 2012, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group's five largest customers comprised approximately 26.6% of
the Group's total sales and the sales attributable to the Group's
largest customer were approximately 7.2% of the Group's total

sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year of 2012 attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers were approximately 78.0% of
the Group’s total purchases and the purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier were approximately 25.0% of the Group's

total purchases.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were as follows:

Executive directors:
Mr. Chen Zhi (chairman and chief executive officer,
appointed as a Director on 9 December 2009)

Mr. Hong Pei Feng (appointed on 18 January 2010)
Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu (appointed on 18 January 2010)
Mr. Yu Shi Quan (appointed on 20 December 2011)
Non-executive directors:

Mr. Wang Ping (appointed on 18 January 2010)
Ms. Chen Min (appointed on 20 December 2011)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren (appointed on 8 November 2010)

Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry (appointed on 8 November 2010)
Mr. Zhuo Ze Yuan (appointed on 8 November 2010)

Mr. Cai Jian Quan (appointed on 20 December 2011)

In accordance with the Articles, one-third of the Directors will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Moreover,
the Directors appointed during the year will hold office until the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and will be

eligible for re-election.
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DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management

of the Group are set out on pages 37 to 45.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS’ CONFIRMATION OF
INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of its independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Chang Ren, Mr. Wong
Heung Ming, Henry, Mr. Zhuo Ze Yuan, Mr. Cai Jian Quan a
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of its independent non-

executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’” SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and the non-executive Director
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 3 December 2010 when the
shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Listing Date”), which may be
terminated by not less than six months’ notice in writing served by
either party on the other. Each of the independent non-executive
Director has been appointed by the Company for a term of three
years and shall be terminable by either party by giving not less

than two months’ prior notice in writing.

During the year, none of the Directors had a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management
members of the Group was based on their individual performance
as well as market trends and practices. In addition, each of the
executive Directors and the non-executive Directors is entitled
to a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of
the bonuses payable to all the executive Directors at the sole and
absolute discretion of the Company. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

T 48 BB SR
EERASESREEERBNMEERTIK
FRE A KRB RTS8 2 EmAB 5] 5 ET - st o)
ERTESRIINTESTHERESRER
A WEXNTHRBERTESHEALEALR
NRAZHMBERE - EFMEFBEHRE 08
Rz M 28 -

The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the REBEE-_T——F+-_A=+—HItFE" B

Directors) during the year ended 31 December 2012 were within NEREBEB (E5HRINBMEN F TR
the following bands: Z:

Number

of Senior

Management

Bands 8 & EREEEAH

RMB300,000 to RMB400,000 AR #300,0007TE AR #400,0007C 3

RMB400,001 to RMB500,000 AR®400,0017TE AR #500,0007T 1

Total: FEET 4

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
IN OR DEBT SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Other than the pre-IPO share option scheme of the Company (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) adopted by written resolutions
of its shareholders on 26 February 2010 and the post-IPO share
option scheme of the Company (the “Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) adopted by the written resolutions of its shareholders
on 8 November 2010, at no time during the year of 2012 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’” INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors held any interests in any competing business
against the Company or any of its jointly controlled entities and

subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, approved
by written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company passed

on 26 February 2010, were set out as follows:

(@) the purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentive or reward to eligible participants for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of, the Company and to enable the Company and

its subsidiaries to recruit and retain high-caliber employees;

(b) the maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be 27,456,156, representing approximately 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of

approval of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme;

(c) the subscription price for the Shares under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall not be less than 100% of the
fair market value of the Shares on the date of grant of
the option as valued by the valuer to be appointed by the

Company;

(d) save as otherwise stated in the letter of grant, a maximum
of 40% of the total number of the options shall only be
exercisable from the expiry of the first anniversary of the
commencement date; a maximum of 70% of the total
number of the options shall only be exercisable from the
expiry of the second anniversary of the commencement date;
and all the total outstanding number of the options will be
exercisable from the expiry of the third anniversary of the

commencement date;

Directors’ Report

HAE AL

R BT R T B AR

REBEE-_T——-F+-_A=+—HLFE &
EMENERAR A S E AR K F TR
LB ARG FOEE DA LS -

ER/ N F- NN Yid
BARFRIBRRERNR_ZE—ZTF_H-+/XBUE
EAZRRANBANERAFEENBERES
N EFEZRREATNAT

(@) BRARBEANBRETIEERBN
CEAERSEEHARANER WA
BRFEESNEARRFNMNE - S5
BEARE R EKMEQRIGFAEE R

by AREBEHRXAHAZEAEREER
HOBERESERORODBERTZ A
27,456,156 - th B X AR EE A ER
REFTEEREERAARRRBEBITRALD
5% :

(0 BRAFMEBESAERETSETERNODN
RBETSERRMNBRERL 2R
MaRmE(AARAZRENEERMGE
P15 ) E9100% :

(d) BRETHAMAEN ERREEHERS
40% AT R FA e A HBE AR —IBFR1TE
EBREARKZT0%A XA B B
MM FRITE M RETERNRA
BREHBSAUNMAGBHRENH =R
FRITE:

THERABRDE T —_FFR

51



52

Directors’ Report

ALY

subject to the termination provisions in the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period commencing on 26 February
2010, being the date on which the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the Shareholders, and ending on
the day immediately prior to the Listing Date (both dates
inclusive), after which period no further options pursuant
to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be granted but
in all other respects the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the
extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options
granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in
accordance with the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, and options which are granted during the life of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may continue to be exercisable

in accordance with their terms of issue; and

the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall take effect subject to
the passing of the necessary resolution to adopt the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme by the shareholders of the Company.
The option granted may be exercised during the option
period which shall commence on the expiry of the first
anniversary of the commencement date and end on the date
immediately before the fourth anniversary of the Listing Date
(subject to the provisions for early termination contained the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme). In the event that dealings
in the Shares have commenced on the Stock Exchange, the
exercise after the Listing Date of any option granted will be
conditional upon the Listing Committee granting approval
of the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Shares which
may fall to be allotted and issued pursuant to the exercise of

any options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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As of the date of this report, options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 27,456,156 Shares (representing approximately
3.81% of the total issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this report) have been granted by the Company under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Particulars of the options granted

under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out below:

No. of share options

Directors’ Report

HAE AL

HEARERH ARES $£27,456,156/% &
7 (hRAHRE B EHARA D BITRAREL
3.81% )MERECHARAREERARE
ERBRETERE -BREBEERAREERE
R EIR LR BERENFBERN T X :

BREHA
Approximate
Outstanding Percentage
as at the Granted Lapsed Exercised  Outstanding of total
Name and position of Exercise beginning during during during as at the issued  Exercisable
grantee in our Group price  of the year the year the year the year yearend  share capital  period
HERTT
REANRER ) REA £y REX  RASEN
EAEEMNEL e B RATE FRRL EREN B WRTE  BHEIN  TEH
(HK9)
(%)
Mr. Chen Zhi, 1.82 10,433,339 - - - 10,433,339 14%  (note 1)
Executive Director
BERE Q7S 1.82 10,433,339 - - - 10,433,339 14%  (Fi&E1)
Mr. Hong Pei Feng, 1.82 2,745,616 - - - 2,745,616 0.4%  (note 1)
Executive Director
REEEE BITES 1.82 2,745,616 - - - 2,745,616 04%  (Fizk1)
Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu, 1.82 9,335,093 - - - 9,335,093 13% (note 1)
Executive Director
REMLE HTEZ 1.82 9,335,093 - - - 9,335,093 13%  (Fi&E)
Mr. Yu Shi Quan, 1.82 1,098,246 - - - 1,098,246 02% (note 1)
Executive Director
RREE BIES 1.82 1,098,246 - - - 1,098,246 02%  (Kizk1)
Mr. Wang Ping, 1.82 549,123 - - - 549,123 0.1%  (note 1)
Non-executive Director
ITRE #unES 1.82 549,123 - - - 549,123 01%  (Fizk1)
Mr. Chan Chun Kau, 1.82 1,647,369 - - - 1,647,369 02% (note 1)
General Counsel
RIS & BRI 1.82 1,647,369 - - - 1,647,369 02%  (Fizk1)
Mr. Xiao Zhen Bin, 1.82 1,098,246 - - - 1,098,246 02% (note 1)
Investor Relations Director
BRI S REBREE 1.82 1,098,246 - - - 1,098,246 02%  (Fizk1)
Mr. Pan Jian Ping, 1.82 549,124 - - - 549,124 0.1%  (note 1)
Vice President of
Internal Control
BRTEE NEBEHEILEH 182 549,124 - - - 549,124 01%  (Fiz1)
THERERLATE T —FFRH
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Note 1:

Each of the grantees to whom the options have been granted under the

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is entitled to exercise:

(i) up to 40% of the shares that are subject to the options granted
to the relevant grantee at any time during the period commencing
on 26 February 2011, a year after grant date, and ending on 2
December 2014;

(i) up to 70% of the shares that are subject to the options granted
to the relevant grantee at any time during the period commencing
on 26 February 2012, two year after grant date, and ending on 2
December 2014;

(i)  up to 100% of the shares that are subject to the options granted
to the relevant grantee at any time during the period commencing
on 26 February 2013, three year after grant date, and ending on 2
December 2014;

Other particulars of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out

in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by the shareholders
of the Company on 8 November 2010, the Company adopted the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. The purpose of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward to (i) any full-time
or part-time employees, executives or officers of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; (ii) any Directors (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive Director)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; or (iii) any advisors,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or

any subsidiaries (each “Eligible Person”).
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The Board may, at any time within 10 years after the date of
approval of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, make an offer to
grant options to any Eligible Person. The subscription price for
shares granted pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and

shall be at least the highest of:

(i)  the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock

Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

(i)  the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date on

which such offer is made; and

(iii)  the nominal value of a Share.

The total number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the
Listing Date, 73,216,512 Shares, without prior approval from the
shareholders of the Company. The maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted, and yet to be exercised, under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The total number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme to each Eligible Person (including both
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares
of the Company. Any further grant of share options in excess of

this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, if shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to a participant who is a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their associates, in any 12-month period (i) represent in
aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number of shares in issue,
and (ii) have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares of the Company at the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5,000,000, the proposed grant of option must be approved by

the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is RMB1.00. The
exercise period of any option granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall not be longer than 10 years from the date
of grant of the relevant option. There is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before the exercise of the option

except otherwise imposed by the Board.

As at 31 December 2012, no share option had been granted
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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HHE RN
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT 555 B Ay Bk B By B R 2 S
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING RE
SHARES

At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of RZE—ZF+ZA=+—H EFRNARQA
the directors in the share capital and underlying shares (the S EMEEEE (ERRAEFRBAEGRD ([F
“Share(s)") of the Company or its associated corporations (within THAEEAI ] ) SEXVER) BRI A K 48 RER% 10 ([ A%
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance ] R EARENIBIERES RS EH 5352
(the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by BEARRBBEFENZRM: %*E%th%*ﬁ/\
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise ESHTELSRHINEETRENE AR
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to BT ERS RA BT

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers, were set out as follows:

(i) Long position in the Company (i) REQABWNEE

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interest

BEEnE B REME Ligvig 4= EREAE DL

Mr. Chen Zhi Interest in controlled corporation 42,998,170 5.1%
(note 1)

BRESLE REZEHEENEESE 42,998,170 5.1%
(BFFEET)

Mr. Chen Zhi Beneficial Owner 390,000 0.1%

REXRE EmEAA 390,000 0.1%

Mr. Hong Pei Feng Interest in controlled corporation 5,347,604 0.6%
(note 2)

iR I S A MEZEHER R = 5,347,604 0.6%
(KzE2)

Mr. Yu Shi Quan Interest in controlled corporation 21,142,026 2.5%
(note 3)

RAEEEE REZEHEE = 21,142,026 2.5%
(M$5E3)
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(i)

Notes:

(1) These Shares are held by TopBig International, which is

wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Zhi.

(2)  These Shares are held by Blazing Sun, which is wholly-owned

by Mr. Hong Pei Feng.

(3)  These shares are held by Keep Profit International Capital
Limited, which Mr. Yu owns 30% of the shareholding.

Long position in the associated corporations of

the Company

(ii)

GEE

ZEBRNAREELEZ2ERANATE

BRisA -

FZERMHAMEEEE2ERENRG

FH-

ZERDAREEHBI0%BENEI R
BEREABRARRH -

RAXREBEENTR

Name of Approximate

Associated percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Corporation interest

EEnR B REEME HErEEE EESLas

Mr. Chen Zhi Interest in controlled corporation China TopReach 26.1%
(note 1)

BRESLE MR HE B ) a5 o B K 3 26.1%
(BE=ED)

Mr. Chen Zhi Beneficial Owner N/A 0.5%

RESLE EREAA i@ 0.5%

Mr. Hong Pei Feng Interest in controlled corporation China TopReach 10.3%
(note 2)

HIF g K RE DL E ) s i B K 3 10.3%
(KEE2)

Mr. Yu Shi Quan Interest in controlled corporation China TopReach 5.4%
(note 3)

ReTERE RIEHEE N =R A B K 3 5.4%
(H¥7E3)

Mr. Yu Shi Quan Beneficial Owner N/A 0.1%

RETERE ERERA i@ 0.1%

Mr. Wang Ping Interest in controlled corporation China TopReach 9.6%
(note 4)

FTrEE RE DR E ) s A B K 3 9.6%
(Bf&E4)

Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu Interest in controlled corporation China TopReach 2.0%
(note 5)

SR AT SE A4 REZEFEE RN E R A B K I 2.0%
(Ki7E5)
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Notes:

These interest in China TopReach is held by TopBig
International, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Zhi.

These interest in China TopReach is held by Blazing Sun, which
is wholly-owned by Mr. Hong Pei Feng.

These interest in China TopReach is held by Keep Profit
International Capital Limited, which Mr. Yu owns 30% of the
shareholding.

These interest in China TopReach is held by China Science,
which is wholly-owned by Shenzhen China Science & Kingwin
Venture Capital Co., Ltd, a company that is in turn owned by
Mr. Wang Ping as to 72.7%.

These interest in China TopReach is held by Real Sight
Consultant Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang Tie
Zhu.

(iii) Interests in the underlying Shares of equity

derivatives of the Company

Description of

(iii)

Directors’ Report

HAE AL

GEE

(1) MNPBRXENZSEEEHRSEELRE
BENATEERFS -

(2) RPERRHOZEERAMITELES
ARANBEESA-

(3) MRABEREHNZSHEEAREEES
30%BEMNEBBEBEEREGR A A F
ﬁo

(4) RPBEXEMNZERZETRERF
MEFRITHREESAEREEEAR
AEIZEBHEA RITHRRSEIER
EEEBERARIBAEFLEEEFT2.7%
PR HE

(5) RABEXRHEHZEEZARETEES
& ¥ 5 M Real Sight Consultant Limited
Ao

RAEQXBDRESTETIRMS REBR
1 89 1 2

Total number Approximate

Nature of equity derivatives of underlying percentage of
Name of Director Interest (note 1) Shares interest
BRASTETEFE EREN
EEMR EEME (BFaET) 1HEE IR 2 B H Aotk
Mr. Chen Zhi Personal Share Option 10,433,339 1.2%
BREEAE & A AR 10,433,339 1.2%
Mr. Hong Pei Feng Personal Share Option 2,745,616 0.3%
HEIE I 5 A A i 2,745,616 0.3%
Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu Personal Share Option 9,335,093 1.1%
SREF LA A i A 9,335,093 1.1%
Mr. Yu Shi Quan Personal Share Option 1,098,246 0.1%
RETRESLE A gl 1,098,246 0.1%
Mr. Wang Ping Personal Share Option 549,123 0.1%
FFEAE & A i 549,123 0.1%
Note: Bt 3

(1) These share options were granted under the Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme. Further details of such options are disclosed

under the paragraph above headed “Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme”.

(1) ZFBREDREERNAHEEMNEK
B - AR SERENE—F
HBEREXERAFMESABRE
g —BRWE-
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ = B SR By S FH B A ) RE £
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, the following persons (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded

in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in Shares:

R

B EE:

RZEBE—ZF+_A=+—H A TFTAL(E
EHARABTETRABRIN EELHENR
BEFRBERIIEIBCRARAAFENE
et RAEER O EEIOAR

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interest
=x B ERME IR BB RSN EIHT
China TopReach Beneficial Owner 311,763,153 37.1%
SETS ERnEEA 311,763,153 37.1%
Myriad Power Limited Beneficial Owner 120,000,000 14.3%
ERnEEA 120,000,000 14.3%

TopBig International Beneficial Owner (note 1) 42,998,170 5.1%
R EnEA A (k1) 42,998,170 5.1%
Templeton Strategic Emerging Markets Interest in controlled corporation 42,606,606 5.8%

Fund Ill, LDC (“Templeton”) (note 2)

BEEFEDISES ([HEE]) REEHEE N RS (M52) 42,606,606 5.8%

Notes: B et
(1)  TopBig International is a company incorporated under the laws of (M
the BVI, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen, the executive director
and chairman of the Company.
(2)  Templeton is a limited duration company incorporated in the (2)

Cayman Islands. It makes strategic investments in emerging markets
and is managed by Templeton Asset Management Ltd.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of

the SFO as at 31 December 2012.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into the transactions set out below
will be regarded as continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules. Unless otherwise defined, capitalised terms below

has the same meanings as those defined in the Prospectus.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Structure Contracts

As the original shareholders of Beijing HongXinTu, including Mr.
Zhang Jin Gui, Mr. Chen Zhi, Mr. Qiang Yi Bin and Ms. Lin Yu
Lin, were replaced by Mr. Zheng Bo Ling, Mr. Qiang Yi Bin and
Mr. Xu Kai Ning respectively as the new shareholders of Beijing
HongXinTu on 30 June 2011 in accordance with the Structure
Contracts, whose registered capital is owned as to 40% by
Mr. Zheng Bo Ling, 30% by Mr. Qiang Yi Bin and 30% by Mr.
Xu Kai Ning, the new shareholders of Beijing HongXinTu have
entered into the Structure Contracts with the Company in order
to continue and secure the transactions under the Structure
Contracts.

The Structure Contracts comprise five agreements, namely (i)
the Loan Agreement, (ii) the Equity Pledge Agreement, (iii) the
Voting Rights Proxy Agreement, (iv) the Exclusive Purchase Option
Agreement and (v) the Service Agreement, which were all (except
the Service Agreement which was entered into between Fujian
ShiFang and Beijing HongXinTu) entered into between, inter alia,
Mr. Zheng Bo Ling, Mr. Qiang Yi Bin, Mr. Xu Kai Ning and Fujian
ShiFang. Each of Mr. Zheng Bo Ling and Mr. Qiang Yi Bin are
associates of Mr. Chen Zhi and Mr. Hong Pei Feng respectively and
therefore are Connected Persons of the Company. Furthermore,
Mr. Xu Kai Ning, being a shareholder of Keep Profit International
Capital Limited and a party to the Olympia Media Concert Parties
which are controlling shareholders of the Company, is also a

Connected Person of the Company.
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The Structure Contracts were entered into to establish a situation
in which Fujian ShiFang has obtained effective management,
operational and economic control over Beijing HongXinTu and
has an exclusive option to purchase all or part of the entire equity
interest of Beijing HongXinTu when and to the extent permitted
by PRC law. The Company is currently prohibited from acquiring
an equity interest in Beijing HongXinTu, which holds a license for
the general distribution of books, newspapers and periodicals,
to incorporate its business into our Group because pursuant
to the Catalogue of Industries for Guiding Foreign Investment
jointly promulgated by The National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC and The Ministry of Commerce of the
PRC on 31 October 2007, the publication and general distribution
of books, newspapers and periodicals business is classified as an

industry in which foreign investors are prohibited from investing.

The transactions under the Structure Contracts (except those
under the Service Agreement) constitute continuing connected
transactions for our Company under Rule 14A.34(1) of the
Listing Rules and are subject to the requirements of reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval set out in
Rules 14A.45 to 14A.54 of the Listing Rules following the Listing.

The Directors believe that the Company’s structure whereby
Beijing HongXinTu's financial results are consolidated into the
Company’s financial statements as if it was a wholly-owned
subsidiary and the flow of economic benefits from its business to
the Company, places the Group in a special position in relation
to the connected transactions rules. Accordingly, notwithstanding
that the transactions contemplated under the Structure Contracts
technically constitute continuing connected transactions for
the purposes of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the Directors
consider that it would be unduly burdensome and impracticable
and would impose unnecessary administrative costs on us to be
subject to strict compliance with the requirements set out under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of these continuing

connected transactions.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.42(3) of the Listing Rules, the Company
have applied for and the Stock Exchange has granted a waiver
from strict compliance with the reporting, announcement,
independent shareholders’ approval, annual cap and agreements
with fixed term of no more than three years requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing
connected transactions under the Structure Contracts for so long

as the Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

For details of the Structure Contracts, please refer to the sections
headed “History and Corporate Structure” and “Connected

Transactions” of the Prospectus.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company to report
on the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. PricewaterhouseCoopers
has reported the results and their work to the Board, confirming
that the transaction have received the approval of the Directors,
have been entered into in accordance with the relevant Structured
Contracts and that no dividends or other distributions have been

made by Beijing HongXinTu to its shareholders.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the

Structure Contracts, the above continuing connected transactions

and the report of the auditor. In the opinion of the independent

non-executive Directors:

(i)

(iii)

the continuing connected transactions carried out during
the year are in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group and have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Structure Contracts so that the
revenue generated by Beijing HongXinTu and the subsidiaries

of the Company have been mainly retained by the Group;

the continuing connected transactions were entered into
either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there is
no available comparison, on terms that are no less favorable
to the Group than terms to or from independent third

parties;

no dividends or other distributions have been made by
Beijing HongXinTu to its shareholders; and

any new Structure Contracts entered into, renewed or
reproduced between Beijing HongXinTu and the Company
during the relevant financial period are fair and reasonable,
or advantageous, so far as the Company are concerned and

in the interests of our shareholders as a whole.

Other than disclosed above, there was no other transaction which

needs to be disclosed as connected transaction in accordance with

the requirements of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2012.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at

the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chen Zhi

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong
26 March 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance and value of achieving
high standards of corporate governance practices. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is an essential element
in maintaining and promoting shareholder value and investor

confidence.

The Company has adopted the principles and complied with the
former and revised code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules”) as its own code of
corporate governance since the date of the listing of the shares
of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 3
December, 2010, which shall also be revised from time to time
in accordance with the Listing Rules. Saved as disclosed below,
the Board considers the Company has complied with the code

provisions as set out in the CG Code.

Set out below the corporate governance principles and the
practices adopted and observed by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

THE BOARD

The Board provides effective and responsible leadership for the
Company in setting the strategic decision and overseeing the
Company's overall operations. The Board meets regularly and each
Director has to make decisions objectively in the best interests of

the Company and its shareholders.

The Board comprises 10 Directors, 4 of whom are executive
Directors and 2 of whom is non-executive Director and 4 of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. The biographies of all
Directors are set out on pages 37 to 45 of this annual report.
Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors has
any other financial, business, family or other material or relevant

relationships among members of the Board.
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Board Proceedings

The Company will hold at least four board meetings at
approximately quarterly intervals and will also meet at such other
times when necessary. Formal agenda of all Board meetings are
distributed to the Directors for comments and approval, generally,

at least 14 days before the meetings. Adequate time and sufficient
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resources will provide to all Directors to discharge their duties % ﬁ§$/,\$i$7giﬁilﬁ%ﬂ| FR T AT
at which the Directors actively participate and hold informed e CeEMERLB BT FHREEE
discussions. All minutes of Board meetings will record in sufficient EESEFEAMNEERIEL AR
detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions reached.
During the period under review, the Board convened 4 board REBER EFgofgEMUrERES
meetings, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 1 Remuneration BOMABEZEZEEER —AFNZEge
Committee meeting and 1 Nomination Committee meeting FER—AREZESEZR -EENESZE B
respectively. The attendance of individual Directors at meetings HZZEE FWEESNIREZESEEEN
of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and HERIT :
Nomination Committee is as follows:
Meeting attended/held
HE/ETEERE
Shareholders’
general Audit Remuneration  Nomination
meeting Board  Committee  Committee ~ Committee
BRRAE EEg ENZEE FMzEE REZEE
Executive Directors HTESE
Chen Zhi (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) RE(TEHERHTE) 0/1 4/4 N/A 17 7
TEm
Hong Pei Feng it 17 414 N/A N/A N/A
TEA Taf Tam
Zhang Tie Zhu (Chief Financial Officer) KA (FEAFE) 1N 3/4 N/A N/A N/A
TEm Tam Tam
Yu Shi Quan RetE 171 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
TER TER TER
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Wang Ping T¥ 0/1 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
TER TER TER
Chen Min B &1 0/1 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
TiER TEA TR
Independent Non-executive Directors BUBTES
Wong Heung Ming, Henry EmH 7 4/4 2/2 1”7 "
Zhou Chang Ren FELC 17 4J4 22 1/1 N/A
Tam
Zhuo Ze Yuan )T 0/1 4/4 2 N/A 171
TEH
Cai Jian Quan -3-2 0/1 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
TR TER TER
THERERAT —T——_FFH
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All the Directors have access to relevant and timely information.
They also have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company, who is responsible for providing the
Directors with Board papers and related materials. Where queries
are raised by the Directors, prompt and full responses will be given

if possible.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder of the Company or a Director arise, the matter will be
discussed in a physical Board meeting, as opposed to being dealt
with by a written resolution. Independent Non-Executive Directors
with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings dealing

with such conflict issues.

Independent Non-Executive Directors are identified in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors. An
updated list of the Directors identifying the Independent Non-
Executive Directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is
maintained on the website of the Company and the website of

the Stock Exchange.

Roles and responsibilities of the Board
The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success and
interest of the Group through its leadership and supervision. The

principal tasks of the Board are to:

(i)  provide entrepreneurial leadership for the Company with a
framework of prudent and effective controls which enables
risks to be assessed and managed;

(i) set the Company’s strategic aims, ensuring that the

necessary financial and human resources are in place for the

Company to meet its objectives and review its management

performance; and
(iii) set the Company’s values and standards and ensure that its

obligations to its shareholders and others are understood

and met.
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No event or condition of material uncertainties was found
that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern during the period under review. The
Directors were responsible for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of the financial statements of the Company, in
all material respects, in accordance with applicable regulatory

requirements.

Skills, knowledge, experience and attributes of
Directors

All Directors of the Board had served in office during the period
under review. Every Director commits to give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company. The Directors also
demonstrate their understanding and commit to high standards
of corporate governance. The Executive Director brings his
perspectives to the Board through his deep understanding of
the Group’s business. The Non-Executive Directors and the
Independent Non-Executive Directors contribute their own skills
and experience, understanding of local and global economies,
and knowledge of capital markets to the Group’s business.
The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
continuous professional development programmes for all Directors

to hone and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Induction and training

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is
required to undertake an induction program to ensure that he
has a proper understanding of his duties and responsibilities.
The induction program includes an overview of the Group's
business operation and governance policies, the Board meetings’
procedures, matters reserved to the Board, an introduction of
the Board committees, the Directors’ responsibilities and duties,
relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the
Board and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings

with senior officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary).

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the Revised CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

This is to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed
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and relevant. During the Year, all Directors had participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities by

ways of attending training and/or reading materials relevant to the

ESHEES

Company's business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

The company secretary of the Company maintains records of

training attended by the Directors. The training attended by each

N -FEEFEEB2INEIRLMESR
ARBEBLEEFRERBEENMH2EEES

BRI

%

ARRANAAREGRFEELNEINE
8 RAEEREEES NIRRT

Director during the Year is tabulated as follows:— D
Training Records A2 8%
Type of Training
Name trainings matters
£ EIgR T EE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
CPfF=ET) (Pff7E2)
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Chen Zhi (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) BRE®RE (TEFEEHTE) a, b i, i, iif, iv
Mr. Hong Pei Feng AL g S A a, b i, i, i, iv
Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu (Chief Financial Officer) SRETSEE (BEHIBFE) a, b i, i, il v
Mr. Yu Shi Quan RETHESLAE a, b i, i, i, iv
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Wang Ping TELEE a, b i, i, i, iv
Ms. Chen Min PR & A+ a, b i i, i, v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry =RAALE a, b i, i, i, iv
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren BEf 4. a, b i, i, i, iv
Mr. Zhou Ze Yuan B a, i, i, i, iv
Mr. Cai Jian Quan EERESLAE a, i, i, i, iv
Note 1: 5T -
a - attending seminar or training session a - HE R K IFIIRE
b - self-development and updates relating to general economy, b - BRERREE -—MEE E£HER-
business development, director’s duties and responsibilities, EEREREASEEZCETEH
etc.
Note 2: M52

corporate governance
regulatory compliance
finance

management and operation
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Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and
indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the Directors. Throughout 2012, no claim had been made

against the Directors and the officers of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be

performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chen Zhi, who acts as the chairman and chief executive officer
of the Company, is responsible in pioneering the Company’s
distinctive business model and undertaking the main decision-
making role in the management of the Company’s overall
operations and overseeing the strategic development of the
Group. The Board will meet regularly to consider and review
the major and appropriate issues affecting the operations of
the Company. As such, the Board considers that the sufficient
measures have been taken and it will not impair the balance of

power and authority between the Board and the management.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed four independent non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each of its independent non-executive Directors
the written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board, based on such confirmation,

considers all independent non-executive Directors independent.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Director has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years, which may be terminated by not less than six
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other. The
independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a
term of three years and shall be terminable by either party giving
not less than two months prior notice in writing. The Directors
have power at any time and from time to time to appoint any
person to be a Director, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the existing Directors. Any Director so appointed shall
hold office only until the next annual general meeting of our
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
In accordance with the Articles of the Company, at every annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being or, if the number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to, but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Directors
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Relationships and associations among the Directors

Ms. Chen Min is the sister of Mr. Chen Zhi, who is also the
chairman of the Company. Save as disclosed, there was no
relationship between members of the Board (including financial,

business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)).

Company secretary

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) is responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each
meeting of the Board or the Board committees including any
dissenting views expressed by the Directors, which should be
available to all Directors for inspection. She is also responsible
for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. All agenda, relevant materials and document
are required to be sent out at least 3 days prior to the intended
dates of the Board meetings or meetings of the Board committees.

It is the responsibility of the Company Secretary to send the draft
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minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board committees
to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings of the
Board or the Board committees are also required to be sent to
all Directors for record. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board

procedures and all applicable laws are followed.

Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all
Directors updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as

well as internal codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that she

had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"”) as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Directors are reminded of their obligations under the Model Code
on a regular basis. The Company has made specific enquiry of all
Directors and all Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout

the period under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
has been established on 8 November, 2010 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. In compliance with
the amendments to the Listing Rules which will become effective
on 1 April 2012, the Board adopted revised terms of reference for
the Audit Committee on 27 March 2012. The Audit Committee
comprises three members, all are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry (Chairman), Mr.
Zhou Chang Ren and Mr. Zhuo Ze Yuan.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are:

- To make recommendations to the Board on (i) the

appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditors; (ii) the audit fee and terms of engagement of the
external auditors; and (iii) any questions of resignation or

dismissal of that auditor

- To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in

accordance with applicable standards

- To monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the
Company and the Company’s annual report and accounts,
interim report and quarterly financial highlights, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained

in those reports

- To review the adequacy and monitor the effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control and

risk management systems.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management in
conjunction with the external auditor, the annual results and
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December,
2012, including the accounting policies and practice adopted by
the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Audit Committee
had performed their primary duties to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and the internal control procedures of
the Company. The Audit Committee has also held meeting with
the Company’s external auditors, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers
("PWC") without the presence of executive Directors and
management, to discuss matters arising from the auditing
and report to the Board on material issues, if any, and make

recommendations to the Board.
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The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit
Committee can be viewed on the website of the Company and the

website of the Stock Exchange.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) has been established on 8 November, 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. In
compliance with the amendments to the Listing Rules which will
become effective on 1 April 2012, the Board adopted revised
terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee on 27 March
2012. The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
namely Mr. Zhou Chang Ren (Chairman), Mr. Chen Zhi and Mr.
Wong Heung Ming, Henry, the majority of which are independent
non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to evaluate and make recommendations to the
Board regarding the remuneration packages to the Directors and
senior management which will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market

trends and practices.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are more specifically set out in its latest
terms of reference, details of which can be viewed on the website

of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the period under review:

(@) formulating and recommending the policy and structure of
the remuneration of the Directors and senior officers of the

Group to the Board;

(b) assessing individual performance of the Directors and senior

officers of the Group;
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(c) reviewing specific remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior officers of the Group with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives as well as individual

performances; and

(d) reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on

compensation-related issues.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) has been established on 8 November, 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. In
compliance with the amendments to the Listing Rules which will
become effective on 1 April 2012, the Board adopted revised
terms of reference for the Nomination Committee on 27 March
2012. The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
Mr. Chen Zhi

and Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry, the majority of which are

members, namely Mr. Zhuo Ze Yuan (Chairman),

independent non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee
selects and recommends the candidates for directorship shall base
on the criterion including professional knowledge, competence,

experience, independence and integrity.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee are more specifically set out in its latest
terms of reference, details of which can be viewed on the website

of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the

Nomination Committee during the period under review:

(@) reviewing and evaluating the composition of the Board
with reference to certain criteria. These criteria included
qualifications required under the Listing Rules or any other
relevant laws regarding characteristics and skills of the
Directors, professional ethics and integrity, appropriate

professional knowledge and industry experience, as well as

ability to devote sufficient time to the work of the Board and
its committees and to participate in all Board meetings and

shareholders’ meetings;

(b) reviewing and recommending the re-appointment of the
retiring Directors for reelection at the previous general

meeting; and

(c) assessing independence of the Independent Non-Executive

Directors.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December,
2012 which reflect true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company and the Group and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is
responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required

under the Listing Rules.

The Group appointed PWC as the Group's external auditor. The
statement by PWC regarding their reporting responsibility to the
shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 83

to 85 of this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, the remuneration
paid or payable to PWC for audit services, audit related services
and non-audit services amounted to RMB3,078,000 (2011:
RMB2,484,000), RMB1,027,000 (2011: RMB1,324,000) and
RMB9,000 (2011: RMB9,000) respectively.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and
the assets of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2012, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal

control system of the Group through the Audit Committee.

Corporate governance functions
The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate

governance duties as required under the Revised CG Code:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices

on corporate governance,

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior officers

of the Group;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(d) to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct

applicable to employees and the Directors; and
(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code

and the Revised CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate

Governance Report.
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During the period under review, the Board considered the

following corporate governance matters:

(i) review of the compliance with the CG Code and the Revised
CG Code; and

(i) review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and
risk management systems of the Group through the Audit

Committee.

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of effective communications
with shareholders and continues to act in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The Company keeps
shareholders and investors informed of its business performance
and strategies by adopting a transparent and timely disclosure
policy which complies with the Listing Rules and provides all
shareholders equal access to such information. The Company
also publishes all documents on the Company's website at

www.shifangholding.com

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “"AGM") also
provides a forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the
Shareholders directly. The Directors and the committee members

are available to answer questions during the AGM.

Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and related
papers were posted to shareholders of the Company for their
consideration at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM.
AGM proceedings of the Company are continually reviewed in the

light of corporate governance best practices.
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CODE PROVISION E.1.2

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Chen Zhi,
who acts as the chairman of the Company, was not able to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 22 May 2012
due to other business commitments. Instead, Mr. Yu Shi Quan, the
executive director of the Company was appointed as the chairman

of the Company during the annual general meeting.

Shareholders’ rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders
of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirements under Paragraph O of the
Revised CG Code which is effective from 1 April 2012.

(a) Convening of general meeting on requisition by

shareholders

General meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more members of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be
convened on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist,
provided that such requisitionist held as at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting

at general meetings of the Company.
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(b)

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date
of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting to be held within further 21 days, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly
as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of

the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (as amended from time to time)
or the articles of association of the Company. However,
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request
the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting

following the procedures set out above.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available on the Company’'s

website.
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(c) Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in
writing to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the

enquiries.
Constitutional documents

During the period under review, there had been no significant

change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shifang
Holding Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 228, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

Independent Auditor’s Report
T A Sl

£k Ak 8

BT AERERIARR
(REEHESEME LB BRA A])

AAZBED (AT [, 2 EAIERE
86E228A T HERARAT (A THMEIER
ADEENMBAR (RBIEXENAH
MBHmE WEHUBRREENR_F——F
T_A=T—"BWNEHNRREERBERER
EZRLFENAHEARER SHERE
PRMEHBATRER AR T EZSFHEMR
EREMMEREER -

3 A OF B 2 R 2R R IS Y AT

ERREFARARBERVBRSENR
FEEAREEG) R BERERES G
BR NSEHPBRRELAEEMATHR

B REBEERSRUESHYBRRALEN
A EBIR S A S I B RER T FEBRREKGE
oK $5 7R 1 8 B B K #5 sR BRULL

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Y8 3 i %

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only
for you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

BB R AR

As at 31 December 2012
BWZFE—ZF L H="1—H

2012 2011
—E--F —E——%F
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 2 ARET T ARETIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB k& 7 60,045 61,359
Investment properties wEME 8 - 1,975
Intangible assets EmEE 9 37,957 52,307
Available-for-sales investment A HERE 10 75,134 =
Interest in associates PABE & R B AR o 11 60,162 40,393
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIE ke &k
receivables E A fE kI8 13 431,250 447,500
___ 664,548 603,534
Current assets RBEE
Inventories "E 15 7,900 8,245
Assets held for sale REHEEE 14 44,969 29,336
Trade receivables — net B RINFIE - F5 12 206,478 259,669
Prepayments, deposits and other FEANRIE ke Rk
receivables H A fE kI8 13 309,851 294,649
Amounts due from related parties e U B8 A 5108 35(c) 8,900 4,829
Restricted cash 2 PR HI3E & 17 12,890 =
Cash and cash equivalents BehBSEEIEE 16 53,435 214,377
644,423 811,105
Total assets HWEE 1,308,971 1,414,639
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity AATEREEABLESR
holders of the Company
Share capital [N 22 72,687 62,863
Share premium f&% 57 & (B 22 556,440 530,900
Other reserves H b fE 23 110,813 104,017
Retained earnings R % A 278,891 421,265
1,018,831 1,119,045
Non-controlling interests IR = 43,174 37,005
Total equity ERAE 1,062,005 1,156,050
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
PP LR

As at 31 December 2012
W F—ZFEfZH="1—H

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 2 ARET T AREETIT
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Borrowings &3 19 - 1,006
Amount due to a related party B — R EE A LB 35(c) 51,441 68,600
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMSRatE 21 4,777 7,397
_____ 56,218 77,003
Current liabilities RBaE
Trade payables Z 5 I8 20 5,644 4,147
Other payables and accrued H M fE < 308 R
expenses Rt 20 96,598 86,668
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFT S B & 42,908 40,967
Borrowings (=R 19 44,539 48,522
Amounts due to related parties FE 8 E A L FR08 35(c) 1,059 1,282
___190,748 181,586
Total liabilities wEeE 246,966 258,589
Total equity and liabilities EZLEERE 1,308,971 1,414,639
Net current assets REEEFE 453,675 629,519
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBERE 1,118,223 1,233,053

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26

March 2013 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

Chen Zhi
BR &

Director

EF

The notes on pages 93 to 228 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

REFEGN _T—=F=ZRA-_+NBHAEIK
BT WA TIHNEERREFSES:

Hong Pei Feng

AR g

Director

EF

FI3E228E WM EBUL EHM B HRERNERE

N

o
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Balance Sheet
AR

As at 31 December 2012
RZFE—ZFfZH=1"—H

2012 2011
—2-=F —F——F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 2 ARET T AREFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RH B RRAIEE 24 5,118 5,118
5,118 5118
Current assets REBEE
Prepayment and other receivables TE T FRIE K H e YRR 13 26,789 26,789
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U Bf B A B FRIE 25 721,314 662,497
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEIEHR 16 372 1,675
___748475 690,961
Total assets BHEE 753,593 696,079
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity KATERFEEAELESR
holders of the Company
Share capital [N 22 72,687 62,863
Share premium I 17 5 B 22 556,440 530,900
Equity-based compensation reserve LA B% 8 7 25 18 1 57 M £ 23 12,986 10,624
Accumulated deficits ZETEA 23 (27,940) (19,238)
___ 614173 585149
Total equity ERBE 614,173 585,149
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables and accrued E b fE S FE R BRI X
expenses 20 28,528 27,710
Amounts due to subsidiaries R EENGIE O 25 110,892 83,220
___ 139420 110,930
Total liabilities wmaes 139,420 110,930
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Balance Sheet
AR

As at 31 December 2012
W F—ZFEfZH="1—H

2012 2011
—2-=F —F——F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

P & ARBTR ARETT

Total equity and liabilities EakBEAE
Net current assets REBEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities WEERRBERE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26
March 2013 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

753,593 696,079
609,055 580,031
614,173 585,149

REFEGN _T—=F=A-+NBHAELKR
BT WHATIHNEERREFSES:

Chen Zhi Hong Pei Feng
BR & I
Director Director
EE EE
The notes on pages 93 to 228 are an integral part of these  F93ZE228EHMM B EHBERENEE Y
financial statements. e

THERABRDE — T —_FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

O 2 i B

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE_FE— L H=A—HILEE
2012 2011
=F-—=F —E——F
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt & ARBT AR®T T
Revenues WA 5 377,242 529,034
Cost of sales 84 & A A 27 (265,367) (262,729)
Gross profit EF 111,875 266,305
Selling and marketing expenses SHE R EHAXT 27 (38,405) (38,049)
General and administrative expenses — M RITBAXZ 27 (207,910) (156,292)
Other gain H b Yz 26 12,060 =
Other income H Al WA 26 9,468 10,077
Operating (loss)/profit ge (F\R) B (112,912) 82,041
Finance income A U = 29 1,518 2,472
Finance costs A A A 29 (3,218) (1,687)
Finance (costs)/income — net & (RAR) Wz — 55 29 (1,700) 785
Share of profit/(loss) of associates FEAEEE N AR (E518) 11 501 (307)
(Loss)/profit before income tax METSRLAT (BE) 8RN (114,111) 82,519
Income tax expenses FriS%if < 30 (16,261) (23,498)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(EE) %R (130,372) 59,021
Other comprehensive income H i 2 H =
— Revaluation surplus —HHAH - -
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FRZ2H (FE) WHSHEHE
for the year (130,372) 59,021
(Loss)/profit attributable to: LT EERENG (BB, 8F
— Equity holders of the Company —ARBIREERFEA (137,940) 52,978
- Non-controlling interests — IR 7,568 6,043
(130,372) 59,021
Total comprehensive (loss)/income U TN JEBEEGEE
attributable to: (F518) e
— Equity holders of the Company —ARBIREERFEA (137,940) 52,978
— Non-controlling interests — IR 7,568 6,043
(130,372) 59,021
(Loss)/earnings per share for profit AR EER A ARG
attributable to equity holders of F’k(EB) &
the Company
— Basic (RMB per share) —EX(BRARE) 31 (0.1799) 0.0727
— Diluted (RMB per share) — B85 (BRARE) 31 (0.1799) 0.0727
Dividend &% 2 32 - -
The notes on pages 93 to 228 are an integral part of these £93F228E MM B It EH B ImK o EZEJ
financial statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

il 2 5 Bl %

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BEZF-ZF A= —HILFEE

Capital Equity-based Non-
Share Share  redemption Capital Revaluation compensation  Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserves reserve reserve reserves  earnings Total interests equity
HBREA
[ L
Bx  R#EE RERE  E58E  ERRE  FMBR  iRRE  REE & FEREE  EREE
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
i ARETR ARBTn ARMTR ARBTZ ARETZ ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2012 R-Z-—5-A-BhksH 62,863 530,900 997 60,454 919 10,624 31,03 421,265 1,119,045 37,005 1,156,050
Comprehensive income 2ENE
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER) /& - - - - - - - (131.940) (137,940 7568 (130372)
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEE - - - - - - - (137.940)  (137,940) 7568 (130,372)
Transactions with owners HEEANRS
Appropriation to statutory reserves SRR - - - - - - 4,434 (4434) - - =
Issue of ordinary shares for acquisition of ~ FEME-FHRERARTERR
an associate (Note 22(c) (Kr&E2200) 9,824 25,540 - - - - - - 35,364 - 35,364
Capital injection from non-controlling HEBARFERRRETE
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 1,133 1133
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHEAR - - - - - - - - - (2532) (2,532
Equity-based compensation WREBERMEH 37 - - - - - 2,362 - - 2,362 - 2,362
Total transactions with owners BEEANRHER 9,824 25,540 - - - 2362 4,434 (4,436) 31,726 (1,399) 36,327
Balance at 31 December 2012 RZE-ZF+-F=T-RHLH 12,681 556,440 997 60,454 919 12,986 35,457 278,891 1,018,831 3,174 1,062,005
Capital Equity-based Non-
Share Share  redemption Capital ~ Revaluation compensation Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserves reserve Teserve reserves eanings Total interests equity
IARER
& ER
hx  RGERE ROEE  AARE  ERER  EMEE  iERE Ehgl) &t FohEE  ERLE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wit ARETR ARBTn ARETR AREBTR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2011 RZB-—5--BNER 63860 540311 - 60,454 919 5263 U632 35615 1,071,114 472 1,071,586
Comprehensive income 2EUE
Profit for the year EREH = = = - - - - 52978 52978 6,043 59,021
Total comprehensive income PEhEEE - - - - - - - 52,978 52,978 6,043 59,021
Transactions with owners HEEANRS
Appropriation to statutory reserves HETEERE - - - - - - 6,391 (6,391) - - -
Capital injection from non-controlling HBARDFRRRRLE
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 30490 30490
Equity-based compensation SARRIE AR E 37 - - - - - 5,361 - - 5,361 - 5,361
Repurchase and cancellation of shares BEREERD (997) (9,411) 997 - - - - (997) (10,408) - (10,408)
Total transactions with owners BEEANRSEE (997) (9.411) 997 - - 5,361 6,391 (7,388) (5,047) 30,490 25483
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZE-——£+-B=+-A
nER 62,863 530,900 997 60,454 919 10,624 31,023 421,265 1,119,045 37,005 1,156,050

The notes on pages 93 to 228 are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

B PEBLa i R
For the year ended 31 December 2012
BEZF - ZH="A—HILFE

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 2 ARET T ARETFIT
Cash flows from operating activities & EZHFIERERE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &< %% (FTR),FERE 33(a) (42,715) 22,628
Interest received 2 W F B 29 1,518 2,472
Interest paid EATFE 29 (3,218) (1,687)
Income tax paid BT ER (16,940) (18,955)
Net cash (used in)/generated from me R (FrA), g
operating activities BEF8 (61,355) 4,458
Cash flows from investing activities REEZBFAESHRESRE
Prepayment for long term investments K HI1& & K FB (7B 13 - (75,000)
Acquisition of a business Uy B8 — 1B ZE TS 9 - (40,000)
Disposal of a subsidiary net of cash HE—MHB AR HRIRE (5,153) =
Investment in associates REEE N BRI E 11 (125,330) (40,700)
Proceeds from disposal of investment &R —EH & A A H)
in an associate HEFTISKIA 11 77.928 =
Prepayment for outdoor advertising FINELTIE B WTE N A
projects 13 (19,326) -
Additions of property, plant and ME BERZERE
equipment 7 (6,595) (18,806)
Additions of intangible assets BV EENE 9 (166) (8,575)
Deposits to newspaper publishers and 45 T ¥R 4% 1 R 75 LA 2 & 85 %
for marketing and promotion projects EEEENES 13 (17,500) (208,750)
Return of deposits from a marketing REZHEEEHEEENZRS
and promotion project 13 17,500 8,750
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BFE R
plant and equipment R FTIS BE 33(b) 70 154
Net cash used in investing activities WEEEFTAR 558 (78,572) (382,927)
Cash flows from financing activities BEZEEBFRAESHESHRE
Repurchase of shares of the Company BB AR & i H 22(a) - (10,408)
Proceeds from borrowings ERTSFIA 88,000 47,000
Repayment of borrowings BEBER (92,989) (52,079)
Advance from a related party —ZBEEANLTBER - 68,600
Capital contribution from non- FERERIEE
controlling interests 1,133 30,016
Repayment of advance from BE-—EBHEALTER
a related party (17,159) -
Payments for share issuance costs AT IR 1D B AT R AR - (36,284)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RVESEE) (FTA) 5
financing activities & F8 (21,015) 46,845
Net decrease in cash and cash BERBECESEEB RS FHE
equivalents (160,942) (331,624)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#IRE & KIS EEHEE
of the year 16 214,377 546,001
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRNEERBEEEEIEE
the year 53,435 214,377

FI3E228E WM EBUL EHM B HRERNERE

o

The notes on pages 93 to 228 are an integral part of these

N

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shifang Holding Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the business of publishing and
advertising (the “Publishing and Advertising Businesses”) in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands
on 9 December 2009 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (2009 Revision
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is PO
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman

Islands.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March
2013.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of Shifang
Holding Limited have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS™). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale

financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ Dk S 5 0 0 Wi ik

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEGHBORME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE (&)

RETABERY B REE NS G

94

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1.1 Going concern
During the year ended 31 December 2012,
the Group reported a loss for the year of
RMB130,372,000 and net operating cash
outflow of RMB61,355,000. The Group’s cash
and cash equivalents has also reduced by
RMB160,942,000 to RMB53,435,000 as at 31
December 2012. In addition, the Group has
borrowings of RMB44,539,000 that will be due
within twelve months from 31 December 2012.
Notwithstanding the above, the consolidated
financial statements are prepared on a going

concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Going concern (continued)

In order to strengthen the Group’s financial
position, management has implemented measures
to control operating costs and to tighten capital
expenditure and investment policies to improve
the Group’s cash flows. The board of directors
of the Company has reviewed the Group’s cash
flow projections prepared by management. The
projections cover a period of twelve months
from the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements. The projections make key
assumptions with regards to the anticipated cash
flows from the Group’s operations and availability
of future borrowing facilities, including the
renewal of existing borrowings. Based on these
cash flow projections, the Group will have
sufficient financial resources in the coming
twelve months to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due. The Group's ability
to achieve the projected cash flows depends on
management’s ability to successfully implement
initiatives to improve the Group's cash flows,
including measures to control and contain capital
expenditure, investments in new businesses
and corporate overheads, collect repayments of
deposits for marketing and promotion projects
according to agreed schedule, expedite receipt of
cash from customers to settle trade receivables,
and the successful renewal of existing borrowings

upon their due dates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ Dk S 5 0 0 Wi ik

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEGHBORME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE (&)

2.1.1 Going concern (continued) 211 BERKE (&)

The directors, after making due enquiries
and considering the basis of management’s
projections described above and after taking into
account the reasonably possible changes in the
operational performance, believe that there will
be sufficient financial resources available to the
Group at least in the coming twelve months to
meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due. Accordingly, the directors consider that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated

financial statements on a going concern basis.

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures

(a) New and amended standards effective in
2012
The Group has adopted the following
amended standards for the accounting

periods beginning on or after 1 January

2012:

IFRS 7 Disclosures - transfers of
(amendment) financial assets

IFRS 1 Severe hyperinflation and
(amendment) removal of fixed dates for

first-time adopters

IAS 12 Deferred tax — recovery of

(amendment) underlying assets
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (continued)

(a)

New and amended standards effective in
2012 (continued)

Amendment to IFRS 7, Disclosures —

transfers of financial assets

These amendments are as part the IASBs
comprehensive review of off balance
sheet activities. The amendments
promote transparency in the reporting of
transfer transactions and improve users’
understanding of the risk exposures relating
to transfers of financial assets and the
effect of those risks on an entity’s financial
position, particularly those involving

securitisation of financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o Pr I B R Bt
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEGFBORE (57)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE (&)
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and 128 BERRIBEESEN
disclosures (continued) 28 (&)
(a)  New and amended standards effective in (@) RZ-ZF——FEHH
2012 (continued) FTET RACIEZTEAY
(#)
Amendment to IFRS 1, Severe hyperinflation B B B s a5 AR R S8 155
and removal of fixed dates for first-time [BREREEERRMNM
adopters B R E MR EE R
Hi | VBT A
The first amendment replaces references FE-IRIERI AN [BEER
to a fixed date of ‘1 January 2004' with B B B 75 e 5 2E A EY B
‘the date of transition to IFRSs’, thus HIBREEERH =
eliminating the need for companies ZENF—A—H]HE
adopting IFRSs for the first time to restate it - e IERR B R AN E
derecognition transactions that occurred BRE R R EE R A
before the date of transition to IFRSs. The HEREZEBRRI KR
second amendment provides guidance on SR/ B BB AT £ 8
how an entity should resume presenting RIEFERR 5B 24
financial statements in accordance with E’Jaa% EIEEET AR
IFRSs after a period when the entity was RES SHAERBAOE
unable to comply with IFRSs because its HW@EEM%@ =l
functional currency was subject to severe BEWRY E 154
hyperinflation. Hv%ﬁ?ﬁ%‘Lﬁle“\ﬂﬁﬁ%

HREAE  BIRIER
1R 15 B R B 75 e o 2 A
WM BFEHRR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (continued)

(a)

New and amended standards effective in
2012 (continued)

Amendment to IAS 12, Deferred tax —

recovery of underlying assets

Currently IAS 12, ‘Income taxes’, requires an
entity to measure the deferred tax relating
to an asset depending on whether the entity
expects to recover the carrying amount
of the asset through use or sale. It can be
difficult and subjective to assess whether
recovery will be through use or through
sale when the asset is measured using
the fair value model in IAS 40 Investment
Property. Hence this amendment introduces
an exception to the existing principle for
the measurement of deferred tax assets or
liabilities arising on investment property
measured at fair value. As a result of the
amendments, SIC 21, ‘Income taxes—
recovery of revalued non-depreciable
assets’, would no longer apply to
investment properties carried at fair value.
The amendments also incorporate into
IAS 12 the remaining guidance previously
contained in SIC 21, which is accordingly

withdrawn.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o Pr I B R Bt
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEFFBORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEE (F)
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and 128 BERRIBEESEN
disclosures (continued) 28 (&)
(a)  New and amended standards effective in (@) RZ-ZF——FEHH
2012 (continued) FTET RACIEFTER)
(#&)
Amendment to IAS 12, Deferred tax - BIpR & s RIS 1258
recovery of underlying assets (continued) [EERIIA—HEEEN
YeEl | BRI A (48)
The adoption of these new and revised BRAN £ 3 AT RSB ET
IFRSs has not led to any significant changes B % Bt 75 2 Rl 3 4% 5| BX
in the accounting policies applied in these It & & 0F B 75 2k P E
consolidated financial statements, and has R8st B R A
no material effect on the Group’s results BEREE  NEHTNE
and financial position for the current or & OF B 7% i 2= P R B &Y
prior accounting periods reflected in these REBAHIBERE
consolidated financial statements. HIR B 25 48 R B IS AR
EREATE-
-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (continued)

(b)

Standards, amendments and interpretations

that are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Group

The following standards, amendments and

interpretations have been published and

are mandatory for the accounting periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2013 or

later periods, and the Group has not early

adopted.

IFRSs

(amendment)

[FRS 1
(amendment)
IFRS 7

(amendment)

IFRS 7

(amendment)

IFRS 9

Additions to

IFRS 9

IFRS 10

IFRS 11

IFRS 12

Improvements to IFRSs 2011

Government loans

Disclosures — offsetting
financial assets and
financial liabilities

Mandatory effective date
of IFRS 9 and transition

disclosures

Financial instruments

Financial instruments —
financial liabilities
Consolidated financial

statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosure of interests in

other entities
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o Pr I B R Bt
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEFFBORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE (&)
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and 128 BRRIBEESEN
disclosures (continued) 28 (&)
(b)  Standards, amendments and interpretations (b) B R AR 7N 5 [ AR
that are not yet effective and have not been TR ZER] - (EFT K
early adopted by the Group (continued) R2FE (&)
IFRS 10, IFRS 11 Consolidated financial BRUBREEN AHEHHRR
and IFRS 12 statements, joint 105 ERE  AERHRA
(amendment) arrangements and BREENEN HEEERY
disclosure of interests in TREREER RE BEE
other entities: Transition FEAENR K
guidance (B31%)
IFRS 10, Investment entities BRUBREEN REER
IFRS 12 and F105% EIRE
IAS 27 (2011) BRSED
(amendment) E1RREL
S EAEY
$(=F——F)
(B31%)
IFRS 13 Fair value measurements BREHEREREL AABENE
£135
IAS 1 Presentation of financial BReERE1E 2IHERR
(amendment) statements CHEY)
IAS 19 (2011) Employee benefits BReiEl  EERA
£19%
(Z2-——F%)
IAS 27 (2011) Separate financial statements A esrEd BUMERR
EE
(Z2-——F%)
I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (continued)

(b)

Standards, amendments and interpretations
that are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Group (continued)

IAS 28 (2011) Investments in associates and
joint ventures
IAS 32 Financial instruments:
(amendment) Presentation — Offsetting
financial assets and
financial liabilities
IFRIC Int 20 Stripping costs in the

production phase of a

surface mine

The Group has already commenced
an assessment of the impact of above
new standards, revised standards and
amendments to existing standards and
interpretations but is not yet in a position
to state whether the new standards, revised
standards and amendments to existing
standards and interpretations would have a
significant impact to its results of operations

and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ Dk S 5 0 0 Wi ik

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEFFIBORME ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements 2.2 SHEBBE®E

(a) Subsidiaries (a) MEBAE

104

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have more
than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by

virtue of de-facto control.

De-facto control may arise from circumstances
where it does not have more than 50% of the
voting power but is able to govern the financial
and operating policies by virtue of de-facto

control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that

control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income
and expenses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Profits and losses
resulting from inter-company transactions that
are recognised in assets are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 85 R B ik

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEGSEITBORME (51)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements 22 SOt EERR (&)
(continued)

(a) KMIEB2A (&)

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised

amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest over
the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If this consideration is lower than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or

loss.

ES =N
AEBERAREEREB A6
AfR- BB BRRNEREA
BRASEMEREE HK
WETREBAMELERER
BTN R EE - BE
REBRIABRELHIELDN
TREERAENAAEE
RESEHFTREE R BRI B E
MFrAEABEESA AR
FRNWE R B A EER
E-AKERZBENELEE
AR BESIZ IR RSP
R U EE 77 AT SRl B R E Y
ERER TR P - RN K
BB BT SRIE A M AR o

Uit s AR B A AR EE A B 51 A B
io

BEN SRR EEIEE
PriEz A A B E AT L PTI
B BRI EEFERPTAER
BRI E - MU R EER
BB AR EEREN A
AREE MIEBEREERARE

7
o

THERERATE —T——FFR

105



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEFFBORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements 22 SO KEERR (8)
(continued)

(a) BT (&)
HEHTE 2 7]
REBREEHER RER
B (E o] OR BB R 2 S HR K K HE
HlEE BN AR EBEEN
B EUEMAEZHEERR
WHER o Bt H 18 A BRI E B &
RNA EELRATREEN

subsequently accounting for the retained interest RBER EQAAEBEAYIG

BREE AN RRTREMmE

EREANEREZEEE @

FR&ERMNAEEE E#

HEFBEESBENTAA

ARG REERBSCRIEEM

2EREANERNCEETH

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is

the initial carrying amount for the purposes of

as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or

liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously

106

recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on

the basis of dividend and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 85 R B ik

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEGSEITBORME (51)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements 22 SOt EERR (&)
(continued)

(a) KMIEB2A (&)

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

Separate financial statements (continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements

of the investee's net assets including goodwill.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are

also eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEFFBORME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements 22 SO EERR (&)
(continued)

(b) BHEKEWEE

(b) Special purpose entities

108

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company, its
subsidiaries, and special purpose entities (“SPEs")
where the Company is deemed the primary
beneficiary. Fujian ShiFang, one of the Company's
wholly owned subsidiaries, entered into separate
contractual agreements with Beijing HongXinTu
and BaiChuanDuKe (together, the “Structural
Agreements”), where Fujian ShiFang provides
consulting services to Beijing HongXinTu and
BaiChuanDuKe and is entitled to (1) receive a
substantial portion of the economic benefits
from Beijing HongXinTu and BaiChuanDuKe; (2)
exercise effective control over Beijing HongXinTu
and BaiChuanDuKe, and (3) have an exclusive
option to purchase all or part of the equity
interests in Beijing HongXinTu and BaiChuanDuKe
when and to the extent permitted by the PRC
laws. By virtue of the contractual arrangements,
Beijing HongXinTu and BaiChuanDuKe are
SPEs and deemed as subsidiaries of the
Company under the requirements of Standing
Interpretations Committee No.12 (“SIC-12"),

“Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

(b) Special purpose entities (continued)

When assessing whether to combine an SPE, the
Group evaluates a range of factors, including
whether (1) the activities of the SPE are being
conducted on behalf of the Group according
to its specific business needs so that the Group
obtains the benefits from the SPE’s operations, (2)
the Group has decision-making powers to obtain
the majority of the benefits, (3) the Group obtains
the majority of the benefits of the activities of
the SPE, and (4) the Group retains the majority of
the residual ownership risks related to the assets
in order to obtain the benefits from its activities.
The Group consolidates an SPE if an assessment
of the relevant factors indicates that it controls
the SPE.

Based on the contractual arrangements, the
Company consolidated the results, assets
and liabilities of Beijing HongXinTu and
BaiChuanDuKe in financial statements of Shifang

Holding Limited.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEFEBORME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements 22 SO EERR (&)
(continued)

() BHEEBWELSH

(c¢) Business combinations under common

110

control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statement items of the combining
entities or businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been
consolidated from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control

of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or
businesses are consolidated using the existing
book values from the controlling parties’
perspective. No amount is recognised in respect
of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at
the time of common control combination, to
the extent of the contribution of the controlling
party's interest. All differences between the
cost of acquisition (fair value of consideration
paid) and the amounts at which the assets and
liabilities are recorded have been recognised

directly in equity as part of the capital reserve.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive
income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest
date presented or since the date when combining
entities or business first came under common
control, where this is a shorter period, regardless

of the date of the common control combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Business combinations under common
control (continued)

The comparative amounts in the financial
statements are presented as if the entities or
business had been consolidated at the earliest
balance sheet date presented or when they first
came under common control, whichever is the

later.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between the
combining entities or businesses are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated but
considered as an impairment indicator of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.

Transactions with non-controlling
interest

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interest as transactions with equity
holders of the Company. For purchases from
non-controlling interest, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling interest are also

recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ Dk S 5 o0 Wi ik

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEFFBORME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements 22 SO EERR (&)
(continued)

(e) Hﬁﬁ#ﬂ/’\ﬁ

(e) Associates

112

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after
the date of acquisition. The Group's investment
in associates includes goodwill identified on

acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is

reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

(e) Associates (continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of associates’ in

the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the Group's
financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments
in associates are recognised in the income

statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FTEGEIBRMEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Segment reporting

BiIZEREZEEREA

Operating segments are reported in a manner K E
consistent with the internal reporting provided to EXS *Lﬁ%*ﬁ/\J)T’EW“ﬂiﬂi%
the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The —HHAAER - TELEREA

BENEERRTZK %ﬁiﬁﬂﬁi’%
- %&WL\EEQE\{FﬁﬁﬁED>;\LEE«]
Exg([EF2g])-

CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors (the “Board"”)

that makes strategic decisions.

SR E
(a) WERZIEH

2.4 Foreign currency translation 2.4

(a) Functional and presentation currency

114

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the

currency of the primary economic environment

AEEE TR BBV BHRKGT
ARIER PR EREEM
EXIELBERENBITEY

in which the entity operates (the “functional ([hee %) 58 - &0t T5
currency”). The consolidated financial statements WMEAARE(TARE]Z
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is 5 - MARBRARENEE
the Company's functional and the Group's MEAEEZT G-
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances (b) XE K&
Foreign currency transactions are translated INERZ SRR S5 E B E

into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

(c)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
are presented in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income within ‘Finance income or
cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income within ‘Other gains/

(losses) — net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate

at the date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on

the dates of the transactions); and

(iiiy all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ Dk S 5 8 o B ik

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation
is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss

on sale.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of comprehensive income

during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 85 R B ik

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEFFBORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 25 YE-BREREE (&

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated

useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 40 years
Leasehold 5 — 10 years or the remaining
improvements term of any non-renewable

lease, whichever is shorter

Machinery 5 - 10 years
Fixture, furniture 5 years

and equipment
Motor vehicles 5 - 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘General and administrative
expenses’ in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ Dk S 5 8 o B ik

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEFFITBORBE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Investment properties

26 REME

118

Property that is held for long-term rental yields
and is not occupied by the Group is classified as
investment property. Land held under operating
leases is accounted for as investment properties
when the rest of the definition of an investment
property is met. In such cases, the operating leases
concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases. Investment property is initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition at cost investment properties are carried at
fair value, representing open market value determined
at each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific asset. If the information is not available,
the Group uses alternative valuation methods such as
recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash
flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

as part of “Other gains/losses, net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and represents the excess
of the consideration transferred over the Group's
interest in net fair value of the net identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and
the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the

acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored

at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not

subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEFFITBORBE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (continued) 27 BREE (&)

120

Trademarks and licences

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown
at historical cost. Trademarks and licences acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Trademarks and licences have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of trademarks
and licences over their estimated useful lives of seven

years.

Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. The contractual customer relations
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate over the
expected life of the customer relationship of three

years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (continued)
Computer software and web site
Costs associated with maintaining computer software
program and web site are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable
and unique computer software and web site controlled
by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when

the following criteria are met:

o It is technically feasible to complete the computer
software and web site so that they will be

available for use;

o Management intends to complete the computer

software and web site, and use or sell them;

o There is an ability to use or sell the computer

software and web site;

o It can be demonstrated how the computer
software and web site will generate probable

future economic benefits;

° Adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell
the computer software and web site are available;

and

o The expenditure attributable to the computer
software and web site during their development

can be reliably measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEFGEIBORME (F)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (continued)

27 BREE (&)

122

Computer software and web site (continued)
Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of
the computer software and web site cost include the

development employee costs.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense

are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software and web site costs recognised as
assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives
and the terms of validity granted by corresponding

authorities, which are three years.

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible
assets is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised as

an expense as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Assets held for sale

Assets are classified as assets held for sale when their
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through
a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale

transaction rather than through continuing use.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGFIBORME ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Financial assets

210 MEE

2.10.1 Classification 2101 038

124

The Group classifies its financial assets in the

following categories: loans and receivables and

available for sale. The classification depends

on the purpose for which the financial assets

were acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.

(a)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative

financial assets with fixed or determinable

AEERKESREEFEATSD
1B B R IR DA B A i
HESREE -EENRTIER
FEACREENEOME
EEENNTERSRE ER

BEENSE-

(a)

B R ERZE
EREEWHREREE
EHAEEMNKARE

payments that are not quoted in an active EERMS EMENIE
market. They are included in current assets, MESHEE-LEX
except for the amounts that are settled HREERBDEEA -

or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group's loans and receivables
comprise ‘Trade and other receivables’,
‘Restricted cash’ and ‘Cash and cash
equivalents’ in the balance sheet (Notes

2.13 and 2.14).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 85 R B ik

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGFIBORME (H)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Financial assets (continued)

210 MEE (&)
2101 9% (&)

2.10.1 Classification (continued)

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting
period

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or

loss.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ Dk S 5 o0 Wi ik

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEFFBORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Impairment of financial assets 21N EMEERME
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost () BHBERXRIENEE

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting AEEREREHRTHRS
period whether there is objective evidence that EEHERRA—HE—E2
a financial asset or group of financial assets is BEEHBRE - ERNEREE
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial BRENABEEETY S HRE
assets is impaired and impairment losses are BE—BREZEEH([BIE
incurred only if there is objective evidence of E]) IR EE - W aESE]
impairment as a result of one or more events that SEErEBEEHE —BES—A
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset CRMEEMTARARRESRERS
(@ “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) R 2R 2B A S R
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows BEFERELELEREES
of the financial asset or group of financial assets e

that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that AEBANEERGEREE

there is objective evidence of an impairment loss BESLRBEEENEL S

include: =

e Significant financial difficulty of the issuer s BITASEBABER
or obligor; B 75 IR £

e A breach of contract, such as a default s  ERAHK MR
or delinquency in interest or principal FE SRS FIA
payments;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

(continued)

The Group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that

the lender would not otherwise consider;

It becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial

difficulties; or

Observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a portfolio of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets

in the portfolio, including:

(i)  adverse changes in the payment status

of borrowers in the portfolio; and

(i)  national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the

assets in the portfolio.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEFFBORME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 21N EMEERE (&)
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost () BHBERXRIENEE
(continued) (#&)
The Group first assesses whether objective AEEEETEREFLRAEAE
evidence of impairment exists. KRB
The amount of the loss is measured as the EEcHEREERAERERS
difference between the asset’s carrying amount B EERE R A KA IR A
and the present value of estimated future cash FFARRBEeRERE (TR
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not MAEEMRRKEESE) Z
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s MHNEEFE - AERAES
original effective interest rate. The carrying TUAHIR MEBESEENE
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount R RNER - W E RIZF
of the loss is recognised in the statement of BF X B Rt 2 (TRE
comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable EENMRESRBENEE
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any B E R BRI R - EREE
impairment loss is the current effective interest L AREE AR BRME
rate determined under the contract. As a practical BEENITAEAABERELES
expedient, the Group may measure impairment ERE

on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an

observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the i 1B &5 98 & B AE 11 12 BRREVRL
impairment loss decreases and the decrease >+ RIE 71 AT B A SRR (B 1R B
can be related objectively to an event occurring EMEMHBERERAE (FIRE
after the impairment was recognised (such as BAGEFRHE)  ARZE
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), H Wz = AR BT B R A
the reversal of the previously recognised BB B E -

impairment loss is recognised in the statement of

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(b) Assets classified as available for sale
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as available for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

2.12 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises
newsprint paper and printing consumables. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.

B 85 R B ik
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEFFITBORBE (H)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Trade and other receivables 21B3ES R HMEWRIE

130

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for

impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three

months or less.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,

from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to owners of the Company until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares
are subsequently reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects, is included in

equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 85 R B ik

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEIBURME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Trade payables 2.16 EZ B FIE

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.

Trade payable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the

effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEFFBORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 218 ENEARIEF B8 (&)
(a) Current income tax (a) BNHAFRBH

The current income tax charge is calculated on BVERFT S M B iR AR
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially EIRE YA DS RN
enacted at the balance sheet date in the & BT TE I R A B AR A A Y
countries where the Company, its subsidiaries and KAREE AE B E R
associate operate and generate taxable income. BB LT E - B 1R E T B
Management periodically evaluates positions BRI HRAGRE
taken in tax returns with respect to situations R DA R = = o A
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to HeoBEREGENREHHEMB
interpretation. It establishes provisions where BB RS ERE S R
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to A

be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax (b) ELERBHR

Inside basis differences A TEEE

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the BIEFTB R T A BB AR R
liability method, on temporary differences arising BEABRMNMEENS HIB
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities HFRANMEREE 2R ES
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated BOE B R R o AT - A IR
financial statements. However, deferred tax ERIE B EREEB LSRR
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from MES A THERELETIAR
the initial recognition of goodwill. The deferred B WiEEMSHE-—RR S
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from (MIEEBEH)PREES
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a BELVILERmESE (M
transaction other than a business combination BER ZERTEH S ER
that at the time of the transaction affects neither TmAskEEEXTE) 8l
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred T EEIRELEFTETAR R
income tax is determined using tax rates (and FRS R T ARG E B B 58 3k
laws) that have been enacted or substantially BARBEM  WEHSNE S
enacted by the balance sheet date and are B FTIS I & B 2 IR R iR
expected to apply when the related deferred TEFrEHRaBEERERNT
income tax asset is realised or the deferred E(RBE)EE -

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only REIEFT ST B EE AR RER
to the extent that it is probable that future Tt a2 18 ) RE 4 BT B = RE A AE
taxable profit will be available against which the 1 35 BF B R o

temporary differences can be utilised.

132 SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 85 R B ik

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a

net basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEFFITBORBE (H)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Employee benefits 219EEEF

(a) Pension obligations (a) EBHKRE&EME

134

Full time employees of the PRC entities
participate in a government mandated
multiemployer defined contribution plan pursuant
to which certain pension benefits, medical care,
unemployment insurance, employee housing
fund and other welfare benefits are provided to
employees. Chinese labor regulations require the
Company to accrue for these benefits based on
certain percentages of the employees’ salaries.
Management believes full time employees who
have passed the probation period are entitled to

such benefits.

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is

available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Employee leaves entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave and long service payment as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the
reporting date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until

the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on performance and takes
into consideration the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive

obligation.

Equity-based compensation

The Group operates employee share option
scheme, under which the entity receives services
from eligible participants as consideration
for options to acquire ordinary shares of the

Company.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEFFITBORBE (H)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (continued) 219 EEEF (&)

(d) ARESERNOZFH ()

(d) Equity-based compensation (continued)

136

The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair

value of the options granted:

° including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity's share

price);

o excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the

entity over a specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for

employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income, with a corresponding

adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(d) Equity-based compensation (continued)
The cash subscribed for the shares issued when
the options are exercised is credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium, net of
any directly attributable transaction costs. When
the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share

premium.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEFFITBORBE (H)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition

221 W AR

138

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of services in the
ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’'s activities as described below. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Publishing and advertising
The Group's role in the provision of services on
publishing and advertising is that of a principal.
When deciding the most appropriate basis for
presenting revenue or costs of revenue, both
the legal form and substance of the agreement
between the Group and its business partners are
reviewed to determine each party’s respective role

in the transaction.

Hence, revenue from publishing and advertising
services is recognised on a gross basis when
services are rendered for the creation, production
and placement of advertising materials through

all media.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) Barter transaction

(c)

When services are exchanged or swapped for
services which are of a similar nature and value,
the exchange is not regarded as a revenue

generating transaction.

When services are rendered in exchange for
dissimilar services, the exchange is regarded as
a revenue generating transaction. The revenue
is measured at the fair value of the services
received, adjusted by the amount of any cash
or cash equivalents transferred. When the fair
value of the services received cannot be measured
reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value
of the services provided in a barter transaction,
by reference to non-barter transaction involving
similar services, adjusted by the amount of any

cash or cash equivalents transferred.

Online Services

Revenue from online services is recognised when
the services, including electronic publications,
online advertisements and website maintenance
and technical services, are rendered. Revenue
from online services provided over fixed periods
is recognised on straight-line basis over the

respective period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEESEITBORME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Revenue recognition (continued) 221 ABER (&)
(d) Marketing, distribution management, (d) 28 2#HEE BHEAK
consulting and printing services EN il Bl 7%
Revenue from marketing, distribution B - 9 8H B BRI BN AR 75 LK
management and printing services is recognised ARBRBRN T 5 R#ER -

as the services are delivered to the customers.

(e) Rental income (e) HEWA
Rental income from investment properties is FEWMENHESBRARBEA
recognised in the statement of comprehensive REGEETZE KRR AR
income on a straight-line basis over the term of R o
the lease.
2.22 Government grants 2.22 AT %5 B
Grants from the government are recognised at fair fitl B & TR AR 78 1% B 15 AT #7 B K2 AR
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the SEEFEMAMSGRE S
grant will be received and the Group will comply with WHBEARBERER -

all attached conditions.

Government grants receivable are recognised as FEW TR BIR L EERE Rt
income over the periods necessary to match them MR AUWA - DA (B ) A
with the related costs which they are intended to & M AE A o B2 2 AB A &0 BT 44 B
compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants B2V AEMEA -

relating to expenses are shown separately as other

income.
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B 85 R B ik

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEIBURME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Leases 223 E

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the

period of the lease.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The Group has not used any
derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk

exposures.

WFEE A A B AR R AR
M b BT RE - MEEIRESE
HE-RELERENHREARE
B aHET KRB ENERS
®-REMAZEREESEERK
R R -

2.24 R B 5k

A 8 2 B BUR 0 k B B B B B 7
AABRRKES (WER ) HED
HRARARE RAR RO M R
RARBRAE-

3 T e B B

3.1

ot % R B R &

REBOEBAZZBMBHRAR
mEER (EREEERR QB
BENEERE HRENEER R
ERRER) EFERRIASHESRE
- AEENERBEARERFEE
RRERTIEN AR ERER I
SRKEEREHAKEHHRIRDN
BEATNZE NEBYERBE
I 074 & B T B 85 H A 3 & &

B o
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o PF I B R Bk
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 B B B (4H)
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEEKEE (F)
(a) Market risk (a) WA

(i) Foreign exchange risk (i) ShEE R
The Group operates principally in the PRC. AEBFEGEHPRHLE
Majority of recognised assets and liabilities (1% DR AEH B
are denominated in RMB and majority ERBEHUARKESD]
of transactions are settled in RMB. The B BEREBHRGHAA
Group does not hold or issue any derivative REBEE - AEBWER
financial instruments to manage its BRBETEMNTESR
exposure to foreign currency risk. TEA  ABEEMEE

SN [z Bz
As at 31 December 2012, the Group has RZE—ZF+= A
cash deposit denominated in US dollar =+—H Xx&EEHEHF
and HK dollar. If RMB had weakened/ AE T RETFENR
strengthened by 2% against US dollar with SFER A H A&
all other variables held constant, pre-tax HEFTIENBERLT
results for the year ended 31 December WMARMNETLRE
2012 would have been approximately FE2% BHEZT—=
RMB1,000 (2011: RMB7,000) higher/lower, F+-_A=+—HLILHF
mainly as a result of foreign exchange EORaEEe LA
gains/losses on translation of the US dollar T4 ANEKE®1,0007T
denominated cash deposit. If RMB had (ZE2E——F AR
weakened/strengthened by 2% against 7,0007C) W EEH
HK dollar with all other variables held RE LR TAHENR
constant, pre-tax results for the year SERKINE Wz B
ended 31 December 2012 would have BAR-EMBEHEME
been approximately RMB10,000 (2011: HERTENERLT
RMB36,000) higher/lower, mainly as a MARB LB TERE
result of foreign exchange gain/losses and AE2% HE—_T—=
translation of the HK dollar denominated F+-—A=+—HIEF
cash deposit. EHRATEES EH

T &% AR #10,0007T
(ZF——F: AR¥
36,0007T) * LTS E B
P SN s 5 5 18 I R
BUAATHENRERTF
TR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(1)

(iif)

Price risk

The Group's available-for-sale financial asset
represents a holding of equities in another
entity of which the equity instruments are
unquoted and not traded in active markets.
Hence, the Group is not exposed to any
equity securities price risk or commodity

price risk.

The available-for-sale financial asset is held
for strategic rather than trading purpose.
The Group does not actively trade this

investment.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly
from bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk which is partially offset
by cash held at variable rates. Borrowings
issued at fixed rates expose the Group to

fair value interest rate risk.

3
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£ DF I B R Bk
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1 Financial

risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iif)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rate risk on its variable rate bank
deposits and borrowings at the balance
sheet date and prepared assuming the
amount of bank deposits and borrowings
outstanding at each balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year.

At 31 December 2012, if interest rates
had been 100 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant,
the Group's pre-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2012, would have
been RMB445,000 higher/lower (2011:
RMB495,000 lower/higher the Group's pre-
tax profit), mainly as a result of higher/lower

interest expense on the borrowings.

Compared to 31 December 2011, there
was no material change in the interest-
bearing borrowings of the Group other than
the repayment of short-term borrowings in

amount of RMB92,989,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on group basis. Credit
risk primarily arises from trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from related parties, restricted cash,

and cash and cash equivalents.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade receivables. The Group generally
grants to its advertising customers a credit
period ranging from one month to one year after
delivery of the relevant advertising services. The
length of the credit period the Group grants to
its customers varies by industry and is driven by
credit periods granted by its competitors. The
Group grants customers from industries such as
real estate, automotive and telecommunications
as well as those with national brand names and
its long-term customers with large orders longer
credit periods. For short-term customers with
small orders, out-of-province customers that do
not have well-known brand names, classified
advertising customers and secondary advertising
agents (excluding 4A companies), the Group
usually requests that the contractual amount be

paid in full prior to delivery of service.

3
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has a credit policy with established
procedures in place, which it reviews from time
to time. The Group’s credit management team
assigns internal credit ratings to customers after
evaluation of their creditworthiness through
assessment of their particulars including business
licenses, certifications and credit rating reports
and considering factors such as operating status,
business condition, profitability, indebtedness
and assets. These internal credit ratings are used
to determine the credit-related clauses in the
sales contracts signed with customers. The Group
also prepares regular credit reports to update
its understanding of the customer’s operating
conditions and business information for better
risk management in relation to bad debts. In the
event the credit rating of a particular customer
drops after the Group’s review, it may adopt
measures such as settlement of its fee through
barter transactions, requesting the customer
to provide or procure a guarantor to provide
security or reducing the customer’s advertisement

publication volume.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group makes allowance for doubtful
accounts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade receivable, including
the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. During the
year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has
assessed the recoverability of its trade receivables
and made impairment provision for certain trade
receivables where the recoverability has become
less than probable. Details of allowance for
doubtful trade receivables are set out in note 12.
Determining the allowance involves significant
management judgements and estimates about
and, by definition, would seldom equal to actual
results. Any difference between management'’s
estimates of the recoverability of trade receivables
and the amounts that the Group eventually

recovers will impact the Group's profit or loss.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relates to a number of independent customers
with satisfactory repayment history and no recent
history of default. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's cash (including restricted cash) and
bank deposits are entered into a number of major
banks in the PRC. Counterparties’ credit risks
are carefully reviewed and in general, the Group
only deals with financial institutions with low
credit risk. The amount of counterparties’ lending
exposure to the Group is also an important

consideration as a means to control credit risk.

In relation to the deposits and other receivables,
the credit quality of the debtors is assessed
by taking into account their financial position,
relationship with the Group, credit history and
other factors. Management will also regularly
review the recoverability of these deposits and
other receivables and follow up the disputes or
amounts overdue, if any. The directors are of the
opinion that the default by counterparties is low

in general.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements for
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.
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(continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E: &S
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 B A PR (A)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEERBER (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) "BELRA (&)
The table below analyses the Group's financial TRLBEHRAZREZESAE
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based HE IERAEE BAEEH
on the remaining period at the balance sheet TRAEE S AHBREEA
date to the contractual maturity date. The AEA - RPERBENSES
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BHRBIRE S - AL
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due over 12 VR BN K - i 218 A 1% B A
months equal their carrying balances, as the MBS N EARE Ao
impact of discounting is not significant.
Group rEE
Less than
1 year Over 1 year Total
—ENR —FUE Bt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETF T ARETTT
At 31 December 2012 R-2-—-F
+=A=+—H
Trade and other payables 25 REMEM IR 52,483 - 52,483
Borrowings L 46,277 - 46,277
Amounts due to directors JEREEHRIE 1,059 - 1,059
Amounts due to a related party fEff — % EEA LHB - 51,441 51,441
99,819 51,441 151,260
At 31 December 2011 R-2——F
+=A=+—H
Trade and other payables BHREMENFE 44,098 - 44,098
Borrowings EE 50,371 - 50,371
Amounts due to directors JEREEHRIE 758 - 758
Amounts due to related parties JE{B8:# A + 3B 524 68,600 69,124
95,751 68,600 164,351
THERERAT —F - _FFH
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

3

S 25 D o A B ()

3.1 MBEREE (&)
(o) RBEZRMR (F)

Company AT
Less than
1 year Over 1 year Total
—FHUR —FHLE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®ET T ARBT T
At 31 December 2012 R=E-=F
+=A=+—H
Other payables L AN 26,912 - 26,912
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FEfI K B2 B1FE 110,892 - 110,892

At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——F
t=ZA=t-H
Other payables H A & (T 508

Amounts due to subsidiaries  FEFTHT B A 7 HIA

3.2 Capital risk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (continued)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total assets, as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet. During the year, the Group’s strategy
was to maintain a gearing ratio below 40%. The

gearing ratios as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 were

B 85 R B ik

S 25 D o A B ()

3.2 EXERER (&)

$$@ﬁ%§%%%m$%$é
Kozt XA HEERBERMT
B & SRAR R RR M@ﬁFJE'KE
BRFARNKEESEEARBLE
ﬁ%EM%MT°%:§—:¢&
—E-—f+-_A=+—BNEE

as follows: BERERNMAT:
2012 2011
—g-=-% —T——&
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT R AR¥T T
Borrowings B 44,539 49,528
Amounts due to related parties FET A E A T 5IE - 157
Total borrowings (EEECE 44,539 49,685
Total assets BEE 1,308,971 1,414,639
Gearing ratio BEABLX 3.4% 3.5%

Gearing ratio as at 31 December 2012 decreased
as compared to 31 December 2011 primarily due to

repayment of borrowings during the year.

B =—Z——F+=ZA=+—8"
EEABHER _T——F+_A
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MBI (TR -
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152

as all of them are short-term in nature: cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, trade
and other payables, borrowings and amounts due to

related parties.

The Group's available-for sale financial asset is
measured at fair value, by valuation method. The
Group classifies fair value measurements by level of the

following fair value measurement hierarchy:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).
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(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AREBEME
The carrying amounts of the following financial assets NTemEEReMABENEERS
and financial liabilities approximate their fair values HEHEQNABEES  LIHARE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the group’s assets

and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31
December 2012 (2011: nil).

B 85 R B ik

S 25 D o A B ()

RAREEMS (&)
TREVNAEER-_T——F+=
A=+—HBRAAEBEFENEE
RBE(ZE——F E) -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B EZR E=R Mgt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT ARET ARETT
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial AHNESHEE
assets
- Equity securities —RAEH 75,134 - 75,134
Total assets BEE 75,134 = 75,134
The fair value of the available-for-sale financial asset A ESREEN_T—=_F

as at 31 December 2012 is disclosed in Note 10. The
financial asset is categorised in level 2 and its fair value
is measured with reference to the transaction price

from recent transaction for identical asset.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the group
is the current bid price. These instruments are included
in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise
primarily DAX, FTSE 100 and Dow Jones equity
investments classified as trading securities or available-

for-sale.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation technigues maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included

in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in

level 3.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets
amongst level 1, level 2 and level 3 fair value hierarchy

classifications.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are addressed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue recognition for barter transactions

When services are rendered in exchange for dissimilar
goods or services, such as when the Group receives
the rights to sell or receive the proceeds of a sale
of real estate properties in exchange for advertising
services the Group provided to certain of the real estate
industry customers, the exchange is regarded as a
revenue generating transaction. The revenue from such
barter transactions is measured at the fair value of the
related real estate properties received, adjusted by the
amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred.
When the fair value of the rights to the real estate
properties received cannot be measured reliably, the
revenue is measured at the fair value of the goods
or services provided in the barter transactions, by
reference to non-barter transaction involving similar
goods or services, adjusted by the amount of any cash

or cash equivalents transferred.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Group makes allowance for doubtful accounts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the
trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where
the actual result is different from the original estimate,
such a difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and bad and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has been
changed. If the financial conditions of the debtors
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowances may
be required. Detail of allowance for doubtful accounts

is described in Note 12.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Recoverability of prepayments and deposits
The Group has made prepayments and deposits in
respect of exclusive agreements with newspaper
publishers and exclusive marketing and promotion
projects. Further, the Group has made prepayments for
the potential establishment of jointly controlled entities
with certain newspaper publishers.

The Group assesses material prepayments and deposits
on a case-by-case basis to determine whether there
is objective evidence that these assets are impaired.
Management considers the counterparty's reputation,
credit profile and the Group's ability to generate
economic benefits from utilising the prepayments in
the future in reviewing the assets for impairment.
For those prepayments and deposits where objective
evidence of impairment exists, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amounts of these assets and the present
value of the estimate cash flows to be generated from
utilisation of these assets discounted at the current
market rate of similar assets.

Management considered that reasonably possible
changes in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount of the prepayments and deposits
are based would not significantly affect the Group's
financial position and results of operations.

Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
income tax provision and deferred income tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination
is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(e)

Impairment of assets

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” to determine when assets are impaired,
which requires significant judgment. In making this
judgment, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration and extent to which the recoverable
amount of assets is less than their carrying balance,
including factors such as the industry performance
and changes in operational and financing cash flows.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest level for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (a CGU). The
recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates, including operating
results, income and expenses of the business, future
economic conditions on growth rates and future

returns.

Reasonably possible changes in the key assumptions on
which the recoverable amount of the assets is based
would not significantly affect the Group’s financial

position and results of operations.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 Bkl SR (A)
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
(f) Estimated fair values of investment (f) REVEMRLATLIAEBE
properties
Investment properties are stated at fair value based KEMERBBIEESEKME
on the valuation performed by an independent and REITH M ER A BB R

professionally qualified valuer.

In determining the fair value, the valuer has based REEAAEBER GEMKEY
on property valuation techniques which involve, XEERM ER LR (AP 8E)
inter alia, certain estimates including comparable ET A BERAEMSERAMTE
sales in the relevant market, current market rents for J:I:Fﬁﬁ’% ° @Eﬁﬂﬁiﬂiﬂu%%ﬁ@
similar properties in the same location and condition, EAMEES BENTHEEXREE
appropriate discount rates and expected future market ATARRMERS KBHERSH
rents. In relying on the valuation report, management Ak EEECERAEAEN  XE
has exercised their judgement and is satisfied that the M E T AR R E BT TR ©
method of valuation is reflective of the current market
condition.

(g) Contingent liabilities from on-going (9) REXRTHEHFALANIEEE
litigations
The Group follows the guidance of IAS 37 “Provisions, NEEERBEIER et £ E375%
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” to [BE BEBERIEBEEE]NIE
determine when should contingent liabilities be SIEERMEFERKE &E Mk
recognised, which requires significant judgment. R ZE/E B K -
A contingent liability will be disclosed when a possible ERAEELERMT HEGTEHES
obligation has arisen, but its existence has to be BB RIENE BT RIRE
confirmed by future events outside the Group's control, HHEE BN EREEMY
or when it is not possible to calculate the amount. e BlgRERFAE - EAB A
Realisation of any contingent liabilities not currently AREERABENXEEE—BE
recognised or disclosed could have a material impact IR - ¥ ] B AN 5 B B BA ISR 0 AR
on the Group's financial position. PREANFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(9)

(h)

Contingent liabilities from on-going
litigations (continued)

The Group reviews significant outstanding litigations
in order to assess the need for provisions. Among the
factors considered, are the nature of the litigation,
legal processes and potential level of damages, the
opinions and views of the legal counsel, and the
management’s intentions to respond to the litigations.
To the extent the estimates and judgements do not
reflect the actual outcome, this could materially affect
the results for the period and the financial position. As
at 31 December 2012, the Group has several major on-
going litigations. The details of these litigations and the
Group’s assessment of the effect to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 38.

Fair value of available-for-sale financial asset
The fair value of available-for-sale financial asset that is
not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgment to
select a variety of methods and market assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at
the end of each reporting period that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty. The Group
has measured the fair value of its available-for-sale
investment with reference to the transaction price from
recent transaction for identical asset. Changes in these
estimates and assumptions could have a material effect
on the fair value of the available-for-sale financial

asset.
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5 REVENUES 5 WA

Revenues from external customers are derived from the REIBEFHBRARAMFEESE
provision of newspaper advertising services to advertisers in FPRHEBEESRSE AERS (21
the PRC, online services, including electronic dissemination AR ) B E T 9 B K [\ 3RAR AR P e
of publication and provision of online system development WERGRERDG) URRBHEHE 9
services to newspaper publishers, and the provision of HER FBRMIARERS ERERESRE
marketing, distribution management, consulting and printing HOARPINEERBRES HEZT
services, television and radio advertising, and outdoor ——®+-A=+—BHItEE KEEH
advertising services and activities. The amount of the AEFERAEEAHENESERAR
Group's five largest customers in aggregate to the Group’s #100,378,000t (ZZE ——F: AR
total sales are RMB100,378,000 for the year ended 31 74,249,0007T) ©

December 2012 (2011: RMB74,249,000).

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Newspaper advertising WMEES 256,399 387,105
Online services SR 11,089 53,431

Marketing, distribution management, S DHEHERE FAK
consulting and printing services EN | AR 75 107,608 88,053
Television and radio advertising BELKEEES 2,146 445
377,242 529,034

160 SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Board has been identified as the CODM. Management
has determined the operating segments based on the
information reviewed by the Board for the purposes of

allocating resources and assessing performance.

The CODM assesses the performance of the Group’s
publishing and advertising businesses from both geographic
and product perspectives. From a product perspective,
management takes into consideration of the economic
benefits of publishing and advertising businesses as a whole
when executing a centralised assessment of the performance
as the CODM considers they are mutually dependent and
inseparable. Geographically, management considers the
Group's publishing and advertising businesses activities
are included in a single reportable segment in accordance
with IFRS 8 “Operating segments”. As such, no segment

information is presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&7, EXY
5 D W5 TR Wk
7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 7 W3- W R — AR
GROUP
Fixture,
Land Leasehold furniture and Motor
and Buildings  improvement Machinery equipment vehicles Total
RE.
THREF HENEEE BE  KRARRE RE @z
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR%TR ARBTT ARETr  AR%Tx
At 1 January 2011 W=B8--F-f-8
Cost A 1,801 10,851 42,707 7,900 11,149 74,408
Accumulated depreciation 2EME (128) (1,453) (15,073) (4,152) (2,287) (23,093)
Net carrying amount FEFE 1,673 9,398 27,634 3,748 8,862 51,315
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-3--%
TZA=t-BLEE
QOpening net carrying amount FNERFE 1,673 9,398 27,634 3,748 8,862 51,315
Additions NE = 693 6,392 3,179 8,542 18,806
Disposals (Note 33(b)) & (M3E33(0)) - - - - (116) (116)
Depreciation (Note 27) & (M327) (43) (1,061) (4,502) (1,460) (1,580) (8,646)
Closing net carrying amount FRREFE 1,630 9,030 29,524 5,467 15,708 61,359
At 31 December 2011 R-Z--f+-A=t-H
Cost KA 1,801 11,544 49,099 11,079 19,447 92,970
Accumulated depreciation RitHE (171) (2,514) (19,575) (5,612) (3,739) (31,611)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,630 9,030 29,524 5,467 15,708 61,359
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE-ZF--f
TZAZT-BLEE
Opening net carrying amount ENERAFE 1,630 9,030 29,524 5,467 15,708 61,359
Additions NE = 342 176 2,089 3,988 6,595
Transfer from Investment properties & & B &M (Hizs)

(Note 8) 1,975 - - - - 1,975
Disposals (Note 33(b)) e (FE330) - = = (34) (391) (425)
Depreciation (Note 27) & (Fiz27) (43) (934) (4,561) (1,785) (2,136) (9,459)
Closing net carrying amount ERERFE 3,562 8,438 25,139 5,737 17,169 60,045
At 31 December 2012 RZZ2-Z£+Zf=+-H
Cost KA 3,776 11,886 49,275 13,134 23,044 101,115
Accumulated depreciation RithE (214) (3,448) (24,136) (7,397) (5,875) (41,070)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,562 8,438 25,139 5737 17,169 60,045
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 7
GROUP (continued)

Depreciation of the Group's property, plant and equipment

has been charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

B 85 R B ik

Yy & ~ Wi s B B — AR
(#1)

AEENNE - BEREEFECE TS
FRNEHRE RN -

2012 2011
—®-=—% —T——F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETIT

Cost of sales 858 AR
General and administrative expenses — B RITHAX
Total et

The Group's land and buildings at their carrying amounts are

analysed as follows:

4,740 4,616
4,719 4,030
9,459 8,646

AEBM L RETREEESESN
o

2012 2011
—B-=f —T——%
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Held outside Hong Kong on: REB AN T IE AT 5 R

A
Lease term of 10-50 years T EF10Z2504F 1,975 -
Lease term of more than 50 years FHHI50F A 1,587 1,630
Total wst 3,562 1,630

As at 31 December 2012, land and buildings with net book
value of RMB1,975,000 (2011: nil) were pledged as collateral
for the Group’s bank borrowings (Notes 18 and 19).

Depreciation on land and buildings of RMB43,000 (2011:
RMB43,000) for the year ended 31 December 2012 has been

charged to “General and administrative expenses”.

R-T—=—F+=-A=+—8 EEFE
AR®1,975,000C (ZT——F: &)
T REFEERBELARKBRITER
B A (MEE18%19) ©

HE—ZT——#+-_A=+—RHILEE"
THREFINE AR®43,000T (= F
—— & : AR¥43,0000) ER[— M &
TERRAZ ] Mk -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o PF I B R Bk

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 7 W W Kot — A%
GROUP (continued) (%)
The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment M - BB &R R B & B TR R
has been determined based on value in use calculations. REEEREAERE - WEFE T ERA
These calculations use cash flow projection based on RIREE S HEN = FHRMBOEEFTER
financial budgets approved by the Directors covering a SRETER  AK13.6%K BRI = -
3-year period, and at a pre-tax discount rate of 13.6%. The =FHUENReRENRA3I%MNEE
cash flows beyond the 3-year period are extrapolated using BREEE - WIS RERTIARBIBEITE
a constant growth rate of 3%. The growth rate is based on BRI AR -

the relevant industry growth forecasts in the PRC.

Based on the assessment made by the management, no BEEREMETE RZE—ZF+=
provision for impairment on property, plant and equipment A=1+—BHBERYE BERXERE
was required as at 31 December 2012. SRR
8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP 8 HEWk-ALHE
2012 2011
—E——F —FT—%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T AR®ET T

At fair value: RAREE:
At 1 January w—A—H 1,975 1,817
Transfer to property, plant and BAME BER&E

equipment (Note 7) (FF=£7) (1,975) =
Net gain from fair value adjustment AAEERAE R FE - 158
At 31 December R+—A=+—H - 1,975
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o PSS 5 9 3 B ik
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP 8 HWEWHK-ALH (F)
(continued)
The investment properties of carrying value of BRMEE A RE1,975,000 R EMEE
RMB1,975,000 were reclassified to property, plant and ENHBAYE - -BWERZEER LT B
equipment due to the change in use of the properties RAAREBETHENRENERERR
evidenced by the expiry of operating lease for the Group's RELHEEEMAELE - AEENIRE
administrative purposes. The Group's interests in investment MERNERIZERDSESMEAT
properties at their carrying amounts are analysed as follows:
2012 2011
—ZE--F —E——F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETF T
In the PRC, held on: RABERATAREE
Lease term 10-50 years FHER102= 504 - 1,975

The Group obtains independent valuations for its investment
properties at least annually. At the end of each reporting
period, the directors update their assessment of the fair
value of the property, taking into account the most recent
independent valuations. The directors determine a property’s

value within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.

$§;"§§J‘ FHREREMEEEE L
HE - REBREHR EFEMHYER
AEER HE‘%‘*‘%ETE’ =ik cAva
HE - FEERNEENAAEBELEEANEE
MEE -
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP

9 HEEEE-KEH

Non- Other
Computer compete Customer intangible
Software agreement  Goodwill relationships Trademark  Web site assets Total
g k3
EREL THRIHE BE EFBER L ) E @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT AR®ETrn AR%Tn ARETR ARBTR ARET:
At 1 January 2011 R=8--%-f-8
Cost KR 2,587 - - - - 3,106 - 5,693
Accumulated amortization R EH (873) - - - = (622) - (1,495)
Net carrying amount REFHE 1,714 - - - - 2,484 4,198
Year ended 31 December ~ EHZE-E--%
2011 +ZB=+-H
LEE
Opening net carrying amount ~ E{IREFE 1,714 - - - - 2,484 = 4,198
Additions NE 103 - - 1,600 - 5,872 1,000 8,575
Acquisition of business WBER 770 11,500 12,573 14,500 9,400 400 = 49,143
Amortisation (Note 27) B3 (Wzr27) (588) (2,556) - (4,580) (814) (863) (208) (9,609)
Closing net carrying amount ~ ERREFE 1,999 8,944 12,573 11,520 8,586 7,893 792 52, 307
At 31 December 2011 R=8--%
+=RA=+-H
Cost KR 3,460 11,500 12,573 16,100 9,400 9,378 1,000 63,411
Accumulated amortisation REtsE (1,461) (2,556) - (4,580) (814) (1,485) (208) (11,104)
Net carrying amount FmEFa 1,999 8,944 12,573 11,520 8,586 7,893 792 52, 307
Year ended 31 December ~ EHZ-E--%
2012 t=B=t+-H
LFE
Opening net carrying amount ~ E4IREF & 1,999 8,944 12,573 11,520 8,586 7,893 792 52,307
Additions NE 166 - - - - - 166
Amortisation (Note 27) B (Fisar) (591) (3,834) - (5,970) (1,221) (2,400) (500) (14,516)
Closing net carrying amount ~ EREEEFE 1,574 5110 12,573 5,550 7,365 5,493 292 37,957
At 31 December 2012 RZE-Z&
+ZR=+-H
Cost KA 3,626 11,500 12,573 16,100 9,400 9,378 1,000 63,577
Accumulated amortisation RETEH (2,052) (6,390) = (10,550) (2,035) (3,885) (708) (25,620)
Net carrying amount REFH 1,574 5,110 12,573 5,550 7,365 5,493 292 37,957

The amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to

“General and administrative expenses”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP
(continued)

Due to the acquisition of business from Fuzhou H-Brand
Estate Marketing and Planning Company Limited (“Fuzhou
H-Brand”) on 10 July 2011, the Group recognised intangible
assets of RMB36,570,000, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB9, 143,000 and goodwill of RMB12,573,000, with total
purchase consideration of RMB40,000,000 fully settled in
cash during year ended 31 December 2011.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to a cash generating unit, Fujian Haobang Real
Estate Consulting & Agency Co. Ltd. (“Fujian Haobang”), a
subsidiary of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2012, management of the Group determined that the
goodwill had not impaired. The basis of the recoverable
amount of Fujian Haobang and the major underlying

assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount has been determined based on
a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
Directors covering a 3-year period, and at a pre-tax discount
rate of 18.1%. The cash flows beyond the 3-year period
are extrapolated using a constant growth rate of 3%.
This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth

forecasts in the PRC.
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Bk S8 R B ik

10 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

10 Al gt &8 H

2012 2011
=F-=F —=F—— 4
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARET T
Unlisted shares, at fair value: JEETRRG  EARERE:
At 1 January Rn—H—H - -
Transfer from interest in an associate EE RN —EE AT
(Note 11) Ham (MIEE11) 63,325 -
Addition NE 11,809 -
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—8 75,134 -

On 5 June 2012, the Group disposed of 18.5% equity
interest in Yunnan Handing Investment Co. Limited (“Yunnan
Handing Investment”) such that the Group's interest in
Yunnan Handing Investment reduced from 33.5% to 15.0%.
Management has determined that the Group ceased to have
significant influence over Yunnan Handing Investment from
the date of disposal as the Group's ability to participate
in the financial and operating policies of Yunnan Handing
Investment became very limited subsequent to the disposal.
As a result, the Group derecognised the investment in
associate and accounted for the remaining 15.0% equity
interest in Yunnan Handing Investment as available-for-
sale investment and measured at fair value. The Group
recognised a gain in the amount of RMB11,636,000
from this partial disposal of interest in Yunnan Handing
Investment during the year ended 31 December 2012 (Note
26).

In the second half year of 2012, Yunnan Handing
Investment raised additional equity funding from its existing
shareholders and the Group participated in the equity
fund raising by contributing a further RMB11,809,000 into
Yunnan Handing Investment.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has less influence
in Yunnan Handing Investment as its equity interest in it
has been diluted to 11.7% as a result of additional equity
contribution from other shareholders of Yunnan Handing

Investment.
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BT BARELER ~AEE2HAEME
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11 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 11 A A 6] W RE 22

2012 2011

—g-=-% —T——#

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBT T

At 1 January Rn—H—H 40,393 -

Increase in equity interest in associates B & N B HY AR AN R 2R 1 N 60,014 33,500
Increase in quasi-equity loan to associates REEE QAR ER AR E

=% il 100,680 7,200

Disposal of interest in an associate HER—HBE NN ER (78,101) =

Transfer to available-for-sale investment ERFAIHEERE

(Note 10) (FfEE10) (63,325) -

Share of post-acquisition profit/(loss) G RE T (EB) 501 (307)

At 31 December Rt+t=-—A=+—H 60,162 40,393

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s investment in an
associate represented its 33.5% equity interest in Yunnan
Handing Investment. Included in the cost of investment
was a capital contribution of RMB33,193,000 and quasi-
equity loan of RMB7,200,000, which was unsecured and
interest-free. Yunnan Handing Investment is a limited liability
company established in the PRC that is principally engaged

in the project investment and management.

On 9 January 2012, the Group paid an additional
RMB100,000,000 investment cost in Yunnan Handing
Investment, which represented an additional quasi-equity

loan.

On 5 June 2012, the Group disposed of an 18.5% interest
in Yunnan Handing Investment, including the transfer of
RMB59,200,000 quasi-equity loan, to another shareholder of
Yunnan Handing Investment for an aggregated consideration
of RMB78,101,000 and ceased to have significant influence

on Yunnan Handing Investment.

RZT——F+=ZA=1+—8 AE£ER
—HBEARANKRERENRERERRK
BHI33.5% R A - REXNBIEEE
A R #33,193,0007T & & g 2 14 & & 5K
AR¥7,200,0007T BEERREE - E
MESREARFBRKINEREER
A FEREFEARERER-

R-ZE——F—AhB AEEEREH
EREE L I ARE100,000,0007T
RSB  (ERBREINERANMEEER -

RZE—ZFAARHE AEEZBERE
AR78,101,000tMEEERKE S
—ERREEENEEERKREN185%
i (BRIEEE A RKS59,200,0007T M %
BAHEER)  RIEHEMESKRED
BAXEN-

THERARDE — T —_FFR
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11 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

As a result of the partial disposal, the Group’s remaining
15.0% equity interest in Yunnan Handing Investment has
been recognised as available-for-sale investment at fair value
(Note 10) and a gain on partial disposal of Yunnan Handing
Investment of RMB11,636,000 has been recorded by the
Group (Note 26).

On 10 August 2012, the Group has completed the
acquisition of 34% the issued shares of Skybroad
International Limited, an independent third party, at a
consideration satisfied by HK$30,000,000 in cash, equivalent
to RMB24,650,000 and HK$43,200,000 (HK$0.36 per share)
by way of issue of the 120,000,000 consideration shares,
equivalent to RMB35,364,000 (Note 22¢).

The Group also made a quasi-equity loan of RMB680,000
to Skybroad International Limited, which is unsecured and
interest-free. Skybroad International Limited is a limited
liability company established in BVI that is principally
engaged in information system and application research and

development.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’'s investment of
RMB60,162,000 in an associate represented its 34% equity

interest in Skybroad International Limited.
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35,364,0007T ) bA % 17120,000,0000% X
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AN % @ IR m Skybroad International
LimitedfE (£ 5 40 & % B /9 % IR AN 1
EEHRARG680,0007T ° Skybroad
International Limited &M &8 E 2 Bt 5
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INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
The Group's share of the results of its principal associates,
and its aggregated assets (including goodwill) and liabilities,

are as follows:

B 85 R B ik

11 BB AR RS (5)
AEBRBEETERLATALERHLE
E(oERE)maEasmT:

Non-
Country of current Current Profit/ % interest
Name incorporation assets assets Liabilities Income (loss) held
BN/ RS
L AMALER FRBEE  RBEE & KA (B8B) BIH(%)
31 December 2011 —2—-%+-A=t-H
Yunnan Handing Investment Ef@2 84K & PRC 961 318,295 220,172 496 (916) 335
i
31 December 2012 “B--H+-A=t-H
Yunnan Handing Investment EEE&RE (K ) PRC 961 318,295 220,172 5,498 3,083 335
(Note) i
Skybroad International Skybroad International BVI 172,515 6,221 3,788 4,960 (1,565) 34.0
Limited Limited EBRAHE

Note: The Group partially disposed 18.5% equity interest of Yunnan
Handing on 5 June 2012 and the share of profit was arisen for

the period prior to the disposal.

TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET - GROUP

M AREBR -_ZT——FXARRHHIHEE
EEESIREMNI18 5% ANKER IR
o BT B9 HA S E A TR AR SR A o

12 B 5 BEWOK I — 3 8 — AR 4R

2012 2011
—E——F —FT—%F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARET T

Trade receivables Z 5 W RIE 313,904 334,752
Less: provision for impairment of B 5 WGRIB R E B

trade receivables (107,426) (75,083)
Trade receivables — net B 5 RN GTE - FE 206,478 259,669

+EERERAT —T——FFR
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o PF I B R Bk

12 TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET - GROUP 12 ® 5 BWGRIE - F 8- AR H
(continued) (%)
The payment terms with customers are mainly on cash on P EZREENIR RIAGERT AT e
delivery and on credit. The credit periods ranging from EEBNTELABEES AGRER
30 days to 365 days after end of the month in which the 30A £365H T E - AEBME 5 KK
relevant sales occurred. Aging analysis of the Group's trade ERBEAZZHMNRRS AT

receivables based on invoice date were as follows:

2012 2011
—E——F —F—%
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARET T

1 =30 days 1£230H 25,519 27,940
31 - 60 days 31£260H 14,604 16,322
61 — 90 days 61£290H 9,090 13,305
91- 365 days 91£365H 61,540 142,202
Over 1 year —F M E 203,151 134,983
313,904 334,752
Less: provision for impairment on B 5 I WGRIB R (E
trade receivables (107,426) (75,083)
Trade receivables — net B 5 rEW IR —F5E 206,478 259,669
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are AEBEZESFREFIENEREEHEAARE
denominated in RMB. EIRER
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TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET — GROUP
(continued)

As at 31 December 2012, trade
RMB104,160,000 (2011: RMB79,283,000) were past due

but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent

receivables of

customers for whom there is no recent history of default and
the repayment period is consistent with the Group’s practice.

The aging analysis of these trade receivables were as follows:

B A 5 R B
B 5 E WOk Ve — R — AR
(%)
RZE——F+-_A=+—H BEFE

U kT8 A R #104,160,000C (Z T ——
F: AR#79,283,0005T) E@EE L K
B © 5% F FRIA TH A B BRI B K0 40 8%
MEZEEBURF  BEFREEKREFEG
—H-ZEEHEURENRE S TN
g

2012 2011
=F-=F —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETT

Past due 1 — 30 days BMEA1E30H 4,620 15,681
Past due 31 — 60 days B HA31E260H 2,948 14,923
Past due 61 — 90 days #HEI61290H 3,313 14,992
Past due over 91 days #mE91H A E 93,279 33,687
104,160 79,283

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of RNR-ZE——FE+-_A=+—H B5E

RMB107,426,000 (2011:
and provided for. For the year ended 31 December 2012,

RMB75,083,000) were impaired

the amounts of the provision charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income were RMB36,044,000
(2011: RMB68,101,000). The aging of these receivables were

U kT8 A R #107,426,000C (— & ——
F: AR#75,083,0005T) B E I 517
BE-H#E-_T——F+=-A=t+—HL
FE -ReM2ElaRNBROBEESE
B AR36,044,000 (ZF——F: A

as follows: R #68,101,00070 ) ° #% & fE W R TB K BR
AT

2012 2011

—E——F —F—%

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET ARETFIT

91 — 365 days 91%2365H - 12,139

Over 1 year —FE 107,426 62,944

107,426 75,083

THERARDE — T —_FFR
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12

TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET — GROUP
(continued)

The provision was made as management has determined
that the ability of the debtors to repay the trade receivables
has deteriorated. This provision amount was determined in
line with the Group’s policies and historical practice, where
management has reviewed the relevant debtors’ current

creditworthiness and past payment history.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, trade receivables of
RMB10,038,000 were directly written-off to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (2011: RMB143,000).
Management has tried reasonable efforts to collect the trade
receivables from those debtors and has determined that the
recoverability of these balances is not probable.

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of
RMB35,866,000 (2011: RMB30,361,000) were impaired and
provided for the customers where the Group had expected
that its relationship with them would cease as a result of the
termination of the Group’s cooperation arrangement with
Shenyang Evening News. Management has reassessed this
provision during the current year and has determined that

the provision remained appropriate as at 31 December 2012.
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——F AR¥143,0000) EEEEA
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TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET - GROUP
(continued)
Movements on the Group's provision for impairment on

trade receivables are as follows:

B 85 R B ik

52 5 T Wk O — e — A AR
(#1)
7 55 (8 B8 55 B R EDR (B B S 0 R B 1
R

2012 2011

—2-=F —F——F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREETF T

At 1 January Rn—H—H 75,083 7,170

Provision for impairment on trade receivables & 5 & U 538 R B 5 36,044 68,101
Receivables written off during the year as RERF A AT D

uncollectible M i 38 &9 R UL 5RIE (3,701) (188)

At 31 December W+=ZA=+—8 107,426 75,083

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in “General and administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (Note 27). Amounts charged to the allowance
account are generally written off, when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash. Apart from the
trade receivables with impairment provided, the remaining

trade receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposures of the Group to credit risk as at 31
December 2012 and 2011 were the carrying value of trade
receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any

collateral as security.

WA ERERBNESERERDA
affemEERN [—REITEAX] A
(FfaE27) - MAEER B MEBE W EE R
ERBHT AW EIREINE S - R T
FHERERENE S RAGIRSN - HME
SRKAAETBREHEEE-

R-B-——FREB——F+_H=+—
H A&EEEGNSAEERR S LME
SENHRIENREE AEEWERFEE
Al R EEAR

+HERERAT —E——FEER
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13 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 13
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RECEIVABLES
Group 2012 2011
REME — —F——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR T T
Non current portion FEBN AR &L
Prepayment for long term investments RHRE /BN FIE
(note (1)) (B REG)) 173,000 173,000
Deposits to newspaper publishers (note (ii)) BT HAHRENIRS
(B (i) ) 92,000 92,000
Deposits for marketing and promotion MEHREBEBEEELD
projects (note (iii)) B& (i) 166,250 182,500
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFRIE iR ® KA b FE IR
receivables — non current SKIE—FEBNHA 431,250 447,500
Current portion BN EREf
Deposit for a marketing and promotion MEHNEEEBIELD
project (note (iii)) & (B (i) 33,750 17,500
Prepayments for outdoor advertising projects st ESMNE S IE B EH 8978
(note (iv)) IR (FEEGiv) ) 19,326 -
Prepayments (note (v)) TR RIE (PR EE(v) ) 173,682 156,210
Deposits and other receivables (note (vi)) Re RE AR FRIE
(HERE(Vi)) 83,093 77,159
Deposit and prepayment to LTEBBRERNES R
Shenyang Evening News (note (vii)) TERIE (M FE(vii)) - 43,780
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FE{FIE « & M H b fE UL
- current IR — B H] 309,851 294,649
-
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13 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 13
RECEIVABLES (continued)

B 85 R B ik

-
=
g
=
A

1~ ¥4 Jo 3 FE W

Company 2012 2011
b N —E-ZF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBT T

Prepayment TE FRIE 117 117
Other receivable H b e Ug 3R 26,672 26,672
Prepayment and other receivable T8 5 3E B E e GRIE 26,789 26,789

The carrying amounts of the Group's prepayments, deposits

and other receivables are denominated in RMB.

(i) Prepayment for long term investments
As at 31 December 2012, prepayment for long term
investments represents cash paid by the Group to
two (2011: two) metropolitan newspaper publishers
in the PRC in relation to the potential establishment
of jointly controlled entities (“JCE") with these
metropolitan newspaper publishers. During the year
ended 31 December 2012, Lifestyle Express has
obtained official approval from the respective local
government authority, while Southeast Express made a
preliminary consensus with local council, regarding the

establishment of JCE entity with the Group.

Mutual agreements were reached between the Group
and the metropolitan newspaper publishers such that
the prepayments will become refundable upon the
earlier of the termination of the plan to establish the
JCE and 31 December 2013 which is the target date
to complete the potential investments. The Group
consistently shows strong intention of forming the JCE
and assesses the probability of the formation to be
high. Hence the prepayment is classified as long term

investment as at 31 December 2012.

AEBHBENFIE  BE R E M EKFR
MEREEAARBE:-

() REREMANNRIE
R—E——F+-_A=+—8"' K
HR BN BN RIBE RSB A48
HAEMRE (ZE——F:MH)
MR R E S EE ([
E =G EEE ) MM 5% 5 i s S AT
WRE REBE-_ZT—_F+=A
ST —HIEFE (EEFHR) EW
AR T BT R RS B X B AR &
BRI HRAESERNE
i CGREGRIMR) Mt ElARNE B
R I B 88 B by U R W)

Hage

AREE B R RE S EKEE
i€ - < AN RIS A R LA S
AEEHERFEFR_—_T——F
TZA=t—B(AEREERE
BERAH) MEMNKFERD -
AEE R ERREK A REGE
BBy og 2B A - I AR LB AT RE 1
AEAS Bt BNRER-Z
——HFt-_A=t—HBARHER
BHEH

THERERATE —T——FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ Dk S 5 o0 Wi ik

13 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 13 THAFKIE ~ $% 4 I i Uk
RECEIVABLES (continued) K (
(ii) Deposits to newspaper publishers (ii) .ﬁ?’iﬁ MEHRENZS

178

As at 31 December 2012, deposits to newspaper
publishers represent cash paid by the Group to three
(31 December 2011: three) metropolitan newspaper
publishers in the PRC pursuant to exclusive agreements
between the Group and newspaper publishers. Under
the terms of the agreements, the Group has obtained
the exclusive rights to sell advertising space of the
respective newspapers for a fixed term of 7 to 30 years
and it has to place specified amount of cash to the
newspaper publishers. The cash held by the newspaper
publishers will be repayable to the Group upon the
expiry of the agreements. The Group assesses the
recoverable amount of the deposits on each balance
sheet date and the carrying values of these amounts
are written down immediately to their recoverable
amounts if recoverable amounts are less than the

carrying values.
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13 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(iii) Deposits for marketing and promotion

projects

As at 31 December 2012, deposits for marketing and
promotion projects represent cash paid by the Group to
four (31 December 2011: three) commercial customers
in the PRC in relation to exclusive marketing and
promotion services agreements between the Group
and the customers. Pursuant to these agreements,
the Group has obtained rights as the sole marketing
and promotion services provider for certain real estate
development projects owned by these customers
for terms that ranged within 3 years or throughout
the selling period of the real estate development
projects. In return, the Group has to place specific
amount of upfront deposits to the customers for
the exclusive rights. These deposits will, amongst
other terms and conditions, be repayable to the
Group in equal instalments throughout the term of
the respective contracts or upon the expiry of the
agreements. During the year ended 31 December
2012, the Group has additionally paid RMB17,500,000
(2011: RMB208,750,000) to fulfil the upfront deposit
obligation and received RMB17,500,000 (2011:
RMB8,750,000) repayment from one of these projects.
The Group assesses the recoverable amount of the
deposits at each balance sheet date and the carrying
values of these amounts are written down immediately
to their recoverable amounts if recoverable amounts

are less than the carrying values.

13

B 85 R B ik

FEASE sk T ~ % 4 e L Al JE Wit

(iii)

MEFEREFEREFEHNES

NR-ZB——F+-_A=+—08 5t
EHEREEEHAFELNEREER
SEHBEEPEMNE(ZT——F
TZAZT— R ZR)BEEF
I ERE RS ERG =

HTFZEXFPHNERE BREZEH
FZASEERBHEEZERFHM
BREETEHERRBENBRE
HEEERBHEROER  HR
REFIFEHMEZRRIERHERH
EH- R AEEERBRER
M#ZEE P X NHE S8R AT B R
eoHMERRGHEREZSTRE
ARAEBENEANF S S B
RZERRERERREREER-
NEBEE_ZE——_F+-_H=+—H
LFEN AEBEXNBEINAR
#17,500,000c (Z T ——F: A
R 208,750,000z ) LA B 1T AT HA 1%
SEME UHREHS—EIEB KEA
KR #17,500,000T (=T ——%F:
AR ¥8,750,0007T ) B 38 3K o AN &
ERE#ERTAERSNTKRE £
B ENERBEERETE Al
ENENEOESANRMRZEEA
el &% e

R
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13 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Prepayments for outdoor advertising projects
As at 31 December 2012, prepayment for outdoor
advertising projects represent cash paid by the Group
to four commercial customers in the PRC pursuant
to contractual agreements between the Group and
the customers. Under the terms of the agreements,
the Group has obtained the exclusive rights to
sell advertising spaces of designated areas in the
respective malls and on the side of highways for 5
to 10 years. Annual rental expenses should be paid
before the inception of the corresponding lease term
in accordance with the agreements. Details of the
arrangement for outdoor advertising projects are

disclosed in Note 34.

Prepayments

Under the terms of certain (exclusive and non-
exclusive) advertising agreements with metropolitan
newspaper and radio operators, the Group has to
make prepayments for print media advertising to
the newspaper publishers. The amounts prepaid to
newspaper publishers can be utilised as advertising
costs incurred in the coming 12 months when the

amount of prepayment is available.

Deposits and other receivables

Deposits and other receivables primarily include cash
paid to contracted business partners as deposits for
operation rights. The deposits are interest free and are
refundable upon the expiry of the agreements or on
request under mutual consent. Other receivables are

due within one year from the balance sheet date.
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13 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 13 THAFKIE ~ $% 4 o At R U
RECEIVABLES (continued) KA (4)
(vii) Deposit and prepayment to Shenyang (vii) AT EEBBENZRSREMNK

Evening News

As at 31 December 2012, deposit made to Shenyang
Evening News pursuant to the exclusive advertising
agreement between the Group and Shenyang Evening
News was RMB10,000,000. The Group had also made
prepayment of RMB33,780,000 to Shenyang Evening
News under the terms of the exclusive advertising
agreement. The exclusive advertising agreement
between the Group and Shenyang Evening News was
terminated on 26 July 2011. During the year ended
31 December 2012, the Directors have reviewed the
recoverability of such prepayment and deposit totaling
RMB43,780,000 (Note 27), including consideration of
the probable outcome of the litigation between the
Group and Shenyang Evening News, the prolonged
period to obtain a final judgment in respect of the legal
proceeding, and its ability to enforce court decision to
collect the amount when the final judgment is reached.
Having considered all these factors, management has
determined to make full provision of these amounts.
The provision for the impairment of prepayment
and deposit has been included in “General and
Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Details of the litigation with

Shenyang Evening News are disclosed in Note 38(a).

RZE—ZF+=ZA=+—H 1R
BARERRZESHRITIVOBRE
EHBEETEBBRNEEAAR
#10,000,0007T - A & E 5 1R 18 58
RESHHRERMESBRENSA
IR #£33,780,0007T ° 7~ & [ 8% [5
BB IHNBRESHEEN -
——FEtAZ+RNBRIE-REE
—E——F+-A=+—HILEE
N EEERANZEENRERER
&6 H AR #43,780,0007T & A] U
B (FE27) - BEE AR EE M
BRI BRI FARNA LR
BISERREFRBAANTE KM
RAEBREBRBAARFRITE
Br HOR AR B SRIBEVRE 7 - K2 &
FTAEZERR% ERERERZ
EREAREBE-BARER
ReBMEREBDAAGHE2E KR
®E[—BRITBAS | A BES
B 3 B 5F FA R 1B FA BT 71 38(a) R 5 -

+HERERAT —E——FEER
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14 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE - GROUP

15

The Group's assets held for sale includes the following:

14 FRAFE B E - AL

AEENFFLEEEREIATIER -

2012 2011

=F—=F —F—%

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARETF T

Properties held for sale FEHEWE 44,969 29,336

The properties in the PRC were received in exchange of
advertising services to real estates developers in the PRC. The
Group's intention is to sell these properties and, accordingly,
such rights are recognised as assets held for sale upon the
completion of the advertising sales transaction if the related

property is ready to be sold.

Cash flows associated with the disposal of assets held

for sale are presented under “operating activities” in the
consolidated statement of cash flows. The gain/loss on
disposal of assets held for sale are recorded in “General and
administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

/

PEYEDRATEEMERERR
J%%HE%%%HXTWZ"%IE’UEH’U%%%E
EWE At EHREYMETHEE ]
BRBNRERESHERIKER R
FIFLEEE-

BRLERIFLEEENRERERY
REHRAERERIELEDH] T-HE
FIEHEBEEN NS BRLIEREAR
EEBERO [ —RRITHEX]A-

INVENTORIES - GROUP 15 HFHE-—AREH
2012 2011
—E——fF —FE——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETFTT
Newsprint and printing consumables ¥ A R ED RIS #E 7,900 8,245
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R E: &S
16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16 Bl kBl&%MEHEA
The Group's cash and cash equivalents are denominated in AEENRSRREFEER AT
the following currencies: BHETE
Group 2012 2011
EE —E-—C—fF —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTF T
Cash at bank and on hand: RITRFHEES:
Denominated in RMB AAR¥EEE 52,879 212,236
Denominated in HKD LAV TTEHE 495 1,787
Denominated in USD AZETTEHE 61 354
53,435 214,377
Maximum exposure to credit risk = EERR 45,134 209,323
Company 2012 2011
NN — - —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETF T
Cash at bank: RITIRE -
Denominated in HKD LAV TTEHE 372 1,675
372 1,675
Cash in bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITRESBRERNRITEAERIENZF
bank deposits rate. The carrying amounts of the cash and PMEFE -RekBeEEBENERR
cash equivalents approximate their fair values. BEHEEQAAEBERES-
The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign HAAREFTENER LR BINEAR
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies B BAIINETENRITESRRIRSE
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are HH A [ 2 B S R B I A8 4 B 4B A N EE
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign B AR B R AR R -

exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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A D B I B
17 RESTRICTED CASH 17 32 PR B 4
As at 31 December 2012, restricted cash consisted of RZE——F+-_A=+—8 ' ZRHRK
RMB12,890,171 deposited in four bank accounts which were EREFAZEEL TR RARERE L
subjected to a restriction to use order issued by the Yueyang RIBR S RELFRAMNERITERSN
City Intermediate Court. The order does not specify the AR#12,890,1717C ° 2 AL WHEET AR
period of restriction and is therefore, may not available for il EARR - [ b PR Il 3R & RS A AR E
short-term use by the Group (Note 38(b)). YERZ BRI A (B15E38(b) ) °
18 PLEDGE OF ASSETS 18 ¥ fik 4
The Group had the following pledge of assets as collateral to REBEFUATEEERE AR - ERR
secure the Group's bank borrowings (Note 19): REBHRITER (HFE19)
2012 2011
—E--F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AR®BT T
At net book value: RAREF(E
Building (Note 7) ¥ (KE7) 1,975 -
At fair value: RRAMREE:
Investment properties (Note 8) KEWE (HzE8) - 1,975
1,975 1,975
.
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£ 0F B 5 3 R Bk
19 BORROWINGS - GROUP 19 fEak — A4 H

2012 2011
—g-=—F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEF T

Non-current liability: FERBAIE
Other loan EMER - 1,006

Current liabilities: mEaE:

Short-term bank loans, secured RERTTE R B HEIT 44,000 47,000
Other loan EMER 539 1,522
44,539 48,522
44,539 49,528

Borrowings of RMB44,000,000 as at 31 December 2012
(2011: RMB47,000,000) were secured by the Group's
building (Note 7). These loans are used to finance daily

operations.

The weighted average effective interest rate at 31 December

2012 was 7% per annum (2011: 6% per annum).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are

denominated in RMB and approximate their fair values.

RZE—ZF+ZA=+—H UAXE
BEEF(MINEERNEBERAEAR
#A44 000,000 (T ——F: AR
47,000,0007T) - ZEEFANR BB EL

SREEE-

R-E——F+ A =+—HBWINEFLEH
:’%Bf%ifruﬁﬁ%(:;——i:s%)o

AEBREFOEEEAAREA ELS
HAREBEREE

+HERERAT —E——FEER
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19 BORROWINGS - GROUP (continued)

(@) The maturity of the total borrowings at respective (a)

19 fas—ALHE (%)
REGER  ERAEIMANT

balance sheet dates is as follows:

186

2012 2011

—E-——F —E——%F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETT

Within 1 year —FURN 44,539 48,522
Between 1 to 2 years —EMF - 1,006
44,539 49,528

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest-

rate changes and the contractual repricing dates (or

maturity date whichever)

AEBEEFAZONEEB AR LA LD

ENEEADR (XEHA)

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTT
Within 6 months NEA AR 44,539 47,804
Between 7 and 12 months +tE=+=f@A - 718
Between 13 months and 5 years +T=@AZERF - 1,006
44,539 49,528

The group has the following undrawn borrowing AEBRBANERBEENT :

facilities:

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
Expiring within one year R —F AN EIH 11,000 8,000
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20 TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND 20 ¥ 5 - o FE A R 0E K RE HE
ACCRUED EXPENSES B =2
Group 2012 2011
rEE —ZE--F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBT T
Trade payables B 5 ENFIR 5,644 4,147
Other payables and accrued expenses: H AT 5RIE R EET R X
Accrued utility expenses and other liabilities — FEFt A H R EH S M EMEE 1,192 660
Accrued salaries and welfare st e MR 9,713 7,434
Value added tax and other taxes payable BEDRAMENTIE 29,880 28,066
Other payables E b &3R8 39,974 35,147
Deposits from customers REEPHIES 5,673 4,144
Receipts in advance T8 St U BR &Y R 18 10,166 11,217
96,598 86,668
102,242 90,815
Company 2012 2011
AT —E——F —F—%
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AR¥T T
Other payables and accrued expenses: Hib A FIEREFHX
Other payables H b &5 5RIR 26,912 26,672
Accrued salaries and welfare Est & Mg A 1,616 1,038
28,528 27,710
Payment terms granted by suppliers are mainly on cash HEBMGETHONTEREEREINER
on delivery and on credit. The credit periods ranging from NGRS R - EEHN FIELH A
30 days to 365 days after end of the month in which the KEEE HEREF30AE365A T %

relevant purchase occurred.
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20 TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND

ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)
The aging analysis of the trade payables based on the date

of receipt of goods is as follows:

20 B 5 - A R AT AR IH K R S

P2 (4H)

B o RNRERBERE BHNRE S

AR

2012 2011

—E——F —F—%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT R ARETFIT

1 =30 days 1230H 991 2,227
31 - 90 days 31£90H 2,675 425
Over 90 days 908 A E 1,978 1,495
5,644 4,147

AEEEZEMNRENREEZHBAA

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are all

denominated in RMB. REESHE -
21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 21 BB

The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows: BRIEMSEHEBESITNOT :

2012 2011

—E——F —F—%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREET T

Deferred income tax liabilities BEFTSHAR 4,777 7,397

Management expects the deferred income tax will be EREBERBEEMSHERNEE BES
recovered after 12 months of the balance sheet date. +=@EABYKE -
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21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movements on the deferred income tax liabilities are as

follows:

B 85 R B ik

ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ%@
BIEFSHEESHNT

Accelerated tax

depreciation

nEBIETE
2012 2011
—g-=-% —T——&
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREF T
At 1 January Rn—H—H 7,397 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — BB A A - 9,143

Recognised in the consolidated statement of ~RA& 2 E K zER NFER

comprehensive income (Note 30) (KF5E30) (2,620) (1,746)
At 31 December W+=-—A=+—H 4,777 7,397

No deferred income tax asset has been recognised in
respect of tax losses of RMB96,987,000 as at 31 December
2012 (2011: RMB12,653,000) as it is not probable that
the relevant subsidiaries of the Group will generate taxable
profits to utilise the tax loss in the foreseeable future. Such

tax losses have an expiry period of five years.

Under the EIT Law and implementation regulations issued
by the PRC Government, withholding tax of 10% or a
lower treaty rate is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January
2008 onward. Deferred income tax liabilities amounting
to RMB32,053,000 have not been recognised as at 31
December 2012 (2011: RMB45,156,000), in respect of
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries as the Group
has no intention to remit such unremitted earnings in these
subsidiaries in the PRC in the foreseeable future. As at
December 2012, unremitted earnings of the PRC subsidiaries
amounted to RMB320,534,000 (2011: RMB451,564,000).

RZE——F+_A=+—0 BEXEH
HEAMB AR T e E £ ERB G
FIAR AT R RFI AR IEEE - O 5t
AER#96,987,000C (ZE——F: AR
#12,653,0007T ) &) 5 1E 5 18 W R ST PR
SREE ZENEEBEENERARAARR
£|Eo

BEPEBRNBEAOCEMSRERE
&R B —TTN\F—A—ARAHH
B Bt /B A A Bt P B B s B B R 80 AR B
10% S BE 17 & B R HKTFEHIH - R =T
——F+ZA=+—H8 RETHBEAR
AR AT i A FE A ) TEHO B e H A B 1B T
= BB ARK32,053,000T (=T ——
& AR¥45,156,0007T ) K i & FT 15 B
BERERR  LIARAEEEZNA
SRR EE B 52 5 BB B 2 Rl R A E
BB - RN —_E——F+-_A=+—
H - HBEMBRARMNRNERFEAR
#320,534,000c (T ——F: AR
451,564,0007T) °

THERABRDE — T —_FFR
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22 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 22 B K A5 %5 18

Equivalent
Nominal nominal
Number of value of value of
ordinary ordinary ordinary Share
shares shares shares premium Total
EER
EERYE EEREE ZEEE BRAEE @
HKS RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BT ARETT ARETFT ARETT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at RIZ-—ZFR-T——%
31 December 2012 and 2011 (Note @) ~ +=A=+—HEREE
0.1BTH SRR
(@) 2,000,000,000 0.1
Issued: B#1T:
Ordinary shares at 31 December 2010 ~ R=Z—ZF
and 1 January 2011 +ZA=+-Bk
ZZ——%-F—HH
Ldk 732,165,121 73,216,512 63,860 540,311 604,171
Shares repurchased and cancelled R R RN (FEE(b))
(Note (b)) (12,223,000 (1,222,300) (997) (9,411) (10,408)

Ordinary shares at 31 December 2011~ RZZ——F+=A=+—H

and 1 January 2012 RZE-——5-A—RAf
LRk 719,942,121 71,994,212 62,863 530,900 593,763
Allotment of new ordinary shares of e EERAEE BT
HK$0.1 (Note (c)) LBk (M) 120,000,000 12,000,000 9,824 25,540 35,364

Ordinary shares at 31 December 2012~ WZZ—ZF+=fA=+—H
0L R 839,942,121 83,994,212 72,687 556,440 629,127
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22 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
(continued)

Notes:

(@) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 9
December 2009 with an authorised share capital of HK$200
million divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each.
On the same date, the Company issued and allotted one
share, credited as fully paid at par, to China TopReach Inc., a

significant shareholder of the Company.

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company
repurchased 12,223,000 of its own shares on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. The total amount paid to repurchase
the shares was HK$12,764,000, equivalent to approximately
RMB10,408,000. The repurchased shares were subsequently
cancelled and accordingly, the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.
The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of

RMB9,411,000 was charged to share premium.

() The Group issued 120,000,000 new ordinary shares on 10
August 2012 (14.3% of the enlarged ordinary share capital
of the company) to a shareholder of Skybroad International
Limited (“Skybroad”) as part of the purchase consideration
for its entire 34% interest in Skybroad. The ordinary shares
issued have the same rights as the other shares in issue. The
fair value of the shares issued amounted to HK$43,200,000
(HK$0.36 per share), equivalent to RMB35,364,000.

B 85 R B ik

22 JRAR K B At (7))

B3 :

RARFRZZTZNF+_ANBERS
BB MK - AR A200,000,000
¥ T 0 5 £2,000,000,000% & Bk & &
01BITHRM-MA ANARMEEE
RN B RInER B R A 71 21T R AL
—RIZFEEBEARY AR ARG -

REBE-_T——®+=-_A=+—H1I
FE-AARAREBBHZIAEREA
£12,223,0000% I& 15 & [ i 1 &9 B 1
HBEER12,764,0007%8 0 HE R AR
10,408,000t ° B & Bl iR 19 E & 5 7%
HMAARMEBRITRAENRZSE
BROBEE BEROHEMHEEAR
#9,411,0007T 2 A AR 17 4 (B 1B ©

RZZE-—ZFNA+HB XA£EHE
M Skybroad International Limited
([Skybroad ] ) — % & ® % 17
120,000,0000% ¥ & @ Iz (15 & 2 B
BAEBARKRANI43%) (EREE
E A Skybroad#y 2 #B34 % 2 #9358 5 X
{8 - FTEEATEY B AR B Ho A B 31T AR 19
EEREHERNPABETRONAAEE
7343,200,0007& 7T (& f%0.36/8 L) * 4
E M AR #35,364,0007T °

THEFERERAT —E——FFRK
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23 RESERVES
(a) Group

The details of movement in the Group’s reserves are set

out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity

on page 91:

(i)

Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves represent reserves of the
PRC incorporated companies which are set aside
for future development purpose in accordance
with the regulations in the PRC. The allocation is
based on certain percentages of these companies’
profit for the year, as reported in their statutory

financial statements.

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the
companies’ respective Articles of Association,
each of the Group companies is required
to transfer 10% of its profit for the year,
as determined under the PRC Accounting
Regulations, to a statutory common reserve
fund until the fund balance exceeds 50% of the
Group company's registered capital. The statutory
common reserve fund can be used to make good
previous years’ losses, if any, and to issue new
shares to shareholders in proportion to their
existing shareholdings or to increase the par value
of the shares currently held by them, provided
that the balance after such issue is not less than

25% of the registered capital.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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(a) &~&EH
AEBRFENEFSFIBFHNEINE
MEHEREBE
(i) ZERE

RTE T B MK AR
FLARRE R B HRE T BUAR
RIMER BERBIIER
% EFERAETE M HmR AT
WOFERRAE T A DL
TTEIB -

BREBEFBEERERAASEDN
ERMA AEEZEKE AT
ARERPEGERMETE
BE REFIE 10% BAEE A
e HEZARSEHRBB
AEBKBEARFMELRD
50% < JAE AEE AR A
NEFEEEE(WE) IR
RBBFRLHIZITHR TR
RSk 48 N AR 3R IR BRF BT R AR 1 B
EE - EBRITROEHRTAD
Rt & R8925% ©
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23 RESERVES (continued)

(a) Group (continued)

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Statutory reserves (continued)

Each of the Group companies is also permitted to
transfer a certain percentage of its profit for the
year as determined under the PRC Accounting
Regulations, to a discretionary common reserve
fund. The transfer to this reserve is subject to

approval at shareholders’ meetings.

Capital reserves

Capital reserves represent cash contributions
to Olympia Media, Fujian ShiFang and Beijing
HongXinTu by equity owners.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to the increase
in carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment upon transfer to investment properties

at its then fair value.

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve relates to the
redemption and cancellation of the Company’s

own shares.

B 85 R B ik

23 it (#8)

(a)
(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

REE (&)

EERE (&)
AEBEK B R R IRA AR
B & 5 AR P EE T B9 F W& A
NETASHLBAEERRE
ToRABRARKRE ARG R
38 o

EXREE
BEAREEREEE B2+
TR FRREESEES AY
HZERAMEHMRESHR -

BEfhREE

EffEEEYE BFEAR&RE
BREERNAREBRARE
VR EREEMIRINERE -

R 2 B 1 1% 4
P 7 B [ 5 8 R AR 2 R () %
AHEAEERNBER-

THERERATE —T——FFR
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23 RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company

23 fitifld (#)
(b) AAH

Accumulated

Equity-based

compensation

deficits reserve Total
LURER
HiEm
RITE Al 5k fast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Balance at 1 January 2011 R=Z——%—-HF—-HK
e (5,520) 5,263 (257)
Total comprehensive loss FREEFEEEE
for the year (13,718) - (13,718)
Equity-based compensation LA B 18 /5 25 1% O 7 B - 5,361 5,361
Balance at 31 December 2011 R=-T——F
TZA=1t—Hu&ER (19,238) 10,624 (8,614)
Total comprehensive loss FRAEEEBELE
for the year (8,702) - (8,702)
Equity-based compensation DA RS 42 7 BT 1) 357 B - 2,362 2,362
Balance at R=Z-—Z=F
31 December 2012 TZA=t-AWN&ER (27,940) 12,986 (14,954)

24 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES -

24 R B R R — AR A ]

COMPANY
2012 2011
N
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET AREFIT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR A AR 5,118 5118
B
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries of the

Company as at 31 December 2012:

Place and date
of incorporation/

24 it

(%)

TREHIARARZ

I ARV 8 < b N/

T—-—_F+=A

=T BENIEMNBLIE:

Issued or registered/

Effective interest held

Name establishment Principal activities Legal status paid up capital as at 31 December
EMRYL/ BRTREM Rt=A=t-H
£8 gk 3 4=k TEEH BRI BRREK HENERER
2012 2011
—g--f ZZ——F
Directly owned subsidiary:
HEREAHEAR:
Olympia Media Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding Limited liability US$50,000 100% 100%
("Olympia Media") 13 December 2005 company
REEREEERAF RBARRES RAER BEREEAR 50,000% 7
([REEE]) —EZRE
+=-RA+=H
Gloria Fair Limited Hong Kong, Provision of advertising, Limited liability HK$10,000 100% 100%
2 November 2001 investment and company
interest services
ERERAF BB REES RER BEREEAH 10,0007
—ZZ-5+—-A=H 2 MR 7%
Hung Hing To Publishing Limited The British Virgin Islands, Provision of publishing Limited liability US$622,500 100% 100%
13 December 2005 and advertising company
services
BEEAETERAR HRABRHE SRAL IR R E 5 R 7 BREERR 622,500% T
—TERE
+=R+=H
Indirectly owned subsidiaries:
HEEEHNEAR:
Fujian ShiFang Culture Fuzhou, the PRC Provision of full- line Limited liability RMB46,000,000 100% 100%
Communication Co., Ltd. 1 November 2000 advertising agency company
(“Fujian ShiFang") services
BETHXCERBRAT FEEM REZFUEERERY BAREERA AR #46,000,0007C
(MEgt+n 1) —ZZTE+—-A—H
Fuzhou AoHai Advertisement Fuzhou, the PRC Provision of full-line Limited liability RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. 19 February 2008 advertising agency company
services
BNREEEERAR FELEM REZFUEERRRE BREERA AK#1,000,0007C
—EE\F-At+hA
Fuzhou HongXinTu Printing Co., Ltd.  Fuzhou, the PRC Provision of printing Limited liability RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
(“Fuzhou HongXinTu") 21 September 2006 services company
BINEREDBERAR B M RAELENRIRTS HRELRA AR #10,000,0007T
([aMBEE]) ZETRF
NA=+-8
Kunming AoHai Advertising Co.,Ltd. Kunming, the PRC Provision of full-line Limited liability RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
3 March 2008 advertising services company
RRREEEERAR FEE 5 REZHNESRS HEREMLAA AR #1,000,0007C
“ZZ\F=R=H
Kunming HongLianXin Kunming, the PRC Provision of publishing Limited liability RMB23,000,000 100% 100%
Printing Co.,Ltd. 22 July 2005 and printing services company
(“Kunming HongLianXin")
B HRsAEMEIB AR AR FEEH 1R 4 I i I ED Tl e 5 HEREMERA AR 23,000,000
([EAAskEERR ) —ZTIF
tA=-+=H
Shifang YaQi Culture Communication ~ Xiamen, the PRC Provision of full-line Limited liability RMB2,000,000 100% 100%
(Xiamen) Co. Ltd 27 December 2004 advertising services company
THREERE (EMR)FERAE REEM RE2HUES RS EREMERA AK#2,000,0007T
—ZENE
+ZA=++tH
THERERAT —T——_FFH
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24 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/

24 JFAKHE A B ERE — KA F

(4

=3

H

)

Issued or registered/

Effective interest held

Name establishment Principal activities Legal status paid up capital as at 31 December
Ef AR,/ BRTREM/ Rt=B=t-8
A% BIBER A TEEH BRI BaRAE FENERER
2012 2011
—2--f ZT——F
Indirectly owned subsidiaries:
(continued)
BEEEHEAR: ()
Guizhou Qianzhong Newspaper Guizhou, the PRC Provision of publishing Limited liability RMB4,000,000 100% 100%
Industry Printing Co. Ltd 3 June 2011 and printing services company
EMNBERBREDBERAR I EIE M TR i i K ED R AR 75 BREERR A K #4,000,0007C
—Z——%7XA=H
Guizhou Shifang HanDing Media Guizhou, the PRC Provision of full-line Limited liability RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Co. Ltd 20 October 2011 advertising services company
EMtHERERERAA REEM RE2HAESRY BREEAR AR #10,000,0007
“2——%tHA-tH
Fujian Haobang Real Estate Fuzhou, the PRC Property marketing & Limited liability RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Consulting & Agency Co.,Ltd. 5 Apr 2012 agency services company
BRAAGERAREERAA kgl W& e H R AR R BEREEAH AK#10,000,0007T
Fujian Fangke Network Technology Fuzhou, the PRC Provision of full-line Limited liability RMB50,000,000 51% 51%
Corporation Limited 23 Dec 2011 advertising services & company
Property marketing
BREETHANBERNAERAR EIAE M REZFUEERBE  BRAEAR A K #50,000,0007C
—E——F MELH
T=A=t=H
Guangxi ShiFang Culture Nanning, the PRC Provision of full-line Limited liability RMB 11,680,000 100% 100%
Communication Co., Ltd 26 May 2012 advertising services company
BEETHXICERERRE hEEE RE2FUESE RS BEREEAR ARH11,680,0007C
—T——fF
AA=+XA
Liaoning Shifang XinDa Culture Shenyang, the PRC Provision of full-line Limited liability RMB5,000,000 60% 60%
Communication Co. Ltd. 21 Nov 2011 advertising services company
RETHEEXCERERAR hEES R 2 70L& & PR BEREARR AR #5,000,0007T
—B——fF
+-A=+-8
Xiamen DuKe Information Science Xiamen, the PRC Provision of technology Limited liability RMB11,000,000 100% 100%
& Technology Co., Ltd. 24 February 2006 promotion and company
(“Xiamen DuKe") consultancy services
EFEEEEMRARRE mEEM REBHERERESD BEREELR AR #11,000,0007C
(TEF#EE]) ZBTRE R
“A-tmA
Special purpose entity:
KRANER:
Beijing HongXinTu Culture Beijing, the PRC Provision of publishing Limited liability RMB30,000,000 100% 100%
Communication Co., Ltd. 2 July 2004 services company
("Beijing HongXinTu") (Note 2)
ERBBEXCEERRAA HEIER R RRS BREFERHA AR 30,000,000
(MemmzE]) (FizE2) “EEMFtACH
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe Science and Beijing, the PRC Provision of technology Limited liability RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
Technology Co., Ltd 14 November 2006 promotion and company
consultancy services
ERECEEMRARRE HEE R RERMEERFZARE BRAEARF AR ¥1,000,0007C
—ETRE
+—A+mA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ PF B B 3 R Bk
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 25 HEW, (HEAT) B 2 =] i
SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY I — AR A H]
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free BB RARIMGERTIEIRF RERER
and repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2011 and KEE - RZE——FR_F——F+=

2012, the carrying values approximate their fair values.

A=+—R BEREEALEEEE-

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN 26 i e A K H Al i £
2012 2011
—E——F —F—%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARET T

Other income: HMBA :
Sale of newsprint papers 6 27 B 4K 5,028 473
Sale of scrap material fHEREM K 1,097 2,846
Government grants (a) T 48 Bh (a) 2,616 5,078
Sundry income HMEIEUL A 727 1,680
9,468 10,077

Other gain: Hith i ¢
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary o E— KB A MK 424 =

Gain on partial disposal of interest in HEHDEmERINERER

Yunnan Handing Investment (b) 7 Us 2= (b) 11,636 =
12,060 -
(@ The Group has recognised government grants of () BEZZE—Z-—F+-A=+—HItHF

RMB2,616,000 (2011: RMB5,078,000) from the Fujian
government authority for the year ended 31 December

2012, as an incentive to expand the business and develop

£ 0 A& BB RN E 2 BT # 78 U R
BT AR#2,616,000T (ZF——
F: AR#5,078,0007T)  tEABER

the economy in the PRC. This incentive is granted as the BEREBRERLENZE - RS

relevant subsidiaries of the Group have taxable profits for the

respective years.

EREMNEARNEBFEERSERN
A B R UL 2R -

(b)  On 5 June 2012, the Group disposed of 18.5% equity interest by MR-ZZE—-—FXARB - AEELE
in an associate, Yunnan Handing Investment and recognised a R—HEBER—ZmESLED

gain of RMB11,636,000.

18.5% AR WHRAK=E ARK
11,636,0007T °

+HERERAT —E——FER
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£ Dk S 5 0 0 Wi ik

27 FRPEE E 45 B 2
BATERA (BR),SRFIEmg (5

27 EXPENSES BY NATURE

(Loss)/profit before income tax is stated after charging/

198

(crediting) the following: A)VATIEEEBALR:
2012 2011
—B-C-F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF ARBTF T
Auditors’ remuneration % SR B & 5,379 4,041
Cost of newspaper advertising AR E S AR
- Media costs — KR 199,491 208,380
Cost of marketing and promotion services B NS E R 11,865 =
Cost of online services 8 4% BR 7% B AN 2,947 1,997
Cost of television and radio advertising BEHREREEESKA
- Media costs — B A 4,190 1,220
Cost of distribution management, o HE IR - 58 50 & ED Rl AR 7%
consulting and printing services: B
- Raw material — R E 20,593 14,416
~ Media costs — B A 3,743 4,503
— Other costs —HMRA 1,838 2,038
Depreciation (Note 7) e (H3E7) 9,459 8,646
Amortisation (Note 9) B3 (PFEE9) 14,516 9,609
Operating lease charges in respect of land BT REFH
and buildings KERERE 5,963 4,045
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant &%  BE & & HH
and equipment (Note 33(b)) BB (W) F58
(P 3E33(b) ) 355 (38)
Provision for impairment on trade receivables & 5 J& U 3 I8 5 (B 5B 45
(Note 12) (FfEE12) 36,044 68,101
Write-off of trade receivables (Note 12) 5 B 5 JE W 5k IE
(PiFEE12) 10,038 143
Provision for impairment on prepayments and T8 13 F0IB K 4% &l (B £ 5
deposits (Note 13(vii)) (B 5E13(vii) ) 43,780 =
Net foreign exchange loss SNEE B 1R VF 5 128 7,144
Employee benefit expenses (including EERINAX (BEES
directors’ emoluments) (Note 28) <) (FizE28) 93,422 70,700
Business tax BB 12,435 21,937
-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ PF B B 3 R Bk
28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 28 REMWAEZ (BEERME)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTYS)
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Salaries and other allowances e kHEMmmEL 78,021 56,855
Equity-based compensation expenses VA IR 42 7 B 1t A9 2 BN ) =2 2,362 5,361
Discretionary bonus 15T 4L 5,992 1,478
Social security costs IRE A 3,072 2,567
Retirement scheme contribution BIRE B K 3,975 4,439
93,422 70,700
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEEME
The remuneration of each of the director of the HE_Z——FF-_F——F+=
Company paid/payable by the Group for the years A=+—HLEEE AEBER/
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 is set out below: FBRAQNARZSESHNINE 5 0
T

Year ended 31 December 2012

BE-BR-“FT-A=T-ALEE

Salaries

and other

Fees allowances
#eR

Hhe Rt

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ETR  ARETx

Social
Discretionary security  Share-based
bonus cost compensation Total
DRER
BT ARER  ERNHH @

RMB'000 RMB'000 RM

B'000 RMB'000

ARBTR  ARBTR AR¥TZ  AR%T:n

Executive directors: HiTES:

Mr. Chen Zhi (C£O) BETE (BEHTE)

Mr. Hong Pei Feng HFERE

Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu RETEE

Mr. Yu Shi Quan REFELA

Non-executive directors: FaTES:

Mr. Wang Ping FEEE

Ms. Chen Min Rzt

Independent Non-executive ~ BYFHTES:
directors:

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren RELCEE

Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry ~ SRBI %4

Mr. Zhuo Ze Yuan SEREE

Mr. Cai Jian Quan BREERE

Total h

- 1,932 - - 897 2,829

- 732 - - 236 968

- 1,732 - 10 803 2,545

- 611 - i 95 713
120 - - - 47 167
120 - - - - 120
120 - - - - 120
120 - - - - 120
120 - - - - 120
120 - - - - 120
720 5,007 - 17 2,078 1,822
+HERERAT —E——FER

199



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ORI B R B
28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 28 (EEMEN B (BFEESFME)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (%1)
EMOLUMENTYS) (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEM< ()
Year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z-——F+-f=t-HALEE
Salaries Social
and other  Discretionary security  Share-based
Fees allowances bonus cost  compensation Total
ek NRER
B EibHEk BB HREBE  ERKOHH @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETx
Executive directors: HiTES:
Mr. Chen Zhi (CFO) RELE(EEHTE) - 1,932 - - 2,037 3,969
Mr. Hong Pei Feng pdnd ot = 732 = = 536 1,268
Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu RETEE - 1,732 - 9 1823 3,564
Mr. Yu Shi Quan (appointed on ~ REFERE (R=F——F
20 December 2011) +-A-tBEZ{) - 9 = = 6 15
Non-executive directors: FYTES:
Mr. Wang Ping FIEE 120 - - - 107 27
Ms. Chen Min (appointed on ~ BEI&X L (R=F——F
20 December 2011) TZAZTREZE) 4 - - - - 4

Independent Non-executive ~ BUEHTES:

directors:
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren RELCEE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry ~ Z[R%E 120 - - - = 120
Mr. Zhuo Ze Yuan SERELE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Cai Jian Quan (appointed on = 2R ERE (RZF——F

20 December 2011) TZAZTREZfE) 4 - - - - 4
Total &t 488 4,405 - 9 4,509 9,411
During the year ended 31 December 2012, none of the REBE_ET——F+-_A=+T—HLF
directors of the Company (i) received any emolument € - 7N R E S50 A ) MR 7R £ () £ ]
from the Group as an inducement to join or upon SERMAREESHIMAREEH B R
joining the Group; or (ii) received any compensation B (Bt ER SR E(ERKEARINE
for loss of office as a director or management of any o B 1R g Y BN AE ] B 15 5 k(i) p 3 2k
member of the Group; or (iii) waived or has agreed to RAEREAAME (ZF——F &) o

waive any emolument (2011: nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director REBE_ET——F+-_A=+T—HLF
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the B - UWEEENEXIRERETMAHSH
year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: nil). ZH(ZTE——F &) -
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTYS) (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

B 85 R B ik

28 R HAEAM B (BFEFME)

=
=3

(4

)

(b) EEBEHFAL

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the five

individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

Group included 4 directors (2011: 3 directors), whose

emoluments were reflected in the analysis presented

above. The emoluments paid/payable to the remaining

1 (2011: 2 individuals) individual during the year ended

31 December 2012 were as follows:

BHE-_ZT——_H+-HA=+—H1
FE AKRBREREaFALTEE
ME(ZE——F:=Z8)FF H
Bl REE EXFR2FIH DT
REBEE_ZT——_F+-A=+—H
IFE BN/ EBRBRT—% (=2
——F MB)ATHMESHT

2012 2011
=F—=F —F— %
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

Salaries and other allowances
Equity-based compensation expenses

Social security costs

o REAME
VA BB e 7 R 18 9 385 BN A =<
HRE RS

For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011,

the emoluments of the highest paid individuals of the

Group fall within the following bands:

397 144

- 530

7 6

404 680
BE-_T—_FR=F——F+=

[T -
ALEBS N FEIEE -

Number of individuals

AH
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
Nil to RMB 1,000,000 =z AR¥1,000,0007T 1 2

+EERERAT —T——FFR
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A D B I B
28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 28 fR BA B (BG4 )
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (%)
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)
(c) Key management compensation () FEEEEHMH
2012 2011
—E——fF %
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR¥T T
Salaries and other allowances o kEAmHEL 7,994 6,241
Equity-based compensation expenses VA IR 42 7 B 1t A 5 B ) =2 2,362 5,361
Social security costs HRE R 60 37
10,416 11,639
29 FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME-NET 29 ME (HAR) Wds — A
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——%F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥T T
Finance income: A s
— Interest income on short-term bank deposits — & B4R 777 X &) A B U A 1,518 2,472
Interest expense on: FERX:
— Bank borrowings —RITER (3,218) (1,687)
Finance (costs)/income — net mME (A), Mz — %8 (1,700) 785
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A DF 55 R Bk
30 INCOME TAX EXPENSES 30 A3 BiBH 2
2012 2011
—E-—& ===t
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB TR ARET T

Current income tax Bl ER P 5 At
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") AR B AKRE 2B
(TEmMBH])
— Current tax — BV HEAR I8 18,054 26,747
— Under/(over) provision in prior years - BAFEERETR/
(FBEEREM) 827 (1,503)
18,881 25,244
Deferred income tax IEREPTISH (2,620) (1,746)
16,261 23,498

The Group is not subject to Hong Kong profits tax as it has HRAEEREE T —Fh_T——
no assessable income arising in or derived from Hong Kong FH+_RA=1+—"HBHIEFEIRREBE
during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. HENERERTA - BRBREEN
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A PF B B3 R Bk
30 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 30 A BiBd 2 (4)

204

Fuzhou HongXinTu was qualified as a manufacturing
foreign enterprise, and was entitled to Foreign Enterprise
Income Tax (“FEIT") holiday of two year exemption plus
three year half reduction since 2007 provided that it would
operate for more than 10 years. In addition, as Fuzhou
HongXinTu located in Fuzhou Economic Development
Zone, the tax rate would gradually be increased from
18% to 25% over a period of 5 years. The applicable tax
rate of Fuzhou HongXinTu for year ended 31 December
2012 was 25% (2011: 11%). Shifang YaQi was entitled
to the grandfathering treatment where the applicable
CIT rate phased-in from 18% to 25% over a period of 5
years through 2012. The applicable tax rate of Shifang
YaQi for year ended 31 December 2012 was 25% (2011:
24%). Based on the certificate dated 30 December 2008,
Xiamen Duke was granted the qualification as a software
production enterprise, and was entitled to FEIT holiday of
two year exemption plus three year half reduction since
2008. In addition, Xiamen Duke was located in the High
technology Development Zone, the tax rate would gradually
be increased from 18% to 25% over a period of 5 years.
The applicable tax rate of Xiamen Duke for year ended 31
December 2012 was 15% (2011: 12%).
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M%) +HEHAERZAREFE H
@%m%%%ﬁ%ﬁé_if_iiﬂ
FHRZE S HA18%E25%H T & - &
BT+ A=+—HIEFE"
THRENERBER25% (ZF——
F:24%) B BABMAZEZTNF+=
A=+HMHFE EMETEREMGEE
TEER AREXHEB_ZT/\FRH
WMFENECEMSHBREE HiE=
FRB IR F o AN BN EFITEELRN
BRMAEE  MEANAFHEESH
18%iEIEE25%  HEE——F+=
A=+—HILFE EMERMNBEARE
R15% (ZFE——F:12%) °
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30 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax

differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using

the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of

the consolidated entities in the respective jurisdictions as

follows:

B 85 R B ik

30 PRS- BiBd 2 (4)

REBRETEH AN AR IEE KA E
AREERDE#E RS 0B 8 H) % &
METFHREAENERESBELEANE
CER N

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T ARBTF T
(Loss)/profit before income tax BFTEFi AT (E18) %5 (114,111) 82,519
Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable REARSE R EER
to profits of the entities in the respective ER8R T A 5 B K
jurisdictions STEHBIE (30,753) 23,794
Tax effects of: NTHEENHIEZE
— Income not subject to tax A A (165) (1,225)
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes — A0 2 34,871 11,885
— Tax losses for which no deferred —RERELEMEREE
income tax asset was recognised SokyY R 20,955 1,849
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax —EABAARERNIE
losses E518 - =
— Effect of tax holiday —HEARHNTE (9,474) (11,302)
— Under/(over) provision in prior years —BEFEMEFHHRX
income tax expenses BETRE/
(EERRBE) 827 (1,503)
16,261 23,498
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 14% (2011: IMEFHBERRER14% (ZT——5F:

29%).

The decrease is mainly caused by the change in

applicable corporate income tax rates of certain subsidiaries

operating in the PRC.

29%) BB ERARE TRAEE
ENMBARMERCEMSHERLE
FTEL

THERERATE —T——FFR
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£ Dk S 5 o0 Wi ik

31 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011 is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in

i (E#H) ER

(a) EX
HE_ZT——_FR-_F——F+=
A=+t —BIEFENERER (B
B)/BRMNEREARAESEFEA
FEAE 4 FIBR A F M B 347 E 38 AR AN

31

issue during the year. BT EGTHE -
2012 2011
—E——F —F—%
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity KArE=FA ARG (EE)
holders of the Company (RMB'000) SwmF (ARBFT) (137,940) 52,978
Weight average number of BT D InAE F &
shares in issue (thousands) (Fh%) 766,827 728,612
Basic (loss)/earnings per share FRREAK (FIB) 5 F
(RMB per share) (BRRARYE) (0.1799) 0.0727
(b) Diluted (b) #58

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. For the year ended 31
December 2012, the Company’s share options issued
under the pre-IPO share option was the sole category
of dilutive potential ordinary shares where the effect
of the assumed conversion of these potential ordinary

shares outstanding during the year was anti-dilutive

(2011: same).

32 DIVIDEND

No dividend has been declared by the Company since its

incorporation.
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A ORI B R Bk
33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH 33 Blaim & &Mk
FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operation (a) REMBRE
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——%F
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AR®T ARBT T
(Loss)/profit before income tax BETSEA (BE), 5 (114,111) 82,519
Adjustments for: FEE
Depreciation e 7 9,459 8,646
Amortisation #iH 9 14,516 9,609
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE BE K& E
plant and equipment (E18) e 27 355 (38)
Provision for impairment of B 5) e W R IE R B B
trade receivables 12 36,044 68,101
Provision for impairment of A RIARIZS BERE
prepayment and deposit 13 43,780 -
Write-off of trade receivables 1 55 2 5 fE W RIR 12 10,038 143
Finance income A W 29 (1,518) (2,472)
Finance costs A& KA 29 3,218 1,687
Share of (gain)/loss of associates JE(E B 2R A
(W) BB 11 (501) 307
Fair value gain of HEWERNRBEKE
investment properties 8 - (158)
Equity-based compensation LA % 12 4 B8 1) 350 B 7l =2
expenses 37 2,362 5,361
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—FHBE QRN R 26 (11,636) =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHREA A 26 (424) =
Changes in working capital: LEESEE:
— Trade receivables — & 5 WA (8,525) (72,772)
— Inventories -8 345 (2,958)
— Prepayments, deposits and —TENFE -ZER
other receivables H b fE U R (21,176) (78,902)
— Amounts due from related —JEUR A& A T 5KIA
parties (4,071) (694)
— Trade payables — 2 5 EN B 1,498 (17)
— Other payables and accrued — H {th JE 1~ 5RIE K FE 5
expenses 3 10,745 8,127
— Amounts due to related — FE T B & KIE
parties (223) (3,861)
— Restricted cash — PR #I3R & (12,890) =
Cash (used in)/generated gE (R /s8R e
from operations (42,715) 22,628

THEZERAERA T
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A D B e B
33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH 33 Blaii &L Mak (4)
FLOWS (continued)
(b) Disposal of property, plant and equipment (b) HEVE BERRE
In the statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal ReRERTLEME - KERK
of property, plant and equipment comprise: HEHFREFIEELE:
2012 2011
—E-C-F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR®BT T
Net carrying amount (Note 7) AREDERE (MEE7) 425 116
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREH
plant and equipment (Note 27) (E18) ks (FFaE27) (355) 38
Proceeds from disposal of property, DEME - HE K& E
plant and equipment Fr 1§ 318 70 154
(c) Disposal of a subsidiary () HE—BHERH
In the statements of cash flows, net cash outflow on BeneErRPHE—BRB AT
disposal of a subsidiary comprise: e M FREERE:
2012 2011
—E-=F —T——%F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT R AR¥T T
Net liabilities value of BEHEHBARMNAREFE
the subsidiary disposed, net of cash (HMkRE L) (5.577) =
Gain on disposal & s 424 -
Net cash outflow on disposal & RIR SR FE (5,153) =
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5 P B R Bk
34 COMMITMENTS 34 R
(a) Operating lease commitments — Group (a) REBFVEALE-—FTKE
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under PRI BSHR S AN B2 & EEE
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: NRBBEIT
2012 2011
—E-C=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREEF T
Not later than 1 year —FT 3,254 3,754
Later than 1 year and —FAERAFNUAT
not later than 5 years 11,377 9,964
Later than 5 years AFLE 4,536 4,603
19,167 18,321
(b) Commitment for exclusive cooperative (b) BREIEHBERE-—FXEE
agreements — Group
The future aggregate payments under non-cancellable TAI BB BR S ERZEN BRI
exclusive cooperative agreements are as follows: R
2012 2011
—E——F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AR®ET T
Not later than 1 year —F LT 191,418 252,750
Later than 1 year and —FLAERAFENUT
not later than 5 years 707,000 623,250
Later than 5 years HELE 1,890,000 1,992,750
2,788,418 2,868,750
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£ Dk S 5 8 o B ik

34 7&HfE (#)
(b) BREFHRRE-—FEH

34 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Commitment for exclusive cooperative

210

agreements — Group (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has contractual
commitments with four commercial customers in
the PRC to pay annual rental expenses in order to
obtain exclusive rights to sell advertising spaces of
designated areas in the respective shopping malls
and on the side of respective highways owned by
the aforementioned commercial customers for 5
to 10 years. Future aggregate payments for these
agreements are RMB10,000,000, RMB84,000,000,
and RMB201,000,000 which are within one year,
between two and five years, and later than five years

respectively.

Pursuant to a contractual agreement entered into
between the Group and JingFeng Shenyang Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd, Shenyang HongFeng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd., and Shenyang ChangFeng
Property Development Co., Ltd. (together, “Shenyang
Real Estate Development Media Owner”), the Group is
entitled to obtain the exclusive right to sell advertising
spaces of designated areas in the respective malls
owned by the Shenyang Real Estate Development
Media Owner for 10 years. The Group is simultaneously
obliged to pay annual rental expenses over the next
10 years, which amounts to RMB295,000,000 in
aggregate. On 20 March 2013, the Group has entered
into an addendum to the existing agreement with
the Shenyang Real Estate Development Media Owner
to certify that any risks and rewards, including the
exclusive right obtained and the obligation to pay
annual rental expenses will be released upon the
termination of the agreement, given that the Group
incurs operating losses for two consecutive years. On
this basis, a reliable estimate for the amount of the
obligation cannot be made as the timing for future

operating losses cannot be determined.
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1R & 78 & [# B2 JingFeng Shenyang
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd*
Shenyang HongFeng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. A Shenyang
ChangFeng Property Development
Co., Ltd. (#4218 [/&E[5 5 b = A 8
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EHREHERETERNBRERN
HRATF - AKERARAEEHE
ARTFINFEHA afHEA
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ZAZTR - AEEEREGEME
FEEBEA AL RA RaIE
8 - BT ERME{AT R B AR B (B2 3EPTER
FHBRENRMEFERAXHE
F) &R R L LR - AIIR =
REEREBMFRXLERHE-
Bt AR AEMERAREERSR
B HIR - At EER BEESEIE
A SE A e




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements,
parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating
decisions, or vice versa. Related parties may be individuals
(being members of key management personnel, significant
shareholders and/or their close family members) or other
entities and include entities which are under the significant
influence of related parties of the Group where those parties
are individuals. Parties are also considered to be related if

they are subject to common control.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the related
party transactions were carried out in the normal course
of business and at terms mutually negotiated between the

Group and the respective related parties.

(a) The directors of the Company are of the view that the
following companies/individuals were related parties

that had transactions or balances with the Group

B 85 R B ik

35 BAEALZS

RAGHMBRERMS  HEALBESN
EASBELRT B REERRTERNE
EEAEERMNEATE 2 A LR
RERNEEBREB (R2TA) BEA
TAIUREA(ERZEEAE TERR
R/ RREOAHR) KEMEE - HAE
EmEEALTREA ABEALITERE
XEBBEALEARENER HWEME
BRI ARES THASZHEEAL

RRBEERR REFHEALRSTS
BREBEETZBARE RS HE
TR E 0 E WO RFRETT o

(a) ARAREEZERAE LATAREA
ARNEE-_Z——f+-A=+—
BIEFENEAEBEETR ST

during the year ended 31 December 2012: BRESNEEANL

Name Relationship with the Group

=r: BEAKEMNER

Mr. Chen Zhi Executive director of the Company/Chief Executive

Officer of the Group

BRELE

Ms. Zheng Shou Ling
Erhe L+

China TopReach Inc.
FEIRIRERERA

ARBHTEE AEBERFRITE

Spouse of the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
AEEEFHNTE VB

A significant shareholder of the Company
RARHEZERRE

THERABRDE — T —_FFR
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2 Dk 0 75 R B
35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BEMALARS (H)
(continued)
(a) (continued) (a) (#&)
Name Relationship with the Group
Z2%8 HEAEENBER

Fujian ShiFang Digitial Technology Co., Ltd

BETHEBRMARAD A

Beijing Wangxin Gaoke Information
Technology Co., Ltd.
ERBESRESRMERAR

Fujian Lanting Network Technology
Holding Limited Company

BERERBERERNERAF

Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu

Controlled by the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
HASEEFENITE LG

Controlled by the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company
HARE B FHITE Z
A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group

AEE-RRBARNEZRR

Director of the Company/Chief Financial Officer of

the Group
o #8015 A RRARER AEEERUBE
Mr. Ma Xiu Bin A significant shareholder of the Company
BHEREE AATEEZRR

Mr. Hong Pei Feng
IR &

Mr. Yu Shi Quan

RETHEILE

Mr. Qiang Yi Bing

Executive director of the Company

KABHITES

Executive director of the Company/Vice President of
Finance

ARRMTES MBI B

A close family member of a director of the Company

SR IR e RAB—BEZHER
Mr. Wang Ping Non-executive director of the Company
FFEE RABFERITES
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A ORI B R Bk
35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BHEANLA S (%)

(continued)
(a) (continued) (a) (#&)

Name Relationship with the Group

£78 HAEBERBEE

Ms. Chen Min Non-executive director of the Company

PR 2+ AAREMTES

Mr. Qin Guo Jun
Z=REEE

Mr. Zhu Sheng Nan
MR £

Liaoning Baixin Media Company Limited
FEAGEEEARAF

Shenyang Jinyutang Real Estate
Agency Co., Ltd.
BEEEERMERERRAA

Ms. Chan Ching Yi
BREMEZ L

Mr. Pan Jian Ping
R EAE

Ms. Chen Xiao Min
RN T

Ms. Zhang Yan Wen
R L

Mr. Xu Kai Ning
HEE L

A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group
AEB—FHMNBARMNEERR

A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group
AEB—FHMNBARMNEERR

A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group
AEB—FHMNBARMNEERR

Controlled by a significant shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Group

AN = B — ) P B R B O = B AR SR AR )

Key Management of the Group
REBXTEREEAS

Key Management of the Group
REBXTEZEEAS

Key Management of the Group
REBXTEEEAS

Key Management of the Group
REBXTEEEAS

Key Management of the Group
REBXTEREEAS

+EERERAT —T——FFR
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BAEALAZS (H)
(continued)
(a) (continued) (a) (#&)
Name Relationship with the Group
£78 HAEBHRE
Mr. Zheng Bo Ling Key Management of the Group
P Ee £ & AEBEFTEEEAER
Mr. Li Gang Key Management of the Group
k& AEBETEEERAER
Mr. Cai Jian Quan Independent non-executive director of the Company
gEERE RRARBIUFHITES
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren Independent non-executive director of the Company
AELCEE RAGIBIIEHITES
Mr. Zhou Ze Yuan Independent non-executive director of the Company
EEMESE RAGIBIIEHITES
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry Independent non-executive director of the Company
mME AL E RAGIBIIEHITES
The above names of certain related parties companies EHETHEEBEBATARNEXAHAR
represented the best effort by management of the Company RRAIEBENAEFRXEBRENEEME
in translating their Chinese names as they do not have - FREEMARNEEREXENE-

official English names.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties: (b)
The following transactions were undertaken by the
Group with related parties during the year ended 31
December 2012:

B 85 R B ik

35 BEANLRS (5)

HEEATETHNXS:
REBRBEE_ZT—Z—F+=A4
=T —BIEFEHEEEATETIA
TR

2012 2011
—E-C=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARETT

Continuing transactions: RERXS:
Key management compensation FEEBABEHM
(Note 28(c)) (P sE28(c)) 10,416 11,639
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBETF T
Non — continuing transactions: HFEZS
Advertising service cost & & RIS B AR 1,080 =

The transactions with related parties were conducted
in accordance with commercial terms mutually agreed

between the Group and the respective related parties.

The amounts below represented expenses paid by the
Group on behalf of China TopReach Inc., a significant

shareholder of the Company.

HEEALTETNR S HEBARE
5 B A AR B R MY R AR
BT

R THREEARBERKRARBNE
EREPERIGERER 2B A
MFASE

2012 2011
=F-=F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARET T

Expenses paid on behalf of RRBEATFAMEEX:
related party:
A significant shareholder of KRR EZERRK

the Company

4,756 3,491

4,756 3,491

+AERERAT —E——FER
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o PF I B R Bk
35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BHEANLRZZ (5)
(continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EHBEEALTFENG
As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, the balances are RZT— —¢&: E—_F+_H
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. =+ RERREER 2 ERE
2012 2011
—E-—C—fF —F——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREEF T
Amount due from a significant BRAQATHEERRRE
shareholder of the Company -¥ESH
- non-trade 6,516 1,760
The maximum balance due from a significant REBEE-_Z——_F+_-_H=+—H
shareholder of the Company during the year ended 31 IEFE BRARANEZRER
December 2012 was RMB6,516,000. AR = &R A AR 6,516,000
7TE o
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBEF T
Amounts due from related EWEEALTRE-FES
parties — non-trade
A non-controlling shareholder of REE K ER R
a subsidiary of the Group — B IR 2,104 500
Spouse of the Chief Executive Officer of ANEEEHFENITE A
the Group 6 667
Key management of the Group AEBFEERASR 12 1,363
A company controlled by the chief REBEENITE PGB
executive officer of the Group —MRAA] 262 177
2,384 2,707
Amounts due from a director: EW—E2EERE:
Mr. Hong Peifeng T I 5 A - 362
8,900 4,829
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(c)

Balances with related parties (continued)

As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, the balances
are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on
demand. The maximum balance due from Mr. Hong
Peifeng during the year ended 31 December 2012 was
RMB362,000

35

£ Dk S 5 o Wi ik

BN 122 5 (%)

()

HEEATEENGS (&)
RZEBE-——FRZZE—ZF+=
A=+—H ##HAEER 25
REEXKEE - RBE_T—_F
TZAZT—HILEFE EBUKE
BEERBENGSERRARK
362,0007T °

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Amounts due to directors: EWESMRE:
Mr. Chen Zhi PRAEL A

Mr. Hong Peifang BEIFIE
Mr. Zhang Tiezhu ok #8158 A
Others H At

762 286
50 =
141 416
106 56
1,059 758

+HERERAT —E——FEER
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BAEANLRZS ()
(continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (continued) (c) EHREALTFENGE (&)
The balances mainly represent the directors’ fee REEBTEERENESNESH
payable to the directors. & o
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Amounts due to related parties: EBEIEANLTRIE:
A Company controlled by the Chief RNEEHEHAITE PTIEH
Executive Officer of the Group — R A - 157
Amounts due to related parties FESBIE AN T FIE
- non-trade -*E3
Companies controlled by the Chief AEEHENTE
Executive Officer of the Group Fr 4% &l B 2 7] - 15
Companies controlled by a close family A AF—HEEH
member of a director of the Company PTG A A - 312
Key management of the Group AEEBFEZERAE - 40
- 367
1,059 1,282
All the above balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
FREEROREERER REREERER-
Amount due to a related party BN—aMEALRE
- non-trade (non-current portion) —FES (FERBED)
A non-controlling shareholder of NEE - B AR
a subsidiary of the Group — B IEERAR R 51,441 68,600
The balance due to a non-controlling shareholder is FERT — % FE IR AR SR B0 45 62 R 3K
unsecured, interest-free, with no fixed repayment term AR REETERD  WAKAE
and repayable upon mutual agreement between the SEEZZIIFFERRROEE HE
Group and the non-controlling shareholder. BE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension scheme
to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of
these subsidiaries. The only obligation of these subsidiaries
with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet the

required contributions under the scheme.

The total contributions incurred in this connection for
the year ended 31 December 2012 were approximately
RMB3,975,000 (2011: RMB4,439,000). No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution

payable by the Group in the future years.

STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
Pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by all the
shareholders of the Company on 26 February 2010,
the Company conditionally approved and adopted
a Pre-IPO Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Option
Scheme”). By the same resolution, the Company
granted 27,456,156 share options to its directors and
employees which are exercisable under the following

terms:

(i)  The exercise price of the option should not be less
than 100% of the fair market value of the shares
as at the grant date as determined by valuer

appointed by the Company;

(i)  40% of total options granted become exercisable
a year after grant date, another 30% also
become exercisable 2 years after grant date and
remaining 30% become exercisable 3 years after

grant date.

36

37

B 85 R B ik

S8 A e At
AEBEETRRINMBERRANEES
B3 77 T BT P 9 B R SRR R B 5T &I o
BEHEMBARAREENEAFHFERT
BWE T BED LA REAREETEIHK
PABT IR KRR A © 4075 T BUR A we A2 A
B EARNMAARAE RRKEKESR
ERAKRBMEL - BRNB AR RE
Rt EeME—BEDREASIEL AT
FRE B R

BHE_Z——F+=A=+—HL
FE BRUEEEOHREBEORAR
#3,975,000L (T ——F: ARK
4,439,0007T ) ° BEEL UGt AT AIERI
RREFEAREE BT

Ji A5 31 HE w3

(a) BRABMEBERNERESS
BEARFREZERER=_ZT—F
F_A-t+ AHBRBNE@E* Z
B ARBABREHAERKAETR
AABREAERESE (TEXR
FEERBREE]) - RIBEZR
BR ARAMHEEEREERT
27,456,15617 i X #& - 2 & B IR
AR T BT LATTE -

(i) BRETEETISERART]
LR {ERDE R R
BHIA AL MERI00% ;

(iy BERHBRBABMNI0%AT
R BB —F&RITE 55
30% A A A EIR F 18 1T
% 2 F30% B AR B H
—FRITE

THERARDE — T —_FFR
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37 STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME (continued) 37 MeAnHinEn# (A7)
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) () BXRLAHBERBRESE (&

220

The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the share options is
recognised as an expense, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity-based compensation reserves,
over the vesting period. At the end of each reporting
period, the Company revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the statement of comprehensive
income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. For
the year ended 31 December 2012, the equity-based
compensation expenses amounted to RMB2,362,000
(2011: RMB5,361,000).

Each share option gives the holder the right to

subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company.

(i)  Movement of Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2011 and

2012 is as follows:

)
REBRELDNEBSREORA
BEREBHABERAR S IR
VA R HRE 7= ER T8 ) 355 P 5% 4 /E AR P 3
BN EWMEHR  AREHSTES
K THBERERE Mt
E2E W RERIER] R MG
TE(WE)  WEHERELEER
B BE_ZT——F+-_A=+—
B 1E & - DARRAE 73 25 6 35 BN
XA ARY?2,362,0000T (ZF——
F: AR#¥5,361,0007T) °

SHBRERTHEARBEAR
— [ B R SR o

(i) BRAFABEABRESERN
BE_T——HR-FT-—_F
TZA=+—HLEFENE
mr

Number of

Exercise Price Option

THE BREHE
(HK$)
(L)

At 1 January 2011,
31 December 2011 and

RnR—ZF——F—H—H"
—E——Ft+ZA=t+—"HK

31 December 2012 —T——F+_-_HA=+—H

As at 31 December 2012, no options were
exercisable. All of the outstanding share options

will be expired by 2 December 2014.
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37 STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)

(i)

B 85 R B ik

37 et imE T & (A1)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) () BXR MBS ERESE (&
Movement of Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme () BARARESHERERTZEIRN
during the year ended 31 December 2011 and HE-ZE——FR=-T—=F
2012 is as follows: (continued) +TZA=t+T—HLFENEZ

wmT: (8)
The weighted average fair value per share option Z_EAREEERAEEED
granted during the period is determined by using RERAER 8 & AR & N
the binomial option pricing model and it was EEFHRABERSTETT -
HK$0.57 per option. The significant inputs into FEEARNAB R L BREN
the Binomial option pricing model in determining AABEER —EAHAEEE
the fair value of the share options granted by the REAMANEZHAEBR &
Company are: the fair market value at the grant H B E R AT ES D BRE
date of HK$1.79 per option, exercise price of 1.79%8 7L 17 (E1.828 T
HK$1.82, volatility of 40.66%, expected option JEIE40.66% - TEHARE AR #E G &K
life of 4.4 years, dividend yield of 0%, and risk- HiA A% R B E0% K B b
free annual interest rate of 1.493%. Expected £ B R1.493% - TEH K IR TY
volatility is estimated based on historical volatility BEJELEATREEES
of the comparable companies over the period IR P B P 1) T8 ER 6 BRAR ]
that has the same length as the expected life of F B A B AR IR (EEHSH -
each grant.

Held at Granted Held at

31 December during 31 December
2011 the period 2012 Grant date Expiry date

RZB-—-F RZB-ZF

+zBzt-8 +zB=t-8
58 REARL 5E Biti A B8 A
Directors Bz 24,161,417 - 24,161,417 26 February 2010 2 December 2014
—F-%F —F-QmF
—A=t+xA +=A=H
Other employees Hinlgg 3,294,739 - 3,294,739 26 February 2010 2 December 2014
—F-%F —F-QmF
—A=t+xA +=A=H

27,456,156 - 27456156
+HEREREBRAR — T —FER
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37 STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME (continued) 37 WAy BIREGEE (4)
(b) Share Option Scheme (b) FEARREHE

222

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by the
shareholders of the Company on 8 November 2010,
the Company adopted a share option scheme on
8 November 2010 (“Share Option Scheme”). The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentive or reward to (i) any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; (ii) any Directors (whether
executive or non-executive, including any independent
non-executive Director) of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; or (iii) any advisors, consultants
suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or any

subsidiaries (each “Eligible Person”).

The Board of Directors may, at any time within 10 years
after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme,
make an offer to grant options to any Eligible Person.
The subscription price for shares granted pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the
Board of Directors in its absolute discretion and shall be

at least the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the

date of offer;

(i)  the average of the closing prices of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date on which such offer is made;

and

(iii) the nominal value of shares of the Company.
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37 STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)
(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue as at the Listing Date, 73,216,512
Shares, without prior approval from the shareholders
of the Company. The maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted, and yet to be exercised, under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted under the
Share Option Scheme to each Eligible Person (including
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject

to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. In addition, if shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted under the Share
Option Scheme (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to a participant who is a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or any of their associates, in any
12-month period (i) represent in aggregate more than
0.1% of the total number of shares in issue, and (ii)
have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares of the Company at the date of each grant,
in excess of HK$5,000,000, the proposed grant of
option must be approved by the shareholders of the

Company in a general meeting.
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37 JeeAn I RE st & (%)

(b)

BRESTE (&)
WMAREARNBRRE LI E  RE
BT B TR E M ERES k&
I MBS BN T BB &%
TR D B2 H10% (B173,216,512
MRARA ) o FTIRAR IR AE AR M 51 8 R AR
X AME fa] E fth B AR A St 81 % HAB 5
FRITEERI PR B AR AT 58 BB AR A i AT 3%
THRMEE LR THEBAEAR
AN B BITIRZANHI30% © A A
+ & B BT AR iR AR i A
BTEBEAERATHMAEBRE
(BREETE BEEERTENE
BRE)MBEITRETEITORN A
H T BBBARAIEEITRMNE
HH91% o LE— PR EBBIL LR
MEREYAECRIAREAE £
ok

NRAKRARES FETHABL
FTERFTABESEMBHEAR LR
i HAKARRRBLIENITE
ETESEBE o BN - A E A+ = (&
AEERN RIREERESERZ
HE(BARAEERRIBILIE
BITEF)ABREEMBBARL
WA BRE (BIEE1TE B
RARATE O BB AR AE ) AT 31T
K FEITHRM)E HBBE %
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37 STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)
The amount payable on acceptance of an option is
RMB1.00. The exercise period of any option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall not be longer
than 10 years from the date of grant of the relevant
option. There is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before the exercise of the option
except otherwise imposed by the board of Directors.
As at 31 December 2012, no share option had been

granted under the Share Option Scheme.

38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group follows the guidance of IAS37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” to determine
when should contingent liabilities be recognised, which

requires significant judgement.

A contingent liability will be disclosed when a possible
obligation has arisen, but its existence has to be confirmed
by future events outside the Group's control, or when it
is not possible to calculate the amount. Realisation of any
contingent liabilities not currently recognised or disclosed
could have a material impact on the Group's financial

position.

The Group reviews significant outstanding litigations in
order to assess the need for provisions. Among the factors
considered are the nature of the litigation, legal processes
and potential level of damages, the opinions and views
of the legal counsel, and the management’s intentions to
respond to the litigations. To the extent the estimates and
judgments do not reflect the actual outcome, this could
materially affect the results for the period and the financial

position.
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38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(a) Lawsuits between the Group and Shenyang

Media Corporation
On 26 July 2011, Shenyang Media Corporation
unilaterally terminated the Comprehensive Cooperation

Contract with the Group.

The Group received a summons issued by the Shenyang
Intermediate People’s Court in Liaoning Province
(the “Shenyang Intermediate People’s Court”) on 25
October 2011, where Shenyang Media Corporation
claimed the Group for, among others, a total sum of
RMB17,328,767 being the outstanding advertising fees
payable by the Group to Shenyang Media Corporation
(the "Case 1").

On 22 December 2011, the Group filed summons of
claim to the Higher People’s Court of Liaoning Province
(the “Higher People’s Court”) against Shenyang Daily
Agency and Shenyang Media Corporation, where the
Group claimed Shenyang Daily Agency and Shenyang
Media Corporation f o r, among others, a total sum of
RMB105,579,352, being the outstanding advertising
fees payable by Shenyang Daily Agency and Shenyang
Media Corporation (the “Case 2") to the Group.

On 8 March 2012, the Group received a civil judgment
issued by the Higher People’s Court in relation to
Case 2, pursuant to which the Higher People’s Court
decided to refer the case back to the Shenyang
Intermediate People’s Court. As advised by the PRC
legal counsel, the Group has lodged an appeal to the
Supreme People’s Court of the PRC (the “Supreme
People’s Court’) on 13 March 2012 to request the
Supreme People’s Court to overrule the Higher People’s

Court’s decision.
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38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(a) Lawsuits between the Group and Shenyang

Media Corporation (continued)

On 30 August 2012, the Group received a judgment of
first instance awarded by the Shenyang Intermediate
People's Court in relation to Case 1, in which
the Group was ordered to pay Shenyang Media
Corporation RMB17,250,398 as advertising fees
together with court fees within 10 days after the
judgment becomes effective. On 6 September 2012,
the Group has lodged an appeal to the Higher People’s
Court to seek to revoke the judgment of first instance

in due course.

On 27 December 2012, Higher People’s Court of
Liaoning Province ordered the judgment of first
instance on 30 August 2012 should be dismissed
and a retrial of Case 1 at the Shenyang Intermediate
People’s Court was ordered. As advised by the PRC
legal counsel, the management believes that it is not
probable that this litigation would result in a material

outflow of economic benefits from the Group.

Nevertheless, the management takes into consideration
of the facts and circumstances, including the probable
outcome of the litigation between the Group and
Shenyang Media Corporation, the prolonged period
to obtain a final judgment in respect of the legal
proceeding, and its ability to enforce court decision to
collect the amount when the final judgment is reached
and hence, determined to make full provision of the
deposit and prepayment made to Shenyang Evening
News amounted to RMB43,780,000 as at 31 December
2012.
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38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 38 A A (#)

(b) Enforcement order issued by Yueyang City (b) EETHRARER ([EBT
Intermediate People’s Court (“Yueyang FRARER]) SFHAEEH
Intermediate People’s Court”) against the BENHTEES
Group.

On 4 June 2012, Yueyanglin Paper Co., Ltd. has filed RZE-—ZFXAMNAB FEKRE
a civil claim against Southeast Express and Lifestyle ROBBEARRBEFEETET
Express in respect of an outstanding payment of HELRMEREENKARE
RMB31,859,018 relating to certain sales made in prior 31,859,018 T A B R34t &2 £ )&
years. TR RERE-

On 10 July 2012, Yueyang Intermediate People’s Court RZE—Z—ZF+tATH EEmH
has made a civil judgement that Southeast Express and BARFEREHERSHRE B
Lifestyle Express shall pay Yueyanglin Paper Co., Ltd. R R AT R A EFT A B A &S
the aforesaid amount. MERDBRAR LT Lit&5E-
On 26 October 2012, Yueyang Intermediate People’s RZE——F+HZ+B &S
Court issued an enforcement order which stated that MHRBARER L BERITHES
there were intentional transfer of assets, such as B P R R R AL R AR T R AL
connected transactions or confusion of properties, HAEE Y RGEFEEEEREE
between Southeast Express, Lifestyle Express, and (BlENEEER HMERR) - LA
the Group in order to against the civil judgment and MERFBHAE Bt EHETHHEA
hence, Yueyang Intermediate People’s Court ordered RZERKBRAITHEER S RE
to freeze the cash and assets of the Company and RRAREZEWRB AR (B2EEIM
its wholly owned subsidiaries, including Fuzhou REEEERARMEHREGES
AoHai Advertisement Co., Ltd. and Kunming AoHai BERABDTHEBGR=EEARE
Advertising Co.,Ltd. up to a maximum amount of 31,859,018 T IR & F & £ °

RMB31,859,018 under the enforcement letter.

As advised by the PRC legal counsel, on 8 November MNP BDEEERARER RZE
2012, the Group has submitted an objection ——F+—ANB AEEBEEMH
application to the Higher People’s Court of Hunan HEARRARERERZERE
Province with a copy sent to Higher People’s Court of (FRFRIAE RRXZNAmEE =R
Hunan Province to object and rescind the enforcement ARZER)ABRATHESREE
order. o WERBRBBENITHES
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38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 38 B A ()
(b) Enforcement order issued by Yueyang City (b) EfE™ qﬂ%&AE%FJﬁE(rEI‘%Fﬁ
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Intermediate People’s Court (“Yueyang
Intermediate People’s Court”) against the
Group. (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, RMB12,890,171 of cash
deposits in four bank accounts in the PRC of the Group
have been temporarily frozen by Yueyang Intermediate

People’'s Court under the enforcement order.

On 30 January 2013, the Group has received the
enforcement judgment issued by the Higher People’s
Court of Hunan Province to revoke the enforcement
order issued by Yueyang Intermediate People’s Court
on 26 October 2012. Yueyanglin Paper Co., Ltd. has
subsequently lodged an appeal to the Higher People’s
Court of Hunan Province to request for overruling the
judgment. According to the advice from the Group's
PRC legal counsel, the best knowledge, information
and belief of the directors, management believes that
it is not probable that this enforcement letter would
result in a material outflow of economic benefits from
the Group. Accordingly, no provision for loss of the
RMB12,890,171 cash deposit nor any amount in the
context of the outstanding payment the enforcement
letter issued by Yueyang Intermediate People’s Court

has been made as at 31 December 2012.
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